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Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.
 
Merger Agreement
 

On February 8, 2021, GreenVision Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (“GreenVision”), entered into a Merger Agreement and Plan of
Reorganization (the “Merger Agreement”) with GreenVision Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of GreenVision
(“Merger Sub”), Helbiz, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Helbiz”) and Salvatore Palella, in his capacity as the representative of the Helbiz shareholders.
Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, and subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions set forth therein, Merger Sub will merge with
and into Helbiz (the “Merger”), with Helbiz surviving the merger in accordance with the Delaware General Corporation Law as a wholly- owned subsidiary
of GreenVision (the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and the related ancillary agreements, the “Business Combination”).

 
Consideration
 

The aggregate consideration payable at the closing of the Business Combination (the “Closing”) to the stockholders of Helbiz will be the issuance of
such number of shares of GreenVision Common Stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the “Common Stock”) as shall be determined by subtracting the
“Closing Net Debt” of Helbiz (as defined in the Merger Agreement) from the agreed valuation of $300,000,000, and dividing such difference by $10.00,
which represents the agreed valuation of one share of GreenVision common stock. The total number of shares of GreenVision Common Stock to be issued at
Closing, following the determination of the final Closing Net Debt, shall be subject to reduction for Indemnification Escrow Shares (as defined in the Merger
Agreement) for indemnification claims, as described below. Of the GreenVision shares to be delivered at Closing, the holders of Helbiz common stock will
receive, in exchange for the Helbiz shares owned by such persons, shares of a class of Common Stock of GreenVision to be established and designated as
“Class A Common Stock”, except that if any such Helbiz shares are owned by Salvatore Palella (the “Founder”), such shares will instead be exchanged for a
number of shares of a class of Common Stock of GreenVision to be established and designated as “Class B Common Stock”. The number of shares of
GreenVision Common Stock (whether Class A or Class B) that each Helbiz shareholder shall receive will be equal to the product obtained by multiplying the
number of shares of common stock of Helbiz held by such stockholders by the Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio (as defined in the Merger
Agreement).

 
The shares of GreenVision Class B Common Stock will have the same economic terms as the shares of GreenVision Class A Common Stock in all

material respects, but the shares of Class A Common Stock will be entitled to one (1) vote per share, and the shares of GreenVision Class B Common Stock
will be entitled to such number of votes per share, so that the total number of GreenVision Class B Common Stock issued to Founder represent, in the
aggregate, no more than 60% of all voting securities of GreenVision on a fully-diluted basis for a period of up to 24 months from the Closing. Except for
certain permitted transfers, any shares of GreenVision Class B Common Stock that are transferred by the Founder will automatically convert into shares of
GreenVision Class A Common Stock. In addition, the outstanding shares of GreenVision Class B Common Stock will automatically convert into shares of
GreenVision Class A Common Stock (i) at the option of such holder to convert such shares of Class B Common Stock into Class A Common Stock or (ii)
upon the earlier of the death of Founder, the consent of a majority of the holders of Class B Common Stock, or a date that is 2 years from the Closing of the
Business Combination.

 
Prior to the effective time of the Merger, all outstanding warrants and vested options of Helbiz shall be exercised or cancelled by the holders thereof,

and the shares of Helbiz common stock then issued shall be exchanged for GreenVision Class A Common Stock. Outstanding options of Helbiz which are
not vested shall be cancelled and terminated. Further, outstanding shares of Helbiz preferred stock shall also be converted into Helbiz common stock, which
shares shall thereafter be exchanged for GreenVision Class A Common Stock. Outstanding notes issued by Helbiz shall, at or prior to Closing, similarly be
converted into Helbiz common stock and exchanged for GreenVision Class A Common Stock or repaid and cancelled.

 
The parties also agreed that immediately following the Closing, GreenVision’s board of directors will consist of five directors, one of which will be

designated by GreenVision and four of which will be designated by Helbiz. Simultaneously with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Helbiz made
payment of a deposit in the sum of $750,000 to GreenVision, a portion of which funds will be utilized to provide the deposit required to extend the existence
of GreenVision from February 21, 2021 to May 21, 2021. The balance of such funds may be used by GreenVision to fund expenses.
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Stockholder Approval
 

Prior to the consummation of the Merger, the holders of a majority of GreenVision’s common stock attending a stockholder’s meeting (at which
there is a quorum) must approve the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (the “Stockholder Approval”). In connection with obtaining the
Stockholder Approval, GreenVision is required to call a special meeting of its common stockholders and prepare and file with the SEC a Proxy Statement on
Schedule 14A, which will be mailed to all stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting.

 
Helbiz is a privately-held company and the holders of a majority of its issued and outstanding shares of Helbiz common stock have approved the

transaction.
 

Representations and Warranties
 

In the Merger Agreement, Helbiz makes certain representations and warranties (with certain exceptions set forth in the Helbiz disclosure schedule to
the Merger Agreement) relating to, among other things: (a) proper corporate organization of Helbiz and its subsidiaries and similar corporate matters; (b)
authorization, execution, delivery and enforceability of the Merger Agreement and other transaction documents; (c) absence of conflicts; (d) capital structure;
(e) accuracy of charter and governing documents; (f) affiliate transactions; (g) required consents and approvals; (h) financial information; (i) absence of
certain changes or events; (j) title to assets and properties; (k) material contracts; (l) insurance; (m) licenses and permits; (n) compliance with laws; (o)
ownership of intellectual property; (p) employment and labor matters; (q) taxes and audits; (r) environmental matters; (s) brokers and finders; and (t) other
customary representations and warranties.
 

In the Merger Agreement, GreenVision makes certain representations and warranties relating to, among other things: (a) proper corporate
organization and similar corporate matters; (b) authorization, execution, delivery and enforceability of the Merger Agreement and other transaction
documents; (c) brokers and finders; (d) capital structure; (e) validity of share issuance; (f) minimum trust fund amount; (g) Nasdaq listing; and (h) SEC filing
requirements.
 
Covenants and Conduct Prior to Closing
 

The Merger Agreement contains customary covenants by the parties thereto, including, among other things, covenants with respect to the conduct of
GreenVision and Helbiz during the period between execution of the Merger Agreement and the Closing. The covenants under the Merger Agreement include,
among other things, the following: (i) that Helbiz has agreed to operate its business in the ordinary course prior to the closing of the Merger (with certain
exceptions) and not to take certain specified actions without the prior written consent of GreenVision; and (ii) GreenVision has agreed to operate its business
in the ordinary course prior to the closing of the Merger (with certain exceptions) and not to take certain specified actions without the prior written consent of
Helbiz.

In addition, the parties agreed to take the following actions, among others, before the completion of the Merger:
 

(i) Helbiz shall enter into new employment agreements with certain executive officers, including the Founder. Helbiz shall also enter into
restrictive covenant agreements with the Founder and certain other officers (the “Restricted Parties”), pursuant to which the Restricted Parties will agree to
certain non-compete and non-solicit provisions;

 
(ii) Helbiz shall enter into lockup agreements with the Founder and certain of its existing security holders to restrict the ability of such

persons to sell or transfer their newly acquired GreenVision securities for a period of up to one year (in the case of the Founder) and six months (in the case
of other security holders owning more than 75,000 shares of Helbiz) following the Closing; and
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(iii) prior to the Closing, GreenVision shall approve and its stockholders shall approve as part of its proxy statement a stock based equity

incentive plan in form and substance acceptable to Helbiz and which would include a reserve for a number of shares available for issuance under such equity
incentive plan not to exceed twelve and one-half percent (12.5%) of the total number of shares of GreenVision’s common stock on a fully-diluted basis
anticipated to be issued and outstanding following the Closing and on such other terms as are customary for a company whose securities are traded on the
Nasdaq Stock Market.

 
The parties to the Merger Agreement have also agreed to cooperate and use their best efforts to consummate a PIPE Investment with certain

investors effective with the Closing resulting in proceeds of at least $30 million to GreenVision (the “PIPE Investment”). Pursuant to subscription agreements
to be entered into with such investors, GreenVision intends to offer and sell a minimum of $30 million of shares of its Class A Common Stock and warrants
to purchase additional shares of Class A Common Stock (the “PIPE Warrants”) at an offering price of $10.00 to purchase one share of GreenVision Class A
Common Stock and one PIPE Warrant. It is anticipated that each PIPE Warrant will entitle a holder to purchase one share of GreenVision Class A Common
Stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share. It is also anticipated that GreenVision would enter into the subscription agreements with the PIPE investors by
March 1, 2021, and the PIPE Investment will be consummated substantially concurrently with the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Merger
Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions contemplated by the subscription agreements.
 

In addition, GreenVision has agreed that in the event that Helbiz fails to deliver its audited financial statements for the two fiscal years ended
December 31, 2020 by March 15, 2021, GreenVision shall take all necessary actions to extend the date by which GreenVision is required to complete a
business combination from May 21, 2021 to a subsequent date as reasonably determined by the parties for the purpose of allowing the parties to consummate
the Merger.
 
Conditions to Closing
 

The Closing is subject to certain conditions, including, among other things, (a) approval by the stockholders of GreenVision of the Business
Combination, (b) approval of the listing of GreenVision’s common stock to be issued in connection with the Business Combination, (c) that Helbiz shall have
delivered to GreenVision its audited financial statements for the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2020, (d) that Helbiz shall have delivered to
GreenVision executed payoff letters for all indebtedness of Helbiz that remain unpaid prior to Closing, (e) Helbiz shall have entered into employment
agreements with its executive officers, (f) the consummation of the PIPE Investment; and (g) GreenVision shall have received written evidence of: (i) release
of any and all liens with respect to any shares of its capital stock; (ii) the conversion or retirement of all outstanding shares of its existing series of preferred
stock; and (iii) termination of all stockholder agreements, voting agreements, rights of first refusal, put or similar rights, operating agreements and similar
contracts or agreements between Helbiz and any of its stockholders.

 
In addition, a condition to parties’ obligations to consummate the Merger include that as of the Closing, the amount of cash available in the trust

account into which the proceeds from GreenVision’s initial public offering has been deposited, before consummation of the PIPE Investment and after
deducting the amount required to satisfy GreenVision’s obligations to its shareholders (if any) that exercise their rights to redeem their shares of Common
Stock, but before payment or deduction of any costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Business Combination, shall be at least $15 million.
 
Indemnification
 

From and after the Closing, the Founder has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless GreenVision against and in respect of specified actual and direct
losses incurred or sustained by GreenVision as a result of: (a) any breach of any of Helbiz’s representations and warranties set forth in the Merger Agreement
(as modified by the Helbiz disclosure schedules to the Merger Agreement) and (b) any breach of any covenants or obligations of Helbiz contained in the
Merger Agreement to be performed prior to the Closing. An aggregate of 1,600,000 shares of GreenVision common stock issuable to the Founder at the
Closing shall be deposited into a third-party escrow account (the “Indemnification Escrow Shares”) to serve as GreenVision’s exclusive security for the
Founder’s obligation to indemnify GreenVision under the Merger Agreement.
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Notwithstanding anything in the Merger Agreement to the contrary, the maximum liability of the Founder under the Merger Agreement or otherwise

in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement shall in no event exceed an amount equal to the Escrow Share Value (defined as
the value equal to $10.00 per share multiplied by the number of Indemnification Escrow Shares). Further, GreenVision shall not be entitled to
indemnification under the Merger Agreement unless and until the aggregate amount of losses to GreenVision equals at least $200,000 (the “Basket”), at
which time, subject to the other limitations set forth in the Merger Agreement, GreenVision shall be entitled to indemnification for any losses above the
Basket. The indemnification to which GreenVision is entitled from the Escrow Participant pursuant to the Merger shall be effective so long as it is asserted
prior to the expiration of the 12-month anniversary of the Closing date.
 
Termination
 

The Merger Agreement may be terminated prior to the Closing under certain circumstances, including, among others, (i) by either party in the event
a governmental authority shall have issued an order having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the Merger, which order
is final and non-appealable, (ii) by GreenVision, if Helbiz shall have breached any representation, warranty, agreement or covenant contained in the Merger
Agreement to be performed on or prior to the Closing date, which has rendered the satisfaction of any of the closing conditions set forth in the Merger
Agreement impossible; and such breach shall not be cured within thirty (30) days following receipt by Helbiz of written notice of such breach; (iii) by
Helbiz, if GreenVision shall have breached any representation, warranty, agreement or covenant contained in the Merger Agreement to be performed on or
prior to the Closing date, which has rendered the satisfaction of any of the closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement impossible; and such breach
shall not be cured within thirty (30) days following receipt by GreenVision of written notice of such breach; or (iv) by GreenVision, if (A) there has been a
material adverse effect on Helbiz (or its subsidiaries) following the execution of the Merger Agreement, which is uncured and continuing or (B) if
GreenVision’s stockholders shall not have approved the Merger at a meeting of GreenVision’s stockholders’ convened for such purpose.

 
The Merger Agreement further provides, that other than with respect to the failure of (1) the SEC to provide to GreenVision notice of no further

comments to its proxy statement or (2) GreenVision to comply with its obligation to take all necessary actions to extend its corporate existence as described
above, in the event that (i) the Closing does not take place on or prior to May 21, 2021 (or a later date as may be extended by GreenVision) due to any delay
caused by or any reason directly attributable to Helbiz or its subsidiaries, or (ii) there is a valid and effective termination of this Agreement by GreenVision
pursuant to Sections 12.2(a) or Section 12.3(a) of the Merger Agreement, then Helbiz shall pay to GreenVision a break-up fee in cash equal to Fifteen
Million U.S. Dollars ($15,000,000).
 
Transfer Restrictions and Registration Rights

 
The Merger Agreement contemplates that, at the Closing, the Helbiz stockholders will enter into a Registration Rights Agreement with GreenVision

(the “Registration Rights Agreement”), pursuant to which GreenVision will agree to register for resale, pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act, certain
shares of GreenVision Common Stock that are held by the parties thereto from time to time. Additionally, at or prior to Closing, GreenVision and certain of
the Helbiz stockholders will enter into a Lockup Agreement (the “Lockup Agreement”) pursuant to which such stockholders shall agree to abide by certain
restrictions on transfer with respect to the shares of GreenVision Common Stock received as consideration for the consummation of the Business
Combination. Such transfer restrictions begin at Closing and end at the date that is (i) twelve (12) months after the Closing with respect to the Founder and
(ii) six (6) months following the Closing with respect to other Helbiz shareholders owning at least 75,000 shares.
 

The foregoing description of the Merger Agreement and the Business Combination does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by
the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 2.1 hereto and is incorporated by reference herein. The Merger
Agreement contains representations, warranties and covenants that the respective parties made to each other as of the date of such agreement or other specific
dates. The assertions embodied in those representations, warranties and covenants were made for purposes of the contract among the respective parties and
are subject to important qualifications and limitations agreed to by the parties in connection with negotiating such agreement. The Merger Agreement has
been attached to provide investors with information regarding its terms and is not intended to provide any other factual information about GreenVision,
Helbiz or any other party to the Merger Agreement. In particular, the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained in the Merger
Agreement, which were made only for purposes of such agreement and as of specific dates, were solely for the benefit of the parties to the Merger
Agreement, may be subject to limitations agreed upon by the contracting parties (including being qualified by confidential disclosures made for the purposes
of allocating contractual risk between the parties to the Merger Agreement instead of establishing these matters as facts) and may be subject to standards of
materiality applicable to the contracting parties that differ from those applicable to investors and reports and documents filed with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Investors should not rely on the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements, or any descriptions thereof, as
characterizations of the actual state of facts or condition of any party to the Merger Agreement. In addition, the representations, warranties, covenants and
agreements and other terms of the Merger Agreement may be subject to subsequent waiver or modification. Moreover, information concerning the subject
matter of the representations and warranties and other terms may change after the date of the Merger Agreement, which subsequent information may or may
not be fully reflected in GreenVision’s public disclosures.
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Item 3.02 Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities.
 

The disclosure set forth above in Item 1.01 of this Current Report on Form 8-K is incorporated by reference herein. The securities of GreenVision to
be issued in connection with the Business Combination and the PIPE Investment will not be registered under the Securities Act in reliance upon the
exemption provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act, Regulation S and/or Regulation D, promulgated thereunder.
 
Item 7.01 Regulation FD Disclosure.
 

Attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated into this Item 7.01 by reference is a copy of the press release issued
on February 8, 2021 announcing the proposed transaction.
 

Attached as Exhibit 99.2 to this Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated into this Item 7.01 by reference is the investor presentation that will
be used by GreenVision in making presentations to certain existing and potential stockholders of GreenVision with respect to the proposed transaction.

 
On February 9, 2021, GreenVision and Helbiz will hold an investor conference call regarding the proposed Business Combination. A copy of the

prepared remarks for the call is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.3.
 
The information in this Item 7.01, including Exhibits 99.1 through 99.3, is furnished and shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or otherwise subject to liabilities under that section, and shall not be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into the filings of GreenVision under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) or the Exchange Act, regardless
of any general incorporation language in such filings. This Current Report on Form 8-K will not be deemed an admission as to the materiality of any
information of the information in this Item 7.01, including Exhibits 99.1 through 99.3.
 
Important Information About the Business Combination and Where to Find It

 
In connection with the Business Combination, GreenVision intends to file a preliminary proxy statement. GreenVision will mail a definitive proxy

statement and other relevant documents to its stockholders. GreenVision’s stockholders and other interested persons are advised to read, when available, the
preliminary proxy statement and the amendments thereto and the definitive proxy statement and documents incorporated by reference therein filed in
connection with the Business Combination, as these materials will contain important information about GreenVision, Helbiz and the Business Combination.
INVESTORS AND SECURITY HOLDERS OF GREENVISION ARE URGED TO READ THESE MATERIALS (INCLUDING ANY
AMENDMENTS OR SUPPLEMENTS THERETO) AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE
TRANSACTION THAT GREENVISION WILL FILE WITH THE SEC WHEN THEY BECOME AVAILABLE BECAUSE THEY WILL
CONTAIN IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT GREENVISION, HELBIZ AND THE TRANSACTION. When available, the definitive proxy
statement and other relevant materials for the Business Combination will be mailed to stockholders of GreenVision as of a record date to be established for
voting on the Business Combination. Stockholders will also be able to obtain copies of the preliminary proxy statement, the definitive proxy statement and
other documents filed with the SEC that will be incorporated by reference therein, without charge, once available, at the SEC’s web site at www.sec.gov, or
by directing a request to: GreenVision Acquisition Corp., One Penn Plaza, 36th Floor, New York, NY 10019, Attention: Chief Financial Officer, telephone:
(212) 786-7429.
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Participants in the Solicitation

 
GreenVision and its directors and executive officers may be deemed participants in the solicitation of proxies from GreenVision’s stockholders with

respect to the Business Combination. A list of the names of those directors and executive officers and a description of their interests in GreenVision is
contained in GreenVision’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, which was filed with the SEC and is available free of
charge at the SEC’s web site at www.sec.gov, or by directing a request to GreenVision Acquisition Corp., One Penn Plaza, 36th Floor, New York, NY 10019,
Attention: Chief Financial Officer, telephone: (212) 786-7429. Additional information regarding the interests of such participants will be contained in the
proxy statement for the Business Combination when available.

 
Helbiz and its directors and executive officers may also be deemed to be participants in the solicitation of proxies from the stockholders of

GreenVision in connection with the Business Combination. A list of the names of such directors and executive officers and information regarding their
interests in the Business Combination will be included in the proxy statement for the Business Combination when available.

 
Forward-Looking Statements

 
This Current Report on Form 8-K includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. GreenVision and Helbiz’s actual results may differ from their expectations, estimates and projections and
consequently, you should not rely on these forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. Words such as “expect,” “estimate,” “project,”
“budget,” “forecast,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “should,” “believes,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” and similar expressions
are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include, without limitation, GreenVision’s and Helbiz’s
expectations with respect to future performance and anticipated financial impacts of the Business Combination, the satisfaction of the closing conditions to
the Business Combination and the timing of the completion of the Business Combination. These forward-looking statements involve significant risks and
uncertainties that could cause the actual results to differ materially from the expected results. Most of these factors are outside GreenVision’s and Helbiz’s
control and are difficult to predict. Factors that may cause such differences include, but are not limited to: (1) the occurrence of any event, change or other
circumstances that could give rise to the termination of the Merger Agreement or could otherwise cause the Business Combination to fail to close; (2) the
outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against GreenVision or Helbiz following the announcement of the Merger Agreement and the
Business Combination; (3) the inability to complete the Business Combination, including due to failure to obtain approval of the stockholders of GreenVision
or other conditions to closing in the Merger Agreement; (4) the receipt of an unsolicited offer from another party for an alternative business transaction that
could interfere with the Business Combination; (5) the inability to obtain the listing of the common stock of the post-acquisition company on the Nasdaq
Stock Market or any alternative national securities exchange following the Business Combination; (6) the risk that the announcement and consummation of
the Business Combination disrupts current plans and operations; (7) the ability to recognize the anticipated benefits of the Business Combination, which may
be affected by, among other things, competition, the ability of the combined company to grow and manage growth profitably and retain its key employees;
(8) costs related to the Business Combination; (9) changes in applicable laws or regulations; (10) the possibility that Helbiz may be adversely affected by
other economic, business, and/or competitive factors; (11) the impact of COVID-19 on the combined company’s business; and (12) other risks and
uncertainties indicated from time to time in the proxy statement to be filed relating to the Business Combination, including those under “Risk Factors”
therein, and in GreenVision’s other filings with the SEC. Some of these risks and uncertainties may in the future be amplified by the COVID-19 outbreak and
there may be additional risks that GreenVision considers immaterial or which are unknown. GreenVision cautions that the foregoing list of factors is not
exclusive. GreenVision cautions readers not to place undue reliance upon any forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made.
GreenVision does not undertake or accept any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements to
reflect any change in its expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.
 
No Offer or Solicitation

 
This Current Report on Form 8-K shall not constitute a solicitation of a proxy, consent or authorization with respect to any securities or in respect of

the Business Combination. This Current Report on Form 8-K shall also not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities, nor
shall there be any sale of securities in any states or jurisdictions in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or
qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction. No offering of securities shall be made except by means of a prospectus meeting the
requirements of Section 10 of the Securities Act, or an exemption therefrom.
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Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.
 
(d)  Exhibits
 
The following exhibits are attached to this Current Report on Form 8-K:
 
Exhibit No.  Exhibit Title or Description
   

2.1
 

Merger Agreement and Plan of Reorganization by and among Helbiz, Inc., Salvatore Palella, as Representative of the Shareholders of the
Company, GreenVision Acquisition Corp. and GreenVision Merger Sub, Inc., dated February 8, 2021*.

   
99.1  Press Release dated February 8, 2021**.

   
99.2  Investor Presentation of GreenVision Acquisition Corp.**

   
99.3  Transcript of prepared remarks for the investor call.**

 
* Schedules and other similar attachments have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The registrant hereby undertakes to furnish

supplementally copies of any of the omitted schedules and other similar attachments upon request by the SEC.
 
** Furnished but not filed.
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SIGNATURE

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned, hereunto duly authorized.
 

 GreenVision Acquisition Corp.
   
 By: /s/ Zhigeng (David) Fu

 Name: Zhigeng (David) Fu
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date:   February 8, 2021   
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Exhibit 2.1
 

MERGER AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF REORGANIZATION
 

BY AND AMONG
 

HELBIZ, INC. (THE “COMPANY”),
 

SALVATORE PALELLA, AS REPRESENTATIVE OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(“SHAREHOLDERS’ REPRESENTATIVE”),

 
GREENVISION ACQUISITION CORP. (“PURCHASER”) AND

 
GREENVISION MERGER SUB INC. (“MERGER SUB”)

 
DATED AS OF FEBRUARY 8, 2021

 

 



 

 
MERGER AGREEMENT

AND
PLAN OF REORGANIZATION

 
This MERGER AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF REORGANIZATION is made and entered into as of February 8, 2021 (the “Execution Date”) by

and among Helbiz, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company” or “Helbiz”), Salvatore Palella, as representative of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders’ Representative”), GreenVision Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Purchaser” or “GreenVision”) and GreenVision Merger Sub Inc.,
a Delaware corporation (“Merger Sub”).

 
WITNESSETH

 
A. The Company and its existing and future intended Subsidiaries (as defined in this Agreement) (collectively, together with the Company, the

“Company Group”) are in the business of providing personal, urban mobility solutions and related technology services (which, together with all other
businesses and activities conducted by the Company Group, is hereinafter referred to as the “Business”);

 
B. The Purchaser is a blank check company whose securities are publicly traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market and was formed for the sole

purpose of entering into a share exchange, asset acquisition, share purchase, recapitalization, reorganization or other similar business combination with one
or more businesses or entities and Merger Sub is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Purchaser;

 
C. The Company Securityholders are listed on the final Schedule 1.17 hereto and own or will own as of the Closing, 100% of the issued and

outstanding Company Securities;
 

D. For United States’ federal income tax purposes, the Merger is intended to constitute a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a)(2)
(E) of the Code and the parties to this Agreement hereby adopt this Agreement insofar as it relates to the Merger as a “plan of reorganization” within the
meaning of Section 1.368.2(g) of the United States Treasury regulations;

 
E. The Company shall merge with Merger Sub (the “Merger”) pursuant to Section 251 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, after which the

Company will be the surviving “Surviving Corporation” and the Company shall then be a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of GreenVision.
 

NOW THEREFORE, upon the terms, conditions, covenants and promises made herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties
agree as follows:
 

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

 
The following terms, as used herein, have the following meanings:
 
1.1 “Action” means any legal action, suit, claim, hearing or proceeding, including any audit, claim or assessment for Taxes or otherwise, by or

before any Authority.
 
1.2 “Additional Agreements” mean the (i) Registration Rights Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A; (ii) Indemnification

Escrow Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B (“Indemnification Escrow Agreement”) by and among the Purchaser, the
Shareholders Representative on behalf of the Company Shareholders and the Escrow Agent, (iii) Lock-Up Agreement substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit C attached hereto (“Lock-Up Agreement”), (iv) Employment Agreements by and among each of the persons named in Schedule 7.3 , the
Company and the Purchaser (the “Employment Agreements”) in the form as mutually agreed by the Company, the Purchaser and each such named person,
(v) the Non-Compete and Non-Solicitation Agreement (the “Non-Compete Agreements”) substantially in the form of Exhibit D, and (vi) the engagement
letter entered into by the Shareholders’ Representative, the Company, and the Company Securityholders.
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1.3 “Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly or indirectly Controlling, Controlled by, or under common Control with

such Person.
 
1.4 “Aggregate Investment Amount” means the aggregate amount of immediately available funds contained in the Trust Account (net of any

Purchaser Redemption Amount) immediately prior to the Closing (but prior to the payment of any expenses of Purchaser).
 
1.5 “Authority” means any governmental, regulatory or administrative body, agency or authority, any court or judicial authority, any arbitrator, or

any public, private or industry regulatory authority, whether international, national, foreign, Federal, state, or local.
 
1.6 “Books and Records” means all books and records, ledgers, employee records, customer lists, files, correspondence, and other records of every

kind (whether written, electronic, or otherwise embodied) owned or controlled by a Person in which a Person’s assets, the business or its transactions are
otherwise reflected, other than stock books and minute books.

 
1.7 “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday on which commercial banking institutions in New York, New

York are authorized to close for business.
 
1.8 “Closing” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6.
 
1.9 “Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio” shall mean a number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by

dividing (a) the Purchaser Merger Shares; by (b) the number of Company Securities, on a fully-diluted, fully-exchanged and converted basis, in each case, as
listed on Schedule 1.17.

 
1.10 [Reserved].
 
1.11 “Closing Net Debt” means the aggregate amount of the Indebtedness of each of the members of the Company Group as of the Closing Date.
 
1.12 “COBRA” means collectively, the requirements of Sections 601 through 606 of ERISA and Section 4980B of the Code.
 
1.13 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 
1.14 “Company Capital Stock” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.5.
 
1.15 “Company Notes” means all of the issued and outstanding promissory notes payable by the Company.
 
1.16 “Company Options” means all of the issued and outstanding options to acquire shares of Common Stock of the Company issued under the

Helbiz 2020 Option Plan, all of which are listed on Schedule 1.17 hereto, and all of which shall be treated in accordance with Section 3.1 hereof).
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1.17 “Company Securities” means the Company Shares, the Preferred A Shares, the Preferred B Shares, Company Notes and Company Options, all

as described on Schedule 1.17 annexed hereto; excluding any Company Securities which may be held at Closing by, or issuable to, the PIPE Investors.
 
1.18 “Company Securityholder” means each Person who holds Company Securities or has the right to acquire Company Securities immediately

prior to the Effective Time and the list of the existing Company Securityholders as of the date of this Agreement appears as Schedule 1.17 annexed hereto.
 

1.19 “Company Shares” means the Company’s shares of common stock, par value $0.0001 each.
 
1.20 [Reserved]
 
1.21 “Contracts” means the Leases and all other contracts, agreements, leases (including equipment leases, car leases and capital leases), licenses,

Permits, commitments, client contracts, statements of work (SOWs), sales and purchase orders and similar instruments, oral or written, to which any member
of the Company Group is a party or by which any of its respective assets are bound.

 
1.22 “Control” of a Person means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies

of such Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise. “Controlled”, “Controlling” and “under common Control with”
have correlative meanings. Without limiting the foregoing, a Person (the “Controlled Person”) shall be deemed Controlled by (a) any other Person (the “10%
Owner”) (i) owning beneficially, as meant in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, securities entitling such Person to cast 10% or more of the votes for
election of directors or equivalent governing authority of the Controlled Person or (ii) entitled to be allocated or receive 10% or more of the profits, losses, or
distributions of the Controlled Person; (b) an officer, director, general partner, partner (other than a limited partner), manager, or member (other than a
member having no management authority that is not a 10% Owner) of the Controlled Person; or (c) a spouse, parent, lineal descendant, sibling, aunt, uncle,
niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, or brother-in-law of an Affiliate of the Controlled Person or a trust for the benefit of an Affiliate of
the Controlled Person or of which an Affiliate of the Controlled Person is a trustee.

 
1.23 “Copyleft Terms” means any terms of a license commonly referred to as an open source, free Software, copyleft, or community source code

license (including any Software licensed under the GNU General Public License, GNU Lesser General Public License, Apache Software License, or any
other public source code license arrangement) or any similar license, in each case that require, as a condition of or in connection with any use, modification,
reproduction, or distribution of any Software licensed thereunder (or any proprietary Software or other Company Intellectual Property Rights that are used
by, incorporated into or includes, relies on, is linked to or with, is derived from, or is distributed with such Software), any of the following: (a) the disclosing,
making available, distribution, offering or delivering of source code or any information regarding such Software or other Company Intellectual Property
Rights for no or minimal charge; (b) the granting of permission for creating modifications to or derivative works of such Software or other Company
Intellectual Property Rights; (c) the granting of a royalty-free license, whether express, implied, by virtue of estoppel or otherwise, to any Person under
Intellectual Property Rights (including without limitation Patents) regarding such Software or other Company Intellectual Property Rights (whether alone or
in combination with other hardware or Software); or (d) the imposition of restrictions on future Patent licensing terms, or other abridgement or restriction of
the exercise or enforcement of any Intellectual Property Rights through any means.
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1.24 “DGCL” means the Delaware General Business Corporation Law.

 
1.25 “Environmental Laws” shall mean all Laws that prohibit, regulate or control any Hazardous Material or any Hazardous Material Activity,

including, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, the Resource Recovery and Conservation Act of 1976, the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, the Clean Air Act, the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act and the Clean Water Act.

 
1.26 “Equity Award” means the stock options and rights and restricted stock units to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock which options

are outstanding as of the date of this Agreement.
 
1.27 “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the regulations thereunder.
 
1.28 “Escrow Agent” means Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company which shall serve as escrow agent with respect to Indemnification

Escrow Agreement.
 
1.29 “Escrow Participant” means Salvatore Palella.
 
1.30 “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 
1.31 “Governmental Entity” means any domestic or non-U.S. legislative, administrative or regulatory authority, agency, commission, body, court or

other governmental or quasi-governmental entity of competent jurisdiction, including any supranational body.
 
1.32 “Hazardous Material” shall mean any material, emission, chemical, substance or waste that has been designated by any Authority to be

radioactive, toxic, hazardous, a pollutant or a contaminant.
 
1.33 “Hazardous Material Activity” shall mean the transportation, transfer, recycling, storage, use, treatment, manufacture, removal, remediation,

release, exposure of others to, sale, labeling, or distribution of any Hazardous Material or any product or waste containing a Hazardous Material, or product
manufactured with ozone depleting substances, including, any required labeling, payment of waste fees or charges (including so-called e-waste fees) and
compliance with any recycling, product take-back or product content requirements.

 
1.34 “Helbiz 2020 Option Plan” shall mean the Helbiz, Inc. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan.
 
1.35 “Indemnification Escrow Agreement” means an agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, between the Escrow

Participant, the Escrow Agent and the Purchaser with respect to the Indemnification Escrow Shares to reflect the terms set forth in Section 10.3.
 
1.36 “Indemnification Escrow Shares” means an aggregate of 1,600,000 shares of Purchaser issuable to the Escrow Participant at Closing and held

by the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Indemnification Escrow Agreement which shall serve to satisfy the indemnification obligations of the Escrow
Participant to the Purchaser pursuant to Article X. For purposes of clarity, the Indemnification Escrow Shares excludes any Company Securities which may
be held at Closing by, or issuable to, the PIPE Investors.

 
1.37 “IPO” means the initial public offering of Purchaser pursuant to a prospectus dated November 18, 2019 as filed under the Securities Act.
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1.38 “Indebtedness” means with respect to any Person, (a) all obligations of such Person for borrowed money under credit and debt facilities, or

with respect to deposits or advances of any kind (including amounts by reason of overdrafts and amounts owed by reason of letter of credit reimbursement
agreements), including with respect thereto, all interests, fees and costs, (b) all obligations of such Person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar
instruments, (c) all obligations of such Person under conditional sale or other title retention agreements relating to property purchased by such Person, (d) all
obligations of such Person issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of property or services (other than accounts payable to creditors for goods and
services incurred in the ordinary course of business), (e) all indebtedness of others secured by (or for which the holder of such Indebtedness has an existing
right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any lien or security interest on property owned or acquired by such Person, whether or not the obligations
secured thereby have been assumed, (f) all guarantees by such Person, (g) all liability of such Person with respect to any hedging obligations, including
interest rate or currency exchange swaps, collars, caps or similar hedging obligations, and (h) any agreement to incur any of the same. For informational
purposes, Indebtedness shall include any loans that are not carried as tangible liabilities on the Financial Statements on a stand-alone basis (whether or not
such liabilities are included in the footnotes to the Financial Statements).

 
1.39 “Intellectual Property Rights” means any and all intellectual property or industrial property rights existing, created, arising, or protected under

applicable Law anywhere in the world, including all rights, title, and interest in and to any and all: (a) trademarks, service marks, certification marks, brand
names, slogans, logos, symbols, trade dress, trade names, corporate and business names, social media identifiers and related accounts, and other indicia of
source or origin, all applications and registrations for the foregoing, and all goodwill associated therewith and symbolized thereby, including all renewals of
the same (collectively, “Trademarks”); (b) patents, patent applications, patentable inventions, invention disclosures and other patent rights, including
provisionals, extensions, divisionals, continuations, continuations-in-part, re-issues, re-examinations, interferences, and counterparts thereof (collectively,
“Patents”); (c) confidential information, trade secrets, inventions, know-how, processes, procedures, ideas, research and development, formulas,
compositions, algorithms, source code, object code, technology, data and databases, manufacturing and production processes and techniques, specifications,
prototypes, models, designs, drawings, customer lists and supplier lists, pricing and cost information, and business and marketing plans and proposals; (d)
published and unpublished works of authorship, whether copyrightable or not (including Software, website and mobile content, data, databases and other
compilations of information), copyrights, design and database rights, and registrations and applications for any of the foregoing and all renewals, extensions,
restorations and reversions thereof, and all moral rights associated with any of the foregoing (collectively, “Copyrights”); (e) mask works and all
applications, registrations, and renewals in connection therewith; (f) Internet domain names and URLs; (g) rights recognized under applicable Law that are
equivalent or similar to any of the foregoing, including: any and all rights of any kind whatsoever accruing under any of the foregoing provided by applicable
law of any jurisdiction, by international treaties and conventions, and otherwise throughout the world; any and all royalties, fees, income, payments, and
other proceeds now or hereafter due or payable with respect to any and all of the foregoing; and any and all claims and causes of action with respect to any of
the foregoing and all rights to and claims for damages, restitution, and injunctive and other legal and equitable relief for past, present, and future
infringement, dilution, misappropriation, or other violation of the foregoing; (h) copies and tangible embodiments thereof (in whatever form or medium); and
(i) and all embodiments and fixations thereof and related documentation and registrations and all additions, improvements and accessions thereto, and with
respect to each of the forgoing items in this definition, which is owned or licensed or filed by any member of the Company Group, or used or held for use in
the Business, whether registered or unregistered or domestic or foreign.
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1.40 “Inventory” is defined in the UCC.
 
1.41 “Law” means any domestic or foreign, federal, state, municipality or local law, statute, ordinance, code, rule, or regulation.
 
1.42 “Leases” means the leases set forth on Schedule 1.42 attached hereto, together with all fixtures and improvements erected on the premises

leased thereby.
 
1.43 “Lien” means, with respect to any property or asset, any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or encumbrance of any kind in respect

of such property or asset, and any conditional sale or voting agreement or proxy, including any agreement to give any of the foregoing.
 
1.44 “Material Adverse Effect” or “Material Adverse Change” means a material adverse change or a material adverse effect upon the assets,

liabilities, financial condition, net worth, management, earnings, cash flows, business, operations or properties of the Company Group and the Business,
taken as a whole, provided, however, that “Material Adverse Effect” or “Material Adverse Change” shall not include any event, occurrence, fact, condition or
change, directly or indirectly, arising out of or attributable to: (i) general economic or political conditions; (ii) conditions generally affecting the industries in
which the Company operates; (iii) any changes in financial, banking or securities markets in general, including any disruption thereof and any decline in the
price of any security or any market index or any change in prevailing interest rates; (iv) acts of war (whether or not declared), armed hostilities or terrorism,
or the escalation or worsening thereof; (v) any action required or permitted by this Agreement or any action taken (or omitted to be taken) with the written
consent of or at the written request of Purchaser; (vi) any changes in applicable Laws or accounting rules (including U.S. GAAP) or the enforcement,
implementation or interpretation thereof; (vii) the announcement, pendency or completion of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (provided, that
the exception in this subclause (vii) shall not apply to any representation or warranty contained in Sections 4.3, 4.4 or 4.10 or to the determination of whether
any inaccuracy in such representations or warranties would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect for purposes of Sections 12.2(b)); or
(viii) any natural or man-made disaster or acts of God; except, in the case of subclauses (i), (ii), (iv), (vi) and (viii), to the extent such change, event,
circumstance or effect has a disproportionate adverse effect on such entity as compared to other Persons engaged in the same industry.

 
1.45 “Order” means any decree, order, judgment, writ, award, injunction, rule or consent of or by an Authority.
 
1.46 “Permitted Liens” means (i) all defects, exceptions, restrictions, easements, rights of way and encumbrances disclosed in policies of title

insurance which have been made available to Purchaser; (ii) mechanics’, carriers’, workers’, repairers’ and similar statutory Liens arising or incurred in the
ordinary course of business for amounts (A) that are not delinquent, (B) that are not material to the business, operations and financial condition of the
Company so encumbered, either individually or in the aggregate, and (C) not resulting from a breach, default or violation by the Company Group of any
Contract or Law; (iii) liens for Taxes not yet due and payable or which are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings (and for which adequate
accruals or reserves have been established on the Financial Statements), and (iv) the Liens set forth on Schedule 4.14(c).

 
1.47 “Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership (including a general partnership, limited partnership or limited liability partnership),

limited liability company, association, trust or other entity or organization, including a government, domestic or foreign, or political subdivision thereof, or an
agency or instrumentality thereof.

 
1.48 “Personal Information” means any information that relates, to, describes, identifies, could reasonably be used to identify, or could reasonably

be linked directly or indirectly with an individual, browser household or device, including an individual’s combined first and last name, address, telephone
number, fax number, email address, social security number or other identifier issued by a Governmental Entity (including any state identification number,
driver’s license number, or passport number), geolocation information of an individual or device, biometric data, medical or health information, credit card or
other financial information (including bank account information), cookie identifiers, or any other browser-or device-specific number or identifier, or any web
or mobile browsing or usage information that is linked to the foregoing.
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1.49 “PIPE Investors” means those certain third-party investors that have entered into subscription agreements with the Purchaser on terms

acceptable to the Company and Purchaser (the “Subscription Agreements”) pursuant to which such third-party investors have committed to make the PIPE
Investment at a purchase price of $10.00 for purchase of (i) one share of Common Stock of Purchaser and (ii) one PIPE Investor Warrant, in an aggregate
amount of at least $30,000,000.

 
1.50 “PIPE Investor Warrants” means the Warrants that will be included as part of each PIPE Investment entitling the holder thereof to purchase one

share of Common Stock of Purchaser at an exercise price of $11.50 per share.
 
1.51 “PIPE Investment” means the private investment in Purchaser as a public company by the PIPE Investors in the form of Common Stock of

Purchaser and PIPE Investor Warrants, in an aggregate amount of at least $30,000,000.
 
1.52 [Reserved].

 
1.53 “Predecessor” means an entity whose ownership, title and interest, including all rights, benefits, duties and liabilities were acquired in an

uninterrupted chain of succession by the Company.
 
1.54 “Preferred A Shares” means the Company’s Series A Preferred Shares par value $0.0001 each.
 
1.55 “Preferred B Shares” means the Company’s Series B Preferred Shares, par value $0.0001 each.
 
1.56 “[Reserved].
 
1.57 “Public Official” means any Person employed by, representing or acting on behalf of a Governmental Entity or enterprise thereof (including a

state-owned or state-controlled enterprise) or a public international organization, any representative or official of a political party or any candidate for any
political office.

 
1.58 “Purchaser Common Stock” means the common stock of Purchaser, par value $0.00001 per share, inclusive of any amendments to the

Purchaser Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to adopt a Purchaser Class A Common Stock and the Purchaser Class B Common Stock prior
to the Closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

 
1.59 “Purchaser Merger Shares” means, subject to any adjustments pursuant to Section 3.1 hereof, an aggregate number of shares of Purchaser

Common Stock including Purchaser Class A Common Stock and Purchaser Class B Common Stock, issuable to the pre-Closing holders of Company
Securities, representing without any duplication (i) shares issuable upon exchange of Company Securities, inclusive of the reservation of shares for the
exchange and exercise of the Company Notes, the Company Options and Company Warrants and (ii) the Indemnification Escrow Shares, which shall be
determined by subtracting the total amount of Closing Net Debt from $300,000,000 and then dividing such difference by $10.
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1.60 “Purchaser Private Warrants” means the 2,100,000 warrants issued in private placements at the time of consummation of the Purchaser’s IPO,

entitling the holder thereof to purchase one share of Purchaser Common Stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share.
 
1.61 “Purchaser Public Warrants” means the 5,750,000 warrants that were included in as part of each Purchaser Unit in the aggregate, issued in the

Purchaser’s IPO, entitling the holder thereof to purchase one share of Purchaser Common Stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share.
 
1.62 “Purchaser Rights” means the rights that were included in as part of each Purchaser Unit issued in the Purchaser’s IPO to purchase 1/10th of a

share of Purchaser Common Stock.
 
1.63 “Purchaser Warrant” shall mean each Purchaser Private Warrant and Purchaser Public Warrant, inclusive of warrants issued by Purchaser to the

underwriter of its initial public offering.
 
1.65 “Purchaser Unit” means a unit of the Purchaser issued in the Purchaser’s IPO comprised of (a) one share of Purchaser Common Stock and (b)

one warrant to purchase one share of Purchaser Common Stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share and (c) one right to purchase 1/10th of a share of
Purchaser Common Stock.

 
1.66 “Real Property” means, collectively, all real properties and interests therein (including the right to use), together with all buildings, fixtures,

trade fixtures, plant and other improvements located thereon or attached thereto; all rights arising out of use thereof (including air, water, oil and mineral
rights); and all subleases, franchises, licenses, permits, easements and rights-of-way which are appurtenant thereto.

 
1.67 “Reference Time” means the close of business of the Company on the business day immediately prior to the Closing Date (but without giving

effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including any payments by Purchaser hereunder to occur at the Closing, but treating any
obligations in respect of Indebtedness or other liabilities that are contingent upon the consummation of the Closing as currently due and owing without
contingency as of such time).

 
1.68 “Registration Rights Agreement” means the agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, governing the resale pursuant to

a registration statement to be filed under the Securities Act of all shares of Purchaser Common Stock issuable to the Company’s Shareholders pursuant to this
Agreement.

 
1.69 “Release” means any releasing, spilling, emitting, leaking, pumping, pouring, injection, escaping, depositing, disposing, emptying, discharging,

dispersing, dumping, leaching or migration of any Hazardous Materials into, onto, in, on or through the indoor or outdoor environment, including relating to
any landfill, basin, subsurface or aboveground pipeline or other structure, wetland, quarry or natural resource (including the abandonment or disposal of any
barrels, containers or other closed receptacles containing any Hazardous Materials), including the movement of any Hazardous Materials through indoor or
outdoor air, soil, subsurface strata, sediment, surface water or groundwater.

 
1.70 “Sarbanes-Oxley Act” means the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended.
 
1.71 “SEC” means the United States’ Securities and Exchange Commission.
 

9 



 

 
1.72 “Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
 
1.73 “Shareholder” means each Person who holds shares of Company Capital Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time.
 
1.74 “Software” and all (a) computer programs, applications, middleware, firmware, microcode and other software (and all derivative works,

foreign language versions, enhancements, versions, releases, fixes, upgrades and updates thereto), including operating systems, algorithms, heuristics, models
and methodologies, compilations, development tools, compilers, comments, user interfaces, menus, buttons and icons, application programming interfaces,
files, data scripts, architecture, algorithms, and higher level or “proprietary” languages, in each case, whether in source code, object code or other form or
format, including code, libraries, subroutines and other components thereof, all documentation relating thereto; (b) testing, validation, verification and quality
assurance materials; (c) databases, conversions, interpreters and compilations, including any and all data and collections of data, whether machine readable or
otherwise; (d) descriptions, schematics, flow-charts and other work product used to design, plan, organize and develop any of the foregoing; (e) all
documentation, including user manuals, web materials and architectural and design specifications and training materials, relating to any of the foregoing; (f)
software development processes, practices, methods and policies recorded in permanent form, relating to any of the foregoing; (g) performance metrics,
sightings, bug and feature lists, build, release and change control manifests recorded in permanent form, relating to any of the foregoing; and (h) all media
and other tangible property necessary for the delivery or transfer of any of the foregoing.

 
1.75 “Subsidiary” means each entity of which at least fifty percent (50%) of the capital stock or other equity or voting securities are, as of the date of

this Agreement and required to be under the conditions to Closing as set forth under Article IX hereof, as of the Closing, Controlled or owned, directly or
indirectly, by the Company, which for the avoidance of doubt shall include any variable interest entity through which all or a portion of the Business is
conducted. With respect to the Company, its direct and indirect subsidiaries as of the date of this Agreement and Closing are listed on Schedule 1.75, which
Schedule includes a statement setting forth the amount of such direct and indirect equity ownership by the Company.

 
1.76 [Reserved].
 
1.77 “Tangible Personal Property” means all tangible personal property and interests therein, including machinery, computers and accessories,

furniture, office equipment, communications equipment, automobiles, laboratory equipment and other equipment owned or leased by the Company Group
and other tangible property, including the items listed on Schedule 4.14(a).

 
1.78 “Tax(es)” means any federal, state, local or foreign tax, charge, fee, levy, custom, duty, deficiency, or other assessment of any kind or nature

imposed by any Taxing Authority (including any income (net or gross), gross receipts, profits, windfall profit, sales, use, goods and services, ad valorem,
franchise, license, withholding, employment, social security, workers compensation, unemployment compensation, employment, payroll, transfer, excise,
import, real property, personal property, intangible property, occupancy, recording, minimum, alternative minimum, environmental), together with any
interest, penalty, additions to tax or additional amount imposed with respect thereto.

 
1.79 “Taxing Authority” means the Internal Revenue Service and any other Authority responsible or the collection, assessment or imposition of any

Tax or the administration of any Law relating to any Tax.
 
1.80 “Tax Return” means any return, information return, declaration, claim for refund or credit, report or any similar statement, and any amendment

thereto, including any attached schedule and supporting information, whether on a separate, consolidated, combined, unitary or other basis, that is filed or
required to be filed with any Taxing Authority in connection with the determination, assessment, collection or payment of a Tax or the administration of any
Law relating to any Tax.
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1.81 “UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of Delaware, or any corresponding or succeeding provisions of Laws of the State of

Delaware, or any corresponding or succeeding provisions of Laws, in each case as the same may have been and hereafter may be adopted, supplemented,
modified, amended, restated or replaced from time to time.

 
1.82 [Reserved].
 
1.83 “U.S. GAAP” means U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied.
 

ARTICLE II
MERGER

 
2.1 Merger. At the Effective Time, in accordance with Section 251 of the DGCL, the Merger Sub shall be merged with and into the Company and

the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub shall cease and the Company shall be the surviving corporation. The Company Securities held by or
beneficially owned by, the Company Securityholders, including any holders of Company Options or Company Warrants to be exchanged pursuant to Section
3.1 below shall thereafter represent an aggregate number of Purchaser Merger Shares, subject to any adjustment pursuant to Section 3.1 hereof. The
Purchaser Merger Shares issuable at closing shall be issued pro rata to the Company Securityholders based upon their holdings as set forth on Schedule 1.17.
As a result of the Merger, the Company shall (a) become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Purchaser, and continue to be governed by the Laws of the State of
Delaware and (b) the Subsidiaries of the Company shall thereafter be indirect subsidiaries of Purchaser.

 
2.2 Merger Effective Date. The parties hereto shall, in coordination with each other, inform the Secretary of State of under the DGCL that all

conditions to the Merger of the Merger Sub with and into the Company under DGCL and this Agreement have been satisfied and completed (together with
any other documentation required to be submitted to the Delaware Secretary of State, whether under this Agreement or the Merger Proposal (the “Certificate
of Merger”), by the Delaware Secretary of State or otherwise) and setting forth the proposed date for the date of effectiveness of the Merger on which the
Delaware Secretary of State is requested to issue a certificate evidencing the Merger in accordance with Section 251 of the DGCL. The Merger shall become
effective upon the date set forth in the Certificate of Merger in accordance with Section 251 of the DGCL (the time at which the Merger becomes effective is
referred to herein as the “Effective Time”). For the avoidance of doubt, the parties intend that the Merger shall be declared effective and that the issuance by
the Delaware Secretary of State of a Certificate of Merger shall both occur on, or as soon as practically possible before, the Closing Date (as defined below).

 
2.3 Effect of the Merger. At the Effective Time, the effect of the Merger shall be as provided in this Agreement, the Certificate of Merger and the

applicable provisions of the DGCL. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, and subject thereto, at the Effective Time, all the property, rights,
privileges, agreements, powers and franchises, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Company and Merger Sub shall become the property, rights,
privileges, agreements, powers and franchises, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Surviving Corporation, which shall include the assumption by
the Surviving Corporation of any and all agreements, covenants, duties and obligations of the Company and the Merger Sub set forth in this Agreement to be
performed after the Closing. The Merger Sub shall be merged with and into the Company, and the separate corporate existence of the Merger Sub will cease,
and the Company will thereafter be a wholly owned subsidiary of the Purchaser, all as provided under the DGCL and the provisions of this Agreement. For
the avoidance of doubt, (i) the Purchaser Common Stock, Purchaser Warrants, Purchaser Rights and Purchaser Private Warrants shall survive the Merger and
remain in effect without any change to their existing terms and (ii) all issued and outstanding Company Securities shall be terminated and converted and
represent the right to receive Purchaser Merger Shares pursuant to Section 3.1(c), (d) or (e) below.
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2.4 U.S. Tax Treatment. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Merger is intended to constitute a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section

368(a)(1)(B) of the Code. The parties hereto adopt this Agreement as a “plan of reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a)(2)(E) of the United
States Treasury Regulations. The parties to this Agreement hereby agree to (i) file and retain such information as shall be required under Section 1.368-3 of
the United States Treasury regulations, and (ii) all Tax and other informational returns on a basis consistent with such characterization. Notwithstanding the
foregoing or anything else to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the parties acknowledge and agree that no party is making any representation or
warranty as to the qualification of the Merger as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Code or as to the effect, if any, that any transaction consummated
on, after or prior to the Effective Time has or may have on any such reorganization status. Each of the parties acknowledge and agree that each such party
and each of the Shareholders of the Company (x) has had the opportunity to obtain independent legal and tax advice with respect to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, and (y) is responsible for paying its own Taxes, including any adverse Tax consequences that may result if the Merger is
determined not to qualify as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Code.

 
2.5 Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of Surviving Corporation. At the Effective Time, the certificate of incorporation of the Company as in

effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall cease to have effect and the certificate of incorporation of the Merger Sub (as amended, the “Charter
Documents”), as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the Charter Documents of the Surviving Corporation, except that the name of the
Surviving Corporation shall remain as Helbiz, Inc. At the Effective Time, and without any further action on the part of the Company or Merger Sub, the
bylaws of the Merger Sub shall be the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation, except that the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation shall be amended to reflect
the intended name of the Company.

 
2.6 Closing; Effective Time. Unless this Agreement is earlier terminated in accordance with Article XII, the closing of the Merger (the “Closing”)

shall take place at the offices of Becker & Poliakoff, LLP, 45 Broadway, 17th Floor, New York, New York 10006 at 10:00 a.m. local time, on the third (3rd)
Business Day after the satisfaction or waiver (to the extent permitted by applicable law) of the conditions set forth in Article IX or at such other time, date
and location as the Purchaser and Company agree in writing. The parties may participate in the Closing via electronic means. The date on which the Closing
actually occurs is hereinafter referred to as the “Closing Date”.
 

2.7 Board of Directors of Purchaser. Immediately after the Closing, the Purchaser’s board of directors will consist of five (5) directors. Initially and
effective at Closing, the Purchaser shall have the right to appoint one (1) director and the Shareholders of the Company shall have the right to appoint up to
four (4) directors. The two new independent directors of Purchaser effective at the Closing shall be mutually approved by the Parties hereto prior to filing of
the Proxy Statement with the SEC. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Company and Purchaser acknowledge and agree that the Board of Directors
of Purchaser (and each committee of the Board of Directors when required) shall include (i) a majority of “independent directors” as determined in
accordance with the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market Inc. (“Nasdaq”) and (ii) at least one financial expert as determined in accordance with the rules of
Nasdaq and the SEC.
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2.8 PIPE Investment. At the Closing, the PIPE Investors and Purchaser shall consummate the PIPE Investment pursuant to and in accordance with

the terms of the applicable Subscription Agreements.
 
2.9 Taking of Necessary Action; Further Action. If, at any time after the Closing, any further action is necessary or desirable to carry out the

purposes of this Agreement and to vest the Surviving Corporation with full right, title and interest in, to and under, and/or possession of, all assets, property,
rights, privileges, powers and franchises of the Company and the Merger Sub, the officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation are fully authorized in
the name and on behalf of the Company and the Merger Sub, to take all lawful action necessary or desirable to accomplish such purpose or acts, so long as
such action is not inconsistent with this Agreement.

 
2.10 No Further Ownership Rights in Company Capital Stock and Company Securities. At the Effective Time, the register of stockholders of the

Company shall be closed and thereafter there shall be no further registration of transfers of Company Securities on the records of the Company. From and
after the Effective Time, the holders of certificates evidencing ownership of Company Securities of any kind or nature outstanding immediately prior to the
Effective Time shall cease to have any rights with respect to such Company Securities or Company Capital Stock, except as otherwise provided for herein or
by Law.

 
2.10 Rights Not Transferable. The rights of the holders of Company Capital Stock as of immediately prior to the Effective Time are personal to each

such holder and shall not be assignable or otherwise transferable for any reason (except by will or by the operation of the laws of descent after the death of a
natural holder thereof). Any attempted transfer of such right by any holder thereof (otherwise than as permitted by the immediately preceding sentence) shall
be null and void.

 
ARTICLE III

EXCHANGE CONSIDERATION; MONETARY DEPOSIT
 
3.1 Exchange Consideration.

 
(a) (i) Subject to and upon the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, the Purchaser shall issue the Purchaser Merger Shares to

the holders of Company Capital Stock as of the Effective Time, in full payment for the Company Capital Stock (subject to the provisions for the
Indemnification Escrow Shares pursuant to Section 3.1(j) below) of which all of Purchaser Merger Shares shall be issued in exchange for all Company
Securities pro rata to the Company’s Securityholders based upon Schedule 1.17 (as may be updated and mutually agreed prior to the Closing Date), provided
that any shares of Company Class A Common Stock shall be exchanged for shares of Purchaser Class A Common Stock and any shares of Company Class B
Common Stock shall be exchanged for shares of Purchaser Class B Common Stock, provided further, however, that the holder of Purchaser Class B Common
Stock shall represent no more than 60% of all voting securities of Purchaser at the Closing on a fully-diluted basis (which shall include the exercise of all
Purchaser Warrants and all PIPE Investor Warrants) for a period of no more than twenty-four (24) months following the Closing of the Merger
 

(ii) Closing Statement. Not later than five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to Purchaser a statement
certified by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company (the “Estimated Closing Statement”) setting forth (a) an estimated
consolidated balance sheet of the Company Group as of the Reference Time, prepared in good faith and in accordance with the GAAP, and (b) a good faith
calculation of the Company’s estimate of the Closing Net Debt as of the Reference Time and along with reasonably detailed calculations, which Estimated
Closing Statement shall be subject to the review and approval by Purchaser. Promptly after delivering the Estimated Closing Statement to Purchaser, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company will meet with Purchaser to review and discuss the Estimated Closing Statement and the
Company will consider in good faith Purchaser’s comments to the Estimated Closing Statement and make applicable adjustments to the Estimated Closing
Statement, subject to review and approval by Purchaser and the Company prior to the Closing. The adjusted Closing Statement (“Final Closing Statement”)
shall thereafter be deemed the final Closing Statement for all purposes of this Agreement. The Final Closing Statement and the determinations contained
therein shall be prepared in accordance with the U.S. GAAP and otherwise in accordance with this Agreement. The Final Closing Statement will also include
(i) with respect to any Closing Net Debt, the amount owed to each creditor of any of the members of the Company Group and, the payoff amount to be
satisfied at the Closing, payment instructions, together with payoff and lien release letters from each Company Group creditors in form and substance
reasonably acceptable to Purchaser, and (ii) expenses related to the Merger and other transaction contemplated by this Agreement, the amount owed to each
payee thereof and payment instructions
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(b) [Reserved].

 
(c) Conversion of Company Securities. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of Purchaser,

Merger Sub, the Company or the Company Securityholders, each share of Company Capital Stock and any rights to acquire Company Capital Stock issued
and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be canceled and automatically converted into the right to receive, without interest, a number of
shares of Purchaser Merger Shares (including Purchaser Class A Common Stock and Purchaser Class B Common Stock, as may be applicable) equal to the
Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio as set forth on Schedule 3.1(c), in each case, subject to Section 3.1(d) and (e) and Section 10.3 below.
 

(d) Treatment of Company Options and Company Warrants. Prior to the Effective Time, the board of directors of the Company and
Purchaser, (or if appropriate, any duly authorized committee thereof) shall, as applicable, take all corporate actions necessary, including adopting appropriate
resolutions and obtaining consents of option holders if required, to provide that, prior to the Effective Time, each outstanding Company Option or Company
Warrant, whether vested or unvested, shall be treated as follows:
 

(i) Vested Company Options. Each Company Option which is vested and exercisable prior the Effective Time shall either be,
immediately prior to the Effective Time (i) exercised, upon payment of the requisite exercise price by the holder thereof, for Company Shares or (ii)
cancelled and terminated. The Company Shares issued upon exercise of the vested Company Options shall thereafter be exchanged for Purchaser Merger
Shares at the Effective Time after giving effect to the Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio (and subject to the lockup restrictions under Section 7.4
hereof).

 
(ii) Unvested Company Options. At the Closing, each Company Option which is not vested as of the Effective Time shall be

cancelled and terminated.
 

(iii) Company Warrants. Each Company Warrant, whether vested or unvested, shall be cancelled and exercised for Company
Shares at the exercise price prevailing for each Company Warrant prior to the Closing. At the Effective Time, such Company Shares shall be exchanged for
shares of Purchaser Common Stock at the Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio (subject to the lockup restrictions under Section 7.4 hereof). Further, any
fractional shares will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock. Following such exchange for shares of Purchaser
Common Stock, each Company Warrant shall be cancelled and of no further force and effect. Any Company Warrant not exercised for Company Shares prior
to the Closing shall at the Effective Time be cancelled and of no further force and effect.
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(e) Treatment of Preferred Stock. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company, Merger Sub and the Purchaser (or if appropriate, any duly

authorized committee thereof) shall, as applicable, take all corporate actions necessary, including adopting appropriate resolutions and obtaining consents of
holders of Company preferred stock if required, to provide that, prior to the Effective Time, each outstanding shares of Company Preferred A Shares and
Preferred B Shares shall be converted into Company Common Stock or terminated, and shall of no further full force and effect as of the Effective Time. Any
fractional share will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock.
 

(f) Treatment of Company Notes. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall take all corporate actions necessary, including adopting
appropriate resolutions and obtaining consents of holders of Company Notes, if required, to provide that, prior to the Effective Time, each Company Note
shall either be (i) converted into Company Shares or (ii) repaid and cancelled and following such repayment, shall be of no further force and effect.
 

(g) Conversion of Shares of Merger Sub. Each share of Merger Sub that is issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time
will, by virtue of the Merger and without further action on the part of the shareholders of Merger Sub, be converted into and become shares of the Surviving
Corporation and Purchaser shall be the sole stockholder of the Surviving Corporation.
 

(h) Treatment of Company Securities Owned by the Company. At the Effective Time, all Company Securities that are owned by the
Company as treasury shares immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be canceled and extinguished without any conversion thereof.
 

(i) No Liability. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 3.1, no party hereto shall be liable to any person for any amount
properly paid to a public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law.
 

(j) Indemnification Escrow Shares. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the other provisions of this Section 3.1, Purchaser shall
withhold from the shares of Purchaser Merger Shares otherwise issuable to the Escrow Participant pursuant to this Section 3.1 such number of shares of
Purchaser Common Stock as determined in accordance with Section 1.36.

 
(k) Ownership of Company Securities. No later than ten (10) days prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to Purchaser a final

Schedule 1.17, which shall set forth, as of the immediately prior to the Effective Time, the following information: (i) the name of each Company
Securityholder, (ii) the number and kind of each Company Security held by each Company Securityholder, including, if applicable, the number of Company
Shares issuable upon exercise or conversion of such Company Security and the exercise price per share for such Company Security, (iii) the vesting
arrangements with respect to each Company Security held by such Company Securityholder (including the vesting schedule, vesting commencement date,
date fully vested and the extent to which such Company Security is vested as of the Closing), (iv) the total number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock
issuable pursuant to Section 3.1(a) in respect of each Company Security held by such Company Securityholder; (v) the total number of shares of Purchaser
Common Stock issuable upon exercise or conversion of each Company Security held by such Company Securityholder following the assumption by
Purchaser of such Company Security pursuant to Section 3.1(d) and the respective exercise price per share applicable to such Company Security following
such assumption; and (vi) the number of Indemnification Escrow Shares deposited into the Escrow Account on behalf of such Company Securityholder
pursuant to Section 3.1(j) and Section 10.3.
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3.2 Surrender of Company Securities; Issuance of Closing Purchaser Merger Shares.
 

(a) Surrender of Certificates. All Purchaser Merger Shares issued upon the surrender of Company Securities in accordance with the terms
hereof, shall be deemed to have been issued in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining to such Company Securities.

 
(b) Lost or Destroyed Certificates. In the event any certificates representing Company Securities shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed,

the Purchaser shall issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificates or securities, as the case may be, upon the making of an affidavit of that
fact by the holder thereof (without the requirement to post a bond), such securities, as may be required pursuant to this Section 3.2 and Section 10.3.
 

(c) No certificates or scrip representing fractional shares of Purchaser Merger Share will be issued pursuant to the Merger, including with
respect to any release of the Escrow Shares pursuant to Section 3.1(j) and the Indemnification Escrow Agreement and such fractional share interests will not
entitle the owner thereof to vote or to any rights of a shareholder of the Purchaser. All fractional shares of Purchaser Merger Shares will be rounded down to
the nearest whole share of Purchaser Common Stock.

 
(d) Legend. Each certificate representing shares of Purchaser Merger Share issued pursuant to this Agreement shall bear the legend set

forth below, or legend substantially equivalent thereto, together with any other legends that may be required by any securities Laws at the time of the
issuance of the Purchaser Common Stock:
 

THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED
STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”) OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER
JURISDICTION, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED UNLESS
AND UNTIL (I) SUCH OFFER, SALE, TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR HYPOTHECATION HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE ACT AND
THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION COVERING SUCH SECURITIES OR (II) THE ISSUER OF THE
SHARES OF COMMON STOCK HAS RECEIVED AN OPINION OF COUNSEL IN FORM AND SUBSTANCE SATISFACTORY TO THE
ISSUER THAT SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR HYPOTHECATION IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT AND SUCH
OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS.

 
THE SHARES PRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE RESTRICTED AND MAY ONLY BE TRANSFERRED TO QUALIFIED PARTIES
APPROVED BY THE COMPANY AND CONTINUE TO BE RESTRICTED POST SUCH APPROVED TRANSFERS. THESE SHARES ARE
NOT ELIGIBLE FOR REGISTRATION UNTIL TWELVE (12) MONTHS AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE INIITIAL ISSUANCE
DATE ON THIS CERTIFICATE.
 
3.3 Company Deposit. Simultaneously with execution of this Agreement, the Company shall deposit, or cause to be deposited, with Purchaser in its

operating bank account (Purchaser has provided account instructions) by wire transfer of immediately available funds the sum of $750,000 (the “Transaction
Deposit”). In the event of termination of this Agreement, Purchaser shall have the right, without further action, to retain the full amount of the Company
Deposit. In the event that Purchaser is entitled to terminate this Agreement and receive the Break-Up Fee as provided in Section 12.5 below, the amount of
the Break-Up Fee payment shall be reduced by the Transaction Deposit paid hereunder

 
3.4 Withholding Rights and Tax Rulings. The Company, Purchaser or any Person acting on their behalf (each, a “Payor”), shall be entitled to deduct

and withhold from any consideration payable or otherwise deliverable pursuant to this Agreement such amounts as are required to be deducted and withheld
therefrom under any applicable provision of federal, local or foreign Tax law or under any applicable legal requirements (including, for the avoidance of
doubt, the regulation of withholding from assets and services). To the extent such amounts are so deducted and withheld and remitted to the applicable Tax
authority, such amounts shall be treated for all purposes under this Agreement as having been paid to the Person to whom such amounts would otherwise
have been paid (each, a “Payee”), and the Payor shall promptly provide the applicable Payee with a document evidencing the amount so withheld and
remitted to the Tax authority with respect to the payment made to such Payee.
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ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
OF THE COMPANY GROUP AND THE SHAREHOLDERS’ REPRESENTATIVE

 
Except as set forth in the disclosure schedules delivered by the Company Group to the Purchaser prior to the execution of this Agreement which

disclosure schedules shall be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to Purchaser (the “Disclosure Schedule”), each of (i) the Company Group and (ii)
the Shareholders’ Representative on behalf of the Company Shareholders hereby represents and warrants to Purchaser and Merger Sub that each of the
following representations and warranties are true, correct and complete as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date.

 
4.1 Corporate Existence and Power. The Company is a company duly incorporated, validly existing under the Laws of the State of Delaware. The

Company has all power and authority, corporate and otherwise, and all governmental licenses, franchises, Permits, authorizations, consents and approvals
required to own and operate its properties and assets and to carry on the Business as presently conducted and as proposed to be conducted, except where the
failure to have any license, franchise, permits, authorizations, permits, authorizations consents and approvals, would not have a Material Adverse Effect. The
Company has the corporate power and authority to own or lease all of its properties and assets and to carry on its Business as it is now being conducted, and
is duly licensed or qualified to do business in each jurisdiction in which such properties are owned or leased by it or the operation of its Business as currently
conducted makes such licensing or qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so licensed or qualified would not have a Material Adverse Effect.
The Company and its Subsidiaries have offices located only at the addresses set forth on Schedule 4.1.

 
4.2 Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the Additional Agreements and the

consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are within the corporate powers of the Company and have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company. This Agreement constitutes, and, upon their execution and delivery, each of the
Additional Agreements will constitute, a valid and legally binding agreement of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with their
respective terms, except as may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally and by general principles of equity. The Company Board of Directors, by resolutions duly adopted (and not thereafter modified or rescinded) by the
unanimous vote of the Company Board of Directors, has (i) approved this Agreement and the other Transactions and determined that this Agreement and the
Transactions, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, advisable, fair to and in the best interests of the Company and the Company
Shareholders, (ii) approved this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of DGCL and the Charter Documents and (iii) directed that the adoption of this
Agreement be submitted to the Company Shareholders for consideration and unanimously recommended that all of the Company Shareholders adopt this
Agreement. The affirmative vote of more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting power of the Shareholders who are present in person or by proxy at such
meeting and voting thereon or participated by written consent shall be required by the Company to approve the transactions contemplated by this Agreement
by the Shareholders (the “Company Shareholder Approval”). The Company has duly obtained the Company Shareholder Approval for this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby in accordance with the provisions of DGCL and the Charter Documents.
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4.3 Governmental Authorization. The Business of the Company has been, and is being, conducted in compliance in all material respects of all

applicable Laws. The Company has not received any written communication alleging any material noncompliance with any such Laws that has not been
cured. The Company has obtained and is in compliance in all material respects with all material permits, licenses, certifications, approvals, registrations,
consents, authorizations, franchises, variances, exemptions and orders issued or granted by a Governmental Entity necessary to conduct its Business as
presently conducted. Except for the approvals listed on Schedule 4.3, neither the execution, delivery nor performance by the Company of this Agreement or
any Additional Agreements requires any consent, approval, license, order or other action by or in respect of, or registration, declaration or filing with, any
Authority as a result of the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements or the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby (each of the foregoing, a “Governmental Approval”).

 
4.4 Non-Contravention. None of the execution, delivery or performance by the Company of this Agreement or any Additional Agreements does or

will (a) contravene or conflict with the organizational or constitutive documents of any member of the Company Group, (b) contravene or conflict with or
constitute a violation of any provision of any Law or Order binding upon or applicable to the Company Group, (c) except for the Contracts listed on Schedule
4.16(a) requiring Company Consents (but only as to the need to obtain such Company Consents), constitute a default under or breach of (with or without the
giving of notice or the passage of time or both) or violate or give rise to any right of termination, cancellation, amendment or acceleration of any right or
obligation of the Company Group or require any payment or reimbursement or to a loss of any material benefit relating to the Business to which the
Company Group are entitled under any provision of any Permit, Contract or other instrument or obligations binding upon the Company Group or by which
any of the Company Capital Stock or any of the Company Group’s assets is or may be bound or any Permit, (d) result in the creation or imposition of any
Lien on any of the Company Capital Stock, (e) cause a loss of any material benefit relating to the Business to which the Company Group are entitled under
any provision of any Permit or Contract binding upon the Company Group, (f) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien (except for Permitted Liens) on
any of the Company Group’s assets, or (g) require any consent, approval or waiver from any Person pursuant to any provision of the Charter Documents,
except for such consent, approval or waiver which shall be obtained prior to the Closing.

 
4.5 Capitalization. The Company’s authorized and issued equity and debt capital is described on Schedule 4.5 annexed hereto. Such equity and debt

securities are sometimes referred to as “Company Capital Stock”.
 

(a) No Company Capital Stock is held in its treasury. All of the issued and outstanding Company Capital Stock has been duly authorized
and validly issued, is fully paid and non-assessable and has not been issued in violation of any preemptive or similar rights of any Person. All of the issued
and outstanding Company Capital Stock is owned of record and, to the Company’s knowledge, beneficially by the Company Securityholders as set forth on
Schedule 1.17, free and clear of all Liens (other than usual and customary federal and state securities laws regarding the transfer of unregistered securities).
Except as set forth on Schedule 1.17, no outstanding Company Capital Stock is subject to any right of first refusal, right of first offer, preemptive right or
similar restriction. The only shares of Company Capital Stock that will be outstanding after Closing will be the Company Capital Stock owned by the
Purchaser following the consummation of the Merger. No other class of shares of the Company is authorized or outstanding. Except as set forth in Schedule
1.17, there are no: (a) outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants, rights (including “phantom share rights”), calls, commitments, understandings, conversion
rights, rights of exchange, plans or other agreements of any kind providing for the purchase, issuance or sale of any shares of the Company, or (b) agreements
with respect to any of the Company Capital Stock, including any voting trust, other voting agreement or proxy agreements, put or redemption rights with
respect thereto.
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(b) No later than five (5) Business Days prior to Closing, the Company shall provide to Purchaser an updated Schedule 1.17 and Schedule

4.5 to reflect any and all changes thereto. Nothing contained in this Section 4.5(b) or in the updated Disclosure Schedules delivered pursuant hereto shall be
construed or deemed to: (i) modify the Company’s obligations to obtain Purchaser’s prior consent to the issuance of any securities representing Company
Capital stock pursuant to Section 6.1 (xviii) below; or (ii) alter or amend the total aggregate number of Purchaser Merger Shares issuable to the Company
Securityholders pursuant to Section 3.1(a); or (iii) alter or amend the Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio.
 

(c) The Company Capital Stock shall consist of two (2) classes: Company Class A Common Stock and Company Class B Common Stock.
No later than thirty (30) days prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall file a Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation designating the
Company Common Stock to include both the Company Class A Common Stock and the Company Class B Common Stock. The rights and interest of the
Company Class A Common Stock and the Company Class B Common Stock shall be the same in all material respects except that the each share of Company
Class A Common Stock shall have one (1) vote per share and each share of Company Class B Common Stock shall have such number of votes per share so
that the holder of Company Class B Common Stock shall represent no more than 60% of all voting securities of the Company on a fully-diluted basis (which
shall include the exercise of all Company Warrants) for a period of no more than twenty-four (24) months following the Closing of the Merger.
 

(d) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.5(d), no employee of the Company or other Person has received an offer letter or other Contract
which is still outstanding that contemplates a grant of, or right to purchase or receive: (i) Company Options or Company Warrants or (ii) any other securities
of the Company, that in each case, have not been issued or granted as of the date of this Agreement.
 

4.6 Charter Documents. Copies of the Charter Documents have heretofore been made available to Purchaser, and such copies are each true and
complete copies of such instruments as amended and in effect on the date hereof. The Company has not taken any action in violation or derogation of its
Charter Documents.

 
4.7 Corporate Records. All proceedings occurring since the date of incorporation of the Company of the board of directors of the Company,

including all committees thereof, and of the Company Shareholders, and all consents to actions taken thereby, are accurately reflected, in all material
respects, in the minutes and records contained in the corporate minute books of the Company and made available to the Purchaser. The stock register of
shareholders of every class of Company Securities of the Company is complete and accurate.

 
4.8 Assumed Names. Schedule 4.8 is a complete and correct list of all assumed or “doing business as” names currently or, within five (5) years of

the date of this Agreement used by the Company Group, including names on any websites. Since the date of the Company’s incorporation, none of the
members of the Company Group has used any name other than the names listed on Schedule 4.8 to conduct the Business. The Company Group has filed
appropriate “doing business as” certificates in all applicable jurisdictions with respect to itself.
 

19 



 

 
4.9 Subsidiaries. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.9, the Company owns or will own prior to the Effective Time any and all of the equity interests

of each of the Subsidiaries set forth on Schedule 4.9, free and clear of all Liens. Each Subsidiary is duly organized and validly existing under the Laws of the
State of its incorporation or formation and each Subsidiary is or will be at Closing, wholly-owned by the Company. The Company is not a participant in any
joint venture, partnership, or similar arrangement. The share capital of each Subsidiary is fully paid-up. Except for the Subsidiaries set forth on Schedule 4.9,
the Company (i) does not own or Control, directly or indirectly, any ownership, equity, profits or voting interest in any Person or has any agreement or
commitment to purchase any such interest, and (ii) has not agreed and is not obligated to make, nor is bound by any Contract under which it may become
obligated to make, any future investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in any other Person. The Company has delivered to
Purchaser a true and correct and complete copy of each and every agreement and contract to acquire any Person. On or before the Closing Date, any Person
set forth on Schedule 4.9 shall be wholly-owned as of such date and there shall be not be outstanding any rights or options of any kind or nature held by any
Person other than Purchaser to acquire any capital stock or to obtain or share in any profits of the Company or any Subsidiary.
 

(a) Each Subsidiary has all corporate power and authority, and all governmental licenses, Permits, authorizations, consents and approvals
required to own and operate its properties and assets and to carry on the Business as presently conducted and as proposed to be conducted, except where the
failure to have any license, franchise, permits, authorizations, permits, authorizations consents and approvals, would not have a Material Adverse Effect.
Each Subsidiary is qualified to do business as a foreign entity in any jurisdiction where the character of the property owned or leased by such Subsidiary or
the nature of its activities make qualification of such Subsidiary in any such jurisdiction necessary. Each Subsidiary has offices or physical locations located
only at the addresses set forth by its name on Schedule 4.9.
 

(b) No outstanding capital stock or other securities of any Subsidiary is subject to any right of first refusal, right of first offer, preemptive
right or similar restriction. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.9(b), there are no: (i) outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants, rights (including “phantom
stock rights”), calls, commitments, understandings, conversion rights, rights of exchange, plans or other agreements of any kind providing for the purchase,
issuance or sale of any shares of the capital stock or other securities of any Subsidiary, or (ii) agreements with respect to any of the capital stock or other
securities of any Subsidiary, including any voting trust, other voting agreement or proxy with respect thereto. Any such subscriptions, options, warrants,
rights (including “phantom stock rights”), calls, commitments, understandings, conversion rights, rights of exchange, plans or other agreements of any kind
providing for the purchase, issuance or sale of any shares of the capital stock or other securities of any Subsidiary shall be terminated prior to the Closing
Date.
 

(c) Each Subsidiary of the Company has conducted and continues to conduct the Business in any material respect in compliance with all
Laws, judgment, order and decree entered by any Authority, domestic or foreign, applicable to such Subsidiary or its Business. Each Subsidiary of the
Company is not in any material respect in violation of, has not since the date of the Company’s incorporation, violated, and to the Company’s best
knowledge, has not since the date of the Company’s incorporation been threatened in writing to be charged with or given written notice of any violation of,
any Law, or judgment, order or decree entered by any Authority, domestic or foreign.
 

(d) Each Subsidiary of the Company has all Permits necessary to operate its Business, as it is now being conducted, except where the
failure to have such Permit would not have a Material Adverse Effect.
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4.10 Consents. Except as listed on Schedule 4.10, there are no Contracts binding upon the Company Group or by which any of the Company Capital

Stock or any of the Company Group’s assets are bound, requiring a consent, approval, authorization, order or other action of or filing with any Person as a
result of the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements or the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby (each of the foregoing, a “Company Consent”).

 
4.11 Financial Statements.
 

(a) Correct and complete copies of the following financial statements have been made available to Purchaser prior to the Execution Date
and are included at Schedule 4.11: (i) audited consolidated financial statements of the Company Group as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2018; and (ii) the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company Group as of and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020
consisting of (A) the unaudited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2019 and the unaudited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020;
(B) the unaudited consolidated income statement for the twelve (12) month period ended on December 31, 2019 and the unaudited consolidated income
statement for the twelve (12) month period ended on December 31, 2020; (C) the unaudited consolidated cash flow statement for the twelve (12) month
period ended on December 31, 2019 and the unaudited consolidated cash flow statement for the twelve (12) month period ended on December 31, 2020; and
(D) the related notes for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2020 (collectively, the “Financial Statements” and the
unaudited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2018 (the “Balance Sheet Date”) included therein, the “Balance Sheet”).
 

(b) The Financial Statements are materially true, complete and correct, and fairly present, in conformity with U.S. GAAP applied on a
consistent basis, the financial position of the Company Group as of the dates thereof and the results of operations of the Company Group for the periods
reflected therein. The Financial Statements (i) were prepared from the Books and Records of the Company Group; and (ii) were prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP consistently applied.
 

(c) Except as: (i) specifically disclosed, reflected or fully reserved against on the Balance Sheet; (ii) liabilities and obligations incurred in
the ordinary course of business since the date of the Balance Sheet; (iii) liabilities that are executory obligations arising under Contracts to which any
member of the Company Group is a party (none of which results from, arises out of, or relates to any breach or violation of, or default under, a Material
Contract or applicable Law); (iv) expenses incurred in connection with the negotiation, execution and performance of this Agreement, any Additional
Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby; (v) liabilities that would not have a Material Adverse Effect; and (vi) liabilities set
forth on Schedule 4.11(c), the Company Group does not have any material liabilities, debts or obligations of any nature of the type required to be reflected on
a balance sheet in accordance with GAAP.
 

(d) Schedule 4.11(d) sets forth a list and description (principal amount, interest rate and maturity date) of all Company Notes issued and
outstanding as of the date of this Agreement, which Schedule 4.11(d) will be updated by the Company three (3) days prior to Closing and which Company
Notes are intended to survive the Closing. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.11(d), the Company Group does not have any Indebtedness. Any and all such
Indebtedness shall be repaid in full as of the Closing Date.
 

(e) Neither the Company nor any member of the Company Group is a party to, or has any commitment to become a party to, any “off
balance sheet arrangements” that would be required to be disclosed under Item 303(a) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC or any “variable interest
entities” (within the meaning Accounting Standards Codification 810). Since the date of the Company’s formation (the “Applicable Date”), to the Knowledge
of the Company, no material complaints from any source regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, including with respect to the
Financial Statements, have been received by the Company. To the Company’s Knowledge, since the Applicable Date, the Company Group has not identified
or been made aware of any fraud, whether or not material, that involves the management or other employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that
have a significant role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and the preparation of the Financial Statements.
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4.12 Books and Records. All Contracts, documents, and other papers or copies thereof delivered to Purchaser by or on behalf of the Company Group

are accurate, complete, and authentic.
 

(a) The Books and Records of each member of the Company Group accurately and fairly, in reasonable detail, reflect the transactions and
dispositions of assets of and the providing of services by the Company Group. The Company and each member of the Company Group maintains a system of
internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act) as required by Rule 13a-15
promulgated under the Exchange Act sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that:

 
(i) transactions are executed only in accordance with the respective management’s authorization;
 
(ii) all income and expense items are promptly and properly recorded for the relevant periods in accordance with the revenue

recognition and expense policies maintained by the Company, as permitted by U.S. GAAP; and
 
(iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with the respective management’s authorization.

 
(b) All accounts, books and ledgers of each member of the Company Group have been properly and accurately kept and completed in all

material respects, and there are no material inaccuracies or discrepancies of any kind contained or reflected therein. Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.12(b),
no member of the Company Group does not have any records, systems controls, data or information recorded, stored, maintained, operated or otherwise
wholly or partly dependent on or held by any means (including any mechanical, electronic or photographic process, whether computerized or not) which
(including all means of access thereto and therefrom) are not under the exclusive ownership (excluding licensed software programs) and direct control of
each member of the Company Group and which is not located at the relevant office.

 
(c) From and after the Effective Time, the Company and each member of the Company Group shall maintain a system of disclosure

controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) that comply with the requirements of the Exchange Act; such
disclosure controls and procedures will be designed to ensure that material information relating to the Company and its Subsidiaries is made known to the
Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer by others within those entities; and at Closing, such disclosure controls and procedures
will be effective in all material respects to perform the functions for which they were established.

 

22 



 

 
4.13 Absence of Certain Changes. Since the Balance Sheet Date, the Company Group has conducted the Business in the ordinary course consistent

with past practices. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as set forth on Schedule 4.13, since the Balance Sheet Date, there has not been:
 
(a) any Material Adverse Effect;

 
(b) any material transaction, Contract or other instrument entered into, or commitment made, by the Company Group, or any of the

Company Group’s assets (including the acquisition or disposition of any assets) or any relinquishment by the Company Group of any Contract or other
material right, in either case other than transactions and commitments in the ordinary course of business consistent in all respects, including kind and amount,
with past practices and those contemplated by this Agreement;
 

(c) (i) any redemption of, declaration, setting aside or payment of any dividend or other distribution with respect to any capital stock or
other equity interests in the Company Group; (ii) any issuance by the Company Group of shares of capital stock or other equity interests in the Company
Group, or (iii) any repurchase, redemption or other acquisition, or any amendment of any term, by the Company Group of any outstanding shares of capital
stock or other equity interests;
 

(d) any material change in any compensation or benefits arrangement or agreement with any employee, officer, director or shareholder of
the Company or the Subsidiary, except for changes or amendments that are expressly provided for in this Agreement;
 

(e) (i) any creation or other incurrence of any Lien (other than Permitted Liens) on the Company Capital Stock or any other capital stock or
securities of the Company Group or on any of the Company Group’s assets, and (ii) any making of any loan, advance or capital contributions to or
investment in any Person by the Company Group;

 
(f) any material personal property damage, destruction or casualty loss or personal injury loss (whether or not covered by insurance)

affecting the business or assets of the Company Group;
 

(g) any material labor dispute, other than routine individual grievances, or any activity or proceeding by a labor union or representative
thereof to organize any employees of the Company Group, which employees were not subject to a collective bargaining agreement at the Balance Sheet Date,
or any lockouts, strikes, slowdowns, work stoppages or threats thereof by or with respect to any employees of the Company Group;
 

(h) any sale, transfer, lease to others or otherwise disposition of any of its assets by the Company Group except for inventory sold in the
ordinary course of business consistent with past practices or immaterial amounts of other Tangible Personal Property not required by its business;
 

(i) any capital expenditure by the Company Group in excess in any fiscal month of an aggregate of $1,000,000 or entering into any lease of
capital equipment or property under which the annual lease charges exceed $200,000 in the aggregate by the Company Group;
 

(j) any institution of litigation, settlement or agreement to settle any litigation, action, proceeding or investigation before any court or
governmental body relating to the Company Group or its property or suffering of any actual or threatened litigation, action, proceeding or investigation
before any court or governmental body relating to the Company Group or its property;
 

(k) any waiver by the Company or the Subsidiary of a material right or of a material debt owed to it;
 

23 



 

 
(l) the incurrence of any Indebtedness, or any loan of any monies to any Person or guarantee of any obligations of any Person by the

Company Group;
 

(m) except as required by U.S. GAAP, any change in the accounting methods or practices (including, any change in depreciation or
amortization policies or rates) of the Company Group or any revaluation of any of the assets of the Company Group;
 

(n) except as described on Schedule 4.13(n) any amendment to any member of the Company Group’s organizational documents, or any
engagement by the Company Group in any merger, consolidation, reorganization, reclassification, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction;
 

(o) any acquisition of assets (other than acquisitions of inventory in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice) or
business of any Person;
 

(p) any material Tax election made by the Company Group outside of the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or any
material Tax election changed or revoked by the Company Group; any material claim, notice, audit report or assessment in respect of Taxes settled or
compromised by the Company Group; any annual Tax accounting period changed by the Company Group; any Tax allocation agreement, Tax sharing
agreement, Tax indemnity agreement or closing agreement relating to any Tax entered into by the Company Group; or any right to claim a material Tax
refund surrendered by the Company Group; or
 

(q) any commitment or agreement to do any of the foregoing.
 

4.14 Properties; Title to the Company’s Assets
 

(a) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.14(a), the items of Tangible Personal Property are in good operating condition and repair and function
in accordance with their intended uses (ordinary wear and tear excepted) and are suitable for their present uses.
 

(b) All of the Tangible Personal Property is located at the office of the Company or the offices of a member of the Company Group.
 

(c) The Company and each member of the Company Group has good and valid title in and to, or in the case of the Leases and the assets
which are leased or licensed pursuant to Contracts, a valid leasehold interest or license in or a right to use, all of their assets reflected on the Balance Sheet.
Except as set forth on Schedule 4.14(c), no such asset is subject to any Liens other than Permitted Liens. The Company Group’s assets, including all
Intellectual Property Rights, constitute all of the assets of any kind or description whatsoever, including goodwill, for the Company Group to operate the
Business immediately after the Closing in the same manner as the Business is currently being conducted.

 
4.15 Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.15, there is no Action pending against, or to the best knowledge of the Company threatened

against or affecting, the Company or any Subsidiary, any of its officers or directors in connection with the Business, or any Company Capital Stock or any of
the Company’s Group assets or any Contract before any court, Authority or official or which in any manner challenges or seeks to prevent, enjoin, alter or
delay the transactions contemplated hereby or by the Additional Agreements. There are no outstanding judgments, awards, decree, injunction, or order of any
Authority outstanding against the Company Group, any Subsidiary of the Company or any of its or their assets or properties which would not have Material
Adverse Effect on the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary of the Company is, and has not been in the past
three (3) years, subject to any material proceeding with any Authority. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is party to a settlement or similar
agreement regarding any of the matters set forth in the preceding sentence that contains any ongoing material obligations, restrictions or liabilities (of any
nature).
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4.16 Contracts.

 
(a) Schedule 4.16(a) of the Disclosure Schedule lists all Contracts, oral or written (collectively, “Material Contracts”) to which, as of the

date of this Agreement, any member of the Company Group is a party, or by which any of its tangible or intangible assets are bound, and which are currently
in effect and constitute the following:
 

(i) all Contracts that require annual payments or expenses incurred by, or annual payments or income to, the Company Group of
$50,000 or more (other than standard purchase and sale orders entered into in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice);
 

(ii) all sales, advertising, agency, lobbying, broker, sales promotion, market research, marketing or similar contracts and
agreements, in each case requiring the payment of any commissions by the Company Group in excess of $50,000 annually;

 
(iii) all Contracts with involving the payment of royalties or other amounts calculated based upon the revenues or income of the

Company Group or income or revenues related to any product of the Company Group;
 

(iv) all employment Contracts, employee leasing Contracts, and consultant and sales representatives Contracts with any current
officer, director, employee or consultant of the Company Group, under which the Company Group (A) has continuing obligations for
payment of annual compensation of at least $50,000 (other than arrangements for at-will employment), (B) has severance or post
termination obligations to such Person (other than COBRA obligations), or (C) has an obligation to make a payment upon consummation
of the transactions contemplated hereby or as a result of a change of control of the Company;

 
(v) all Contracts creating a joint venture, strategic alliance, limited liability company and partnership agreements to which the

Company Group is a party;
 

(vi) all Contracts relating to any acquisitions or dispositions of any business or material assets by the Company Group (other than
acquisitions or dispositions of inventory in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice), including, without limitation,
Contracts (A) containing any standstill or similar agreement pursuant to which a Person has agreed not to acquire assets or securities of
another Person; (B) with any supplier of a significant quantity of goods or components, and (C) contemplated by Section 7.8 below;

 
(vii) each Contract that (A) relates to the direct or indirect acquisition or disposition of any securities, capital stock or other similar

interests, assets or business (whether by merger, sale of stock, sale of assets or otherwise) or (B) contains a put, call, right of first refusal,
right of first offer or similar right pursuant to which the Company Group could be required to, directly or indirectly, purchase or sell, as
applicable, any securities, capital stock or other interests, assets or business of any other Person;
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(viii) all Contracts for material licensing agreements, including material Contracts licensing Intellectual Property Rights, other

than (a) “shrink wrap” or other licenses for generally commercially available software (including open source software) or hosted services,
(b) customer or channel partner Contracts substantially on Company’s standard forms, (c) Contracts with Company’s own employees or
contractors substantially on Company’s standard forms, and (d) standard non-disclosure agreements (collectively, and excluding all
material transfer and other sample agreements services agreements and scientific advisory board agreements, “Standard Contracts”);
 

(ix) all Contracts limiting the freedom of the Company Group to compete in any line of business or with any Person or in any
geographic area;
 

(x) all Contracts relating to patents, trademarks, service marks, trade names, brands, copyrights, trade secrets and other Intellectual
Property Rights of the Company Group other than Standard Contracts, material transfer and other sample agreements services agreements
and scientific advisory board agreements;

 
(xi) all Contracts providing for guarantees, indemnification arrangements and other hold harmless arrangements made or provided

by the Company Group, including all ongoing agreements for repair, warranty, maintenance, service, indemnification or similar obligations
other than Standard Contracts;
 

(xii) all Contracts with or pertaining to the Company Group to which any director, officer, or Affiliate of the Company Group, or
any Person beneficially owning 5% or more of the outstanding capital stock of the Company or any of their respective Affiliates, is a party,
other than any Contracts relating to such Affiliate’s status as a Company Securityholder;
 

(xiii) all Contracts relating to property or assets (whether real or personal, tangible or intangible) in which the Company Group
holds a leasehold interest (including the Leases) and which involve payments to the lessor thereunder in excess of $50,000 per year;
 

(xiv) all Contracts relating to outstanding Indebtedness or Liens;
 
(xv) any Contract relating to the voting or control of the equity interests of the Company Group or the election of directors of the

Company Group (other than the organizational documents of the Company Group);
 

(xvi) any Contract not cancellable by the Company Group with no more than 60 days’ notice if the effect of such cancellation
would result in monetary penalty to the Company Group in excess of $100,000 per the terms of such contract;
 

(xvii) any Contract that can be terminated, or the provisions of which are altered, as a result of the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements to which the Company Group is a party;
 

(xviii) any Contract containing covenants restricting the Company Group from competing with any Person in any line of business,
industry or geographical area;
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(xix) any Contract for which any of the benefits, compensation or payments (or the vesting thereof) will be increased or

accelerated by the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or the amount or value thereof will be calculated on the basis of
any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;

 
(xx) each Contract evidencing financial or commodity hedging or similar trading activities, including any interest rate swaps,

financial derivatives master agreements or confirmations, or futures account opening agreements and/or brokerage statements or similar
Contract;

 
(xxi) each Contract that prohibits the payment of dividends or distributions in respect of the capital stock or other equity interests

of the Company Group, the pledging of the capital stock or other equity interests of the Company Group or the incurrence of indebtedness
by the Company Group;

  
(xxii) each Contract obligating the Company Group to purchase or otherwise obtain any product or service exclusively from a

single third party or granting any third party the exclusive right to develop, market, sell or distribute any of the Company Group’s products
or services;
 

(xxiii) each Contract with current or former officers, directors or employees of the Company Group, in each case in respect of
which the Company Group has any (A) ongoing base compensation obligations in excess of $50,000 on an annual basis; or
(B) indemnification obligations;

  
(xxiv) each Contract related to any settlement of any proceeding;
 
(xxv) each collective bargaining agreement or Contract with any union, staff association, works council or other agency or

representative body certified or otherwise recognized for the purposes of bargaining collectively with respect to employees of the Company
Group; and

 
(xxiv) each Contract under which the consequences of a default, non-renewal or termination would reasonably be expected to

have a Material Adverse Effect.
 

(b) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.16(b), each Material Contract is a valid and binding agreement, and is in full force and effect (subject
to (i) Laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors; and (ii) rules of law governing specific performance, injunctive
relief and other equitable remedies), and neither the Company Group nor, to the Company’s best knowledge, any other party thereto, is in material breach or
default (whether with or without the passage of time or the giving of notice or both) under the terms of any such Material Contract. Except as set for the on
Schedule 4.16(b), the Company Group has not assigned, delegated, or otherwise transferred any of its rights or obligations with respect to any Material
Contracts, or granted any power of attorney with respect thereto.
 

(c) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.16(c), none of the execution, delivery or performance by the Company of this Agreement or
Additional Agreements to which the Company is a party or the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby constitutes
a default under or gives rise to any right of termination, cancellation or acceleration of any obligation of the Company Group or to a loss of any material
benefit to which the Company Group is entitled under any provision of any Material Contract.
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(d) Except as set for the on Schedule 4.16(d), each entity that is a constituent part of the Company Group is in compliance with all

covenants, including all financial covenants, in all notes, indentures, bonds and other instruments or agreements evidencing any Indebtedness which is
intended to survive the Closing as described on Schedule 4.11(d). The Company is not required to obtain any approval or consent from the lender under any
Material Contracts relating to outstanding Indebtedness or Liens in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
 

4.17 Licenses and Permits. Schedule 4.17 correctly lists each material license, franchise, permit, order or approval or other similar authorization
required under applicable law to carry out or relating in any way to, the Business, together with the name of the Authority issuing the same (the “Permits”).
Except as indicated on Schedule 4.17, such Permits are valid and in full force and effect, and none of the Permits will, assuming the related Company
Consent has been obtained or waived prior to the Closing Date, be terminated or impaired or become terminable as a result of the transactions contemplated
hereby. The Company Group has all Permits necessary to operate the Business, as it is now being conducted, except where the failure to obtain any Permit
would not have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company or any Subsidiary.
 

4.18 Compliance with Laws. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.18, the Company Group is not in violation of, has not since January 1, 2017,
violated, and, has not since January 1, 2017 been threatened in writing to be charged with or given written notice of any violation of, any Law, or judgment,
order or decree entered by any Authority, domestic or foreign.
 

(a) Without limiting the foregoing paragraph, the Company Group is not in material violation of, has not violated, and to the Company’s
best knowledge is not under investigation with respect to nor has been threatened or charged with or given notice of any violation of any provisions of:

 
(i) any Law applicable to the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries due to the specific nature of the Business, including

Laws applicable to data privacy, data security and/or personal information (“Data Protection Laws”);
 

(ii) the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 (§§ 78dd-1 et seq.), as amended (the “Foreign Corrupt Practices Act”) or
any comparable or similar Law of any jurisdiction applicable to the Company; or
 

(iii) any Law regulating or covering conduct in, or the nature of, the workplace, including regarding sexual harassment
or, on any impermissible basis, a hostile work environment.

 
(b) Without limiting the foregoing paragraph, neither the Company Group nor, to the knowledge of the Company, any director, officer,

employee, Affiliate or Person acting on behalf of the Company is currently subject to any U.S. sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign Assets
Control of the U.S. Treasury Department (“OFAC”).
 

(c) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.18, no Permit, license or registration is required by the Company Group in the conduct of the Business
under any of the Laws described in this Section 4.18, except where the failure to obtain any Permit would not have a Material Adverse Effect on the
Company or any Subsidiary.
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4.19 Intellectual Property.

 
(a) Schedule 4.19 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, correct and complete list of all registered Intellectual Property Rights and

applications for registration of Intellectual Property Rights owned or filed by any member of the Company Group, specifying as to each, as applicable: (i) the
nature of such Intellectual Property Right; (ii) the owner of such Intellectual Property Right; (iii) the jurisdictions by or in which such Intellectual Property
Right has been issued or registered or in which an application for such issuance or registration has been filed; and (iv) other than Standard Contracts, all
licenses, sublicenses and other agreements pursuant to which any Person is authorized to use such Intellectual Property Right. Schedule 4.19 of the
Disclosure Schedule shall also include a true, correct and complete list of all proprietary Software, in each case, that is included in the Company Group’s
Intellectual Property Rights and is material to the Company Group or the conduct of the Business.
 

(b) The Company Group has good, valid and marketable title and ownership of, or has sufficient and valid rights to use, all of the
Intellectual Property Rights on Schedule 4.19 and IT Assets, all of which ownership and rights shall survive the execution, delivery, and performance of this
Agreement and the Additional Agreements and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, on identical terms and without
modification, cancellation, termination, suspension of, or acceleration of any right, obligation or payment with respect to any such Intellectual Property
Rights or IT Assets. As used herein, “IT Assets” means technology devices, computers, hardware, Software (including firmware and middleware), systems,
sites, servers, networks, workstations, routers, hubs, circuits, switches, interfaces, websites, platforms, data communications lines, automated processes, and
all other information or operational technology, telecommunications, facilities, systems services, or equipment, in each case, owned, leased, licensed or
operated by the Company Group or used (or held for use) in the operation of the Business, and all associated documentation. The Company Group (i)
exclusively owns all right, title, and interest in and to all Intellectual Property Rights owned or purported to be owned by the Company Group, and (ii) is the
exclusive licensee of all other Intellectual Property Rights, in each case, free and clear of all Liens. The Company Group has in its possession all know-how,
information, and embodiments of all Intellectual Property Rights, in each case, necessary and sufficient to enable the Company Group to use, practice, and
exploit the in-licensed Intellectual Property Rights as contemplated to be used, practiced, and exploited in the conduct of the Business.

 
(c) All of the Company Group’s registered Intellectual Property Rights are subsisting, valid and enforceable. Neither the Company Group

nor any of the Company Group’s Intellectual Property Rights are subject to any outstanding Order materially adversely affecting the validity or enforceability
of, or the Company Group’s ownership or exclusive use of, or exclusive rights in or to, any such Intellectual Property Rights or otherwise restricting or
materially adversely affecting the Company Group’s right to own, license or use any Intellectual Property Rights. All of the Company Group’s registered
Intellectual Property Rights has been maintained effective by the filing of all necessary filings, maintenance and renewals and timely payment of requisite
fees. No loss or expiration of any registered Intellectual Property Rights is threatened, pending or reasonably foreseeable that would be materially adverse to
the conduct of the Business.
 

(e) The Company Group has not (i) been sued or charged in writing with, been a defendant in any Action that involves a claim of
infringement of any Intellectual Property Rights; or (ii) received any written claim, notice, invitation to license or similar communication (A) contesting or
challenging the use, validity, enforceability or ownership by the Company Group of any Intellectual Property Rights, or (B) alleging that the Company Group
or its current or planned products or services or the conduct of the Business infringes, misappropriates or otherwise violates (or will infringe, misappropriate,
or otherwise violate) the Intellectual Property Rights of any Person, whether directly or indirectly. The Company has no knowledge of any other claim of
infringement by the Company Group, and to the knowledge of the Company, no Person has infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated any Intellectual
Property Rights of the Company Group.
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(f) The Company Group, the conduct of the Business, the currently contemplated conduct of the Business following the Closing, and the

current or planned products or services of the Company Group (including the use, manufacture, marketing, sale, offering for sale, importation, or other
commercialization thereof), in each case, to the Knowledge of the Company (i) currently do not infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate and have not
infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated any Intellectual Property Rights of any Person; and (ii) do not constitute and have not constituted unfair
competition or trade practices under the Laws of any relevant jurisdiction.

 
(g) No funding, facility or personnel of any Governmental Entity, university, college, other educational institution or research center was

used in the development of any Company Group Intellectual Property Rights.
 

(h) To the knowledge of the Company Group, as of the date of this Agreement there are no material disputes or litigation with respect to
any material Intellectual Property Rights and the Company is not a party to any dispute or litigation relating to any Intellectual Property. Any Intellectual
Property Rights used by the Company Group in the performance of any services under any Contract is, and upon the performance of such Contract remains,
owned or in-licensed by the Company Group and no client, customer or other third-party has any claim of ownership on the Intellectual Property Rights used
by Company Group in the performance of any such Contract.
 

(i) Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.19, all employees, agents, consultants or contractors who have contributed to or participated in the
creation or development of any copyrightable, patentable or trade secret material on behalf of the Company Group or any predecessor in interest thereto
either: (i) is a party to a “work-for-hire” agreement under which the Company Group is deemed to be the original owner/author of all property rights therein;
or (ii) has executed an assignment or an agreement to assign in favor of the Company Group (or such predecessor in interest, as applicable) all right, title and
interest in such material or (iii) has licensed to the Company Group rights to use such Intellectual Property Rights.

 
(j) The Company has used commercially reasonable efforts and implemented sufficient measures to protect the confidentiality, integrity,

value and availability to the Company Group of all trade secrets, confidential Intellectual Property Rights, or other confidential information material to the
Company Group or the conduct of the Business. No such trade secret or confidential information has been disclosed by the Company to any Person (other
than pursuant to a written confidentiality agreement with provisions reasonably restricting the use and disclosure thereof). To the Knowledge of the
Company, each Person who is or was an employee or independent contractor of the Company Group and (i) involved in the development or creation of any
Intellectual Property Rights for or on behalf of the Company Group (including any Company Intellectual Property Rights) has signed a valid and enforceable
agreement containing an irrevocable present assignment to the Company Group, as appropriate, of all such Intellectual Property Rights; or (ii) privy to any
trade secrets or other confidential information material to the Company Group or the conduct of the Business has signed a valid and enforceable written
confidentiality agreement with provisions reasonably restricting the use and disclosure thereof. No such Person retains any right, title or interest in or to any
such Intellectual Property Rights or is in violation of any such assignment or confidentiality agreement.

 
(k) The IT Assets owned, leased, outsourced, or licensed by the Company Group (including through cloud-based or other third-party

service providers) in the operation of its Business are sufficient in all material respects for the current conduct of the Business, and the IT Assets are free
from any disabling codes or instructions, spyware, Trojan horses, worms, viruses or other software routines designed to facilitate or cause unauthorized
access to, or disruption, significant impairment, disablement, or destruction of, Software, data or other materials. Prior to the Execution Date, there has been
no unauthorized access to or unauthorized use of (i) any such IT Assets, (ii) any information stored on or processed by such IT Assets, or (iii) any
confidential or proprietary information that is in the Company Group’s possession, custody, or control.
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(l) Prior to the Closing, the Company Group will use commercially reasonable efforts to implement and, from the date of such

implementation through the Closing Date, use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain commercially reasonable security designed to safeguard the
confidentiality, availability, security and integrity of the IT Assets and all data and information stored thereon.

 
(m) No source code of any material Software owned by, or purported to be owned by, the Company Group has been disclosed or delivered

to any escrow agent or, except pursuant to a written confidentiality Contract, otherwise provided or disclosed to any third party. Neither this Agreement, nor
the transactions contemplated hereby will, and to the Company’s Knowledge, no event has occurred, and no circumstance or condition exists, that (with or
without notice or lapse of time, or both) will, result in the disclosure or release of such source code to any third-party. The Company Group has not used any
material Software licensed in such a way that would subject any Company Intellectual Property Rights to Copyleft Terms.

 
(n) Prior to the Closing, the Company Group will use commercially reasonable efforts to establish and implement and, from the date of

such establishment and implementation through the Closing Date, use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain written policies and organizational,
physical, administrative and technical measures regarding, the integrity and availability of the systems, privacy, cyber security and data security that are
commercially reasonable for an enterprise of the size and nature of the Company Group, taken as a whole, and at least consistent with applicable industry
standards, and consistent in all material respects with (i) any contractual commitments of the Company Group relating to privacy, cyber security and data
security, and (ii) any public facing statements or policies adopted by the Company Group relating to privacy, cyber security and data security (such policies
and measures, collectively, the “Privacy and Security Policies”).

 
(o) Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, since the (i)

Applicable Date the Company Group has complied in all material respects with all applicable privacy, cyber security and data security Laws and Contracts,
including with respect to the collection, use, storage, processing, transmission, transfer (including cross-border transfers), disclosure and protection of
Personal Information its possession or control and (ii) since the establishment and implementation of the Privacy and Security Policies has complied in all
material respects with its Privacy and Security Policies.

 
(p) The Company Group will implement prior to Closing commercially reasonable measures consistent in all material respects with

standard industry practices designed to ensure the confidentiality, privacy and security of Personal Information in its possession or control from authorized
access by any Person. The transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not result in the violation of any Data Protection Laws or the privacy policies of
the Company Group.
 

4.20 Suppliers. Section 4.20 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of the top ten (10) suppliers of the Company Group
for the twelve (12)-month period ended on the Execution Date based on the U.S. dollar value purchased from each supplier during such period (each, a
“Significant Supplier”). No Significant Supplier or other material supplier, vendor, collaborator, distributor or licensor of the Company Group has cancelled
or otherwise terminated its relationship with the Company Group or has materially altered, in a manner adverse to the Company Group, its relationship with
the Company Group. To the Knowledge of the Company, no such Significant Supplier or other material supplier, vendor, collaborator, distributor or licensor
has any plan or intention, and has not threatened to terminate, cancel or otherwise materially modify in a manner adverse to the Company Group its
relationship with the Company Group.
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4.21Accounts Receivable and Payable.

 
(a) All accounts receivable of the Company Group reflected on the Financial Statements, and all accounts receivable arising subsequent to

the date thereof, represent valid obligations arising from services actually performed by the Company Group in the ordinary course of business consistent
with past practice. The accounts payable of the Company reflected on the Financial Statements, and all accounts payable arising subsequent to the date
thereof, arose from bona fide transactions in the ordinary course consistent with past practice.
 

(b) To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no contest, claim, or right of setoff in any agreement with any maker of an account
receivable relating to the amount or validity of such account, receivables or note involving an amount in excess of $100,000. Except as set forth on Schedule
4.21(b), to the best knowledge of the Company, all accounts and receivables are good and collectible in the ordinary course of business.
 

(c) The information set forth on Schedule 4.21(c) separately identifies any and all accounts, receivables of the Company Group which are
owed by any Affiliate of the Company Group. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.21(c), the Company Group is not indebted to any of its Affiliates and no
Affiliates are indebted to the Company Group.
 

4.22 Pre-payments. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.22, the Company Group has not received any payments with respect to any services to be
rendered or goods to be provided after the Closing except in the ordinary course of business.
 

4.23 Employees.
 

(a) Schedule 4.23(a) sets forth a true, correct and complete list of (i) each of the 5 highest compensated employees of each member of the
Company Group as of September 30, 2020, and (ii) the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and each other executive officer of each member of
the Company Group, setting forth the name, title, current salary or compensation rate for each such person and total compensation (including bonuses and
commissions) paid to each such person for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.
 

(b) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.23(b), the Company Group is not a party to or subject to any collective bargaining agreement, or any
similar agreement, and to the company’s knowledge there has been no activity or proceeding by a labor union or representative thereof to organize any
employees of the Company Group.

 
(c) There are no pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened claims or proceedings against the Company Group under any

worker’s compensation policy or long-term disability policy.
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4.24 Employment Matters.

 
(a) Schedule 4.24(a) sets forth a true and complete list of every employment agreement, commission agreement, employee group or

executive medical, life, or disability insurance plan, and each incentive, bonus, profit sharing, retirement, deferred compensation, equity, phantom stock,
stock option, stock purchase, stock appreciation right or severance plan of the Company Group now in effect or under which the Company Group has or
might have any obligation, or any understanding between the Company Group and any employee concerning the terms of such employee’s employment that
does not apply to the Company Group’s employees generally (collectively, “Labor Agreements”). The Company Group has previously delivered to Purchaser
true and complete copies of each such Labor Agreement, any employee handbook or policy statement of the Company Group, and complete and correct
information concerning the Company Group’s employees.
 

(b) Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.24(b):
 

(i) to the best knowledge of the Company Group, no employee of the Company Group, in the ordinary course of his or
her duties, has breached or will breach any obligation to a former employer in respect of any covenant against competition or soliciting
clients or employees or servicing clients or confidentiality or any proprietary right of such former employer; and
 

(ii) the Company Group is not a party to any collective bargaining agreement, does not have any material labor relations
problems, and to the Company’s knowledge, there is no pending representation question or union organizing activity respecting employees
of the Company Group. Other than those employees with a written employment agreement, all employees are employees at will.

 
(c) Since the later of January 1, 2017, or the date of its formation, each member of the Company Group has complied in all material

respects with all Labor Agreements and all applicable laws relating to employment or labor. There is no legal prohibition with respect to the permanent
residence of any employee of the Company Group in the United States or his or her permanent employment by the Company Group. To its knowledge, no
present or former employee, officer, director or manager of the Company has, or will have at the Closing Date, any claim against the Company Group for any
matter including for wages, salary, or vacation or sick pay, or otherwise under any Labor Agreement. All accrued obligations of the Company applicable to
its employees, whether arising by operation of Law, by Contract, by past custom or otherwise, for payments by the Company to any trust or other fund or to
any Authority, with respect to unemployment or disability compensation benefits, social security benefits, under ERISA or otherwise, have been paid or
adequate accruals therefor have been made.

 
4.25 Withholding. Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.25, all material obligations of each member of the Company Group applicable to its

employees, whether arising by operation of Law, by contract, by past custom or otherwise, or attributable to payments by each member of the Company
Group to trusts or other funds or to any governmental agency, with respect to unemployment compensation benefits, social security benefits or any other
benefits for its employees with respect to the employment of said employees through the date hereof have been paid or adequate accruals therefor have been
made on the Financial Statements. Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.25, all reasonably anticipated obligations of each member of the Company Group with
respect to such employees (except for those related to wages during the pay period immediately prior to the Closing Date and arising in the ordinary course
of business), whether arising by operation of Law, by contract, by past custom, or otherwise, for salaries and holiday pay, bonuses and other forms of
compensation payable to such employees in respect of the services rendered by any of them prior to the date hereof have been or will be paid by each
member of the Company Group prior to the Closing Date.
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4.26 Employee Benefits and Compensation.

 
(a) Schedule 4.26 sets forth each “employee benefit plan” (as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA), bonus, deferred compensation, equity-

based or non-equity-based incentive, severance or other plan or written agreement relating to employee or director benefits or employee or director
compensation or fringe benefits, maintained or contributed to by the Company Group at any time during the 5-calendar year period immediately preceding
the date hereof and/or with respect to which the Company Group could incur or could have incurred any direct or indirect, fixed or contingent liability (each
a “Plan” and collectively, the “Plans”). Each Plan is in compliance with applicable law in all material respects.
 

(b) Each Plan which is intended to be “qualified” within the meaning of Section 401(a) of the Code, has received a favorable determination
letter from the Internal Revenue Service and, to the knowledge of the Company, no event has occurred and no condition exists which could reasonably be
expected to result in the revocation of any such determination. No event which constitutes a “reportable event” (as defined in Section 4043(c) of ERISA) for
which the 30-day notice requirement has not been waived by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the “PBGC”) has occurred with respect to any Plan.
No Plan subject to Title IV of ERISA has been terminated or is or has been the subject of termination proceedings pursuant to Title IV of ERISA. Full
payment has been made of all amounts which the Company was required under the terms of the Plans to have paid as contributions to such Plans on or prior
to the date hereof (excluding any amounts not yet due) and no Plan which is subject to Part 3 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA has incurred an “accumulated
funding deficiency” (within the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code), whether or not waived.
 

(c) Neither the Company nor to the knowledge of the Company, any other “disqualified person” or “party in interest” (as defined in Section
4975(e)(2) of the Code and Section 3(14) of ERISA, respectively), has engaged in any transaction in connection with any Plan that could reasonably be
expected to result in the imposition of a penalty pursuant to Section 502(i) of ERISA, damages pursuant to Section 409 of ERISA or a tax pursuant to Section
4975(a) of the Code. The Company has not maintained any Plan (other than a Plan which is intended to be “qualified” within the meaning of Section 401(a)
of the Code) which provides benefits with respect to current or former employees or directors following their termination of service with the Company (other
than as required pursuant to COBRA). Each Plan subject to the requirements of COBRA has been operated in substantial compliance therewith.
 

(d) No individual will accrue or receive additional benefits, service or accelerated rights to payment of benefits as a direct result of the
transactions contemplated hereby. No material liability, claim, investigation, audit, action or litigation has been incurred, made, commenced or, to the
knowledge of the Company, threatened, by or against any Plan or the Company with respect to any Plan (other than for benefits payable in the ordinary
course and PBGC insurance premiums). No Plan or related trust owns any securities in violation of Section 407 of ERISA. With respect to each Plan which is
an “employee pension benefit plan” (as defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA) as of the most recent actuarial valuation report prepared for each such Plan, the
aggregate present value of the accrued liabilities thereof (determined in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 35) did not exceed
the aggregate fair market value of the assets allocable thereto.
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(e) No Plan is a “multiemployer plan” (as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA) and the Company has not been obligated to contribute

to any multiemployer plan. No material liability has been, or could reasonably be expected to be, incurred under Title IV of ERISA (other than for PBGC
insurance premiums payable in the ordinary course) or Section 412(f) or (n) of the Code, by the Company or any entity required to be aggregated with the
Company pursuant to Section 4001(b) of ERISA and/or Section 414 (b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code with respect to any “employee pension benefit plan” (as
defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA).
 

(f) There is no unfunded non-tax-qualified Plan which provides a pension or retirement benefit.
 

(g) The Company has not made any commitment to create or cause to exist any employee benefit plan which is not listed on Schedule 4.26,
or to modify, change or terminate any Plan (other than as may be necessary for compliance with applicable law).
 

(h) The Company does not have any plan, arrangement or agreement providing for “deferred compensation” that is subject to Section
409A(a) of the Code, or any plan, arrangement or agreement that is subject to Section 409A(b) of the Code.

 
(i) With respect to each Plan, the Company has delivered or caused to be delivered to Purchaser and its counsel true and complete copies of

the following documents, as applicable, for each respective Plan: (i) all Plan documents, with all amendments thereto; (ii) the current summary plan
description with any applicable summaries of material modifications thereto as well as any other material employee or government communications; (iii) all
current trust agreements and/or other documents establishing Plan funding arrangements; (iv) the most recent IRS determination letter and, if a request for
such a letter has been filed and is currently pending with the IRS, a copy of such filing; (v) the three most recently prepared IRS Forms 5500; (vi) the three
most recently prepared financial statements; and (vii) all material related contracts, including without limitation, insurance contracts, service provider
agreements and investment management and investment advisory agreements.
 

(j) Each Plan that is a group health plan (as defined in Section 733(a) of ERISA) (i) has at all times complied in all material respects with
the applicable health insurance reform requirements added to Section 715 of ERISA by the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the guidance
issued thereunder (“PPACA”), including annual reporting requirements under Code Section 1094 and 1095; and (ii) has for all months beginning January 1,
2015 made offers of coverage to all Full-Time Employees of the Company Group and its ERISA Affiliates that is Affordable and provides Minimum Value in
accordance with Section 4980H of the Code and the regulations and guidance issued thereunder. For purposes of this Section 4.26(k), the terms “Full-Time
Employee,” “Affordable” and “Minimum Value” shall have the meanings ascribed to them by the PPACA.
 

4.27 Real Property.
 

(a) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.27, the Company Group does not own, or otherwise have an interest in, any Real Property, including
under any Real Property lease, sublease, space sharing, license or other occupancy agreement. Each member of the Company Group has good and valid title
to its respective leasehold estates in the offices described on Schedule 4.27, free and clear of all Liens. No member of the Company Group has not breached
or violated any local zoning ordinance, and no notice from any Person has been received by the Company Group or served upon the Company Group
claiming any violation of any local zoning ordinance except where such breach, violation or claim would not have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company
Group.
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(b) With respect to each Lease: (i) it is valid, binding and in full force and effect; (ii) all rents and additional rents and other sums, expenses

and charges due thereunder have been paid; (iii) the lessee has been in peaceable possession since the commencement of the original term thereof; (iv) no
waiver, indulgence or postponement of the lessee’s obligations thereunder has been granted by the lessor; (v) there exist no material default or event of
default thereunder by the Company Group or, to the Company’s knowledge, by any other party thereto; (vi) there exists no occurrence, condition or act
which, with the giving of notice, the lapse of time or the happening of any further event or condition, would become a default or event of default by the
Company Group thereunder; and (vii) to the Company’s knowledge, there are no outstanding claims of breach or indemnification or notice of default or
termination thereunder. The Real Property leased by the Company Group is in a state of maintenance and repair in all material respects adequate and suitable
for the purposes for which it is presently being used, and there are no material repair or restoration works likely to be required in connection with any of the
leased Real Properties. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.27(b), the Company Group is in physical possession and actual and exclusive occupation of the
whole of the leased property, none of which is subleased or assigned to another Person. The Lease leases all useable square footage of the premise located at
the leased Real Property. The Company Group does not owe any brokerage commission with respect to any Real Property.
 

4.28 Accounts. Schedule 4.28 sets forth a true, complete and correct list of the checking accounts, deposit accounts, safe deposit boxes, and
brokerage, commodity and similar accounts of each member of the Company Group, including the account number and name, the name of each depositary or
financial institution and the address where such account is located and the authorized signatories thereto.
 

4.29 Tax Matters. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.29:
 

(a) (i) Each member of the Company Group has duly and timely filed all material Tax Returns which are required to be filed by or with
respect to it, and has paid all Taxes which have become due; (ii) all such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete and accurate in all material respects; (iii)
there is no Action, pending or proposed in writing, with respect to Taxes of the Company Group; (iv) no statute of limitations in respect of the assessment or
collection of any Taxes of the Company Group for which a Lien may be imposed on any of the Company Group’s assets has been waived or extended, which
waiver or extension is in effect; (v) the Company Group has complied in all respects with all applicable Laws relating to the reporting, payment, collection
and withholding of Taxes and has duly and timely withheld or collected, paid over to the applicable Taxing Authority and reported all Taxes (including
income, social, security and other payroll Taxes) required to be withheld or collected by the Company Group ; (vi) no stock transfer Tax, sales Tax, use Tax,
real estate transfer Tax or other similar Tax will be imposed on the transfer of the Ordinary Shares of the Company by the Shareholders to the Purchaser
pursuant to this Agreement; (vii) there is no Lien (other than Permitted Liens) for Taxes upon any of the assets of the Company Group; (viii) other than the
ruling application in connection with the agreement, there is no outstanding request for a ruling from any Taxing Authority, request for a consent by a Taxing
Authority for a change in a method of accounting, subpoena or request for information by any Taxing Authority, or agreement with any Taxing Authority,
with respect to the Company Group; (ix) no claim has ever been made by a Taxing Authority in a jurisdiction where the Company Group has not paid any
Tax or filed Tax Returns, asserting that the Company Group is or may be subject to Tax in such jurisdiction, the Company Group is not nor has it ever been
subject to Tax in any country other than the respective countries of incorporation or formation of the Company Group members by virtue of having a
permanent establishment or other place of business in that country, and the members of the Company Group are and have always been tax residents solely in
their respective countries of incorporation or formation; (x) the Company Group has provided to Purchaser true, complete and correct copies of all Tax
Returns relating to, and all audit reports and correspondence relating to each proposed adjustment, if any, made by any Taxing Authority with respect to, any
taxable period ending after the earlier of (y) the date of its formation or incorporation or (z) December 31, 2015; (xi) is not, and has ever been, a party to any
Tax sharing or Tax allocation Contract; (xii) the Company Group is and has never been included in any consolidated, combined or unitary Tax Return ; (xiii)
to the knowledge of the Company, no issue has been raised by a Taxing Authority in any prior Action relating to the Company Group with respect to any Tax
for any period which, by application of the same or similar principles, could reasonably be expected to result in a proposed Tax deficiency of the Company
Group for any other period; and (xiv) the Company Group has not requested any extension of time within which to file any Tax Return, which Tax Return has
since not been filed.
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(b) The Company Group will not be required to include any item of income or exclude any item of deduction for any taxable period ending

after the Closing Date as a result of the use of a method of accounting with respect to any transaction that occurred on or before the Closing Date.
 

(c) The unpaid Taxes of the Company Group (i) did not, as of the most recent fiscal month end, exceed the reserve for Tax liability (rather
than any reserve for deferred Taxes established to reflect timing differences between book and Tax income) set forth on the Financial Statements and (ii) will
not exceed that reserve as adjusted for the passage of time through the Closing Date in accordance with the past custom and practice of the Company in filing
its Tax Return.
 

(d) The Company Group has been in compliance in all respects with all applicable transfer pricing laws and legal requirements. The prices
for any property or services (or for the use of any property), including interest and other prices for financial services, provided by or to the Company Group
are arm’s-length prices for purposes of the relevant transfer pricing laws.

 
(e) The Company is not aware of any fact or circumstance that would reasonably be expected to prevent the Merger from qualifying as a

“reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.
 
4.30 Environmental Laws.
 

(a) Except as set forth in Schedule 4.30, the Company Group has not (i) received any written notice of any alleged claim, violation of or
Liability under any Environmental Law which has not heretofore been cured or for which there is any remaining liability; (ii) disposed of, emitted,
discharged, handled, stored, transported, used or released any Hazardous Materials, arranged for the disposal, discharge, storage or release of any Hazardous
Materials, or exposed any employee or other individual to any Hazardous Materials so as to give rise to any Liability or corrective or remedial obligation
under any Environmental Laws; or (iii) entered into any agreement that may require it to guarantee, reimburse, pledge, defend, hold harmless or indemnify
any other Person with respect to liabilities arising out of Environmental Laws or the Hazardous Materials Activities of the Company Group.

 
(b) The Company Group and all of its operations and property have been in material compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws

and all real property owned or leased by the Company Group have been and will be operated in material compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws.
 
(c) The Company Group will use, is using, and has used commercially reasonable efforts to take assignment of or otherwise obtain all

Permits, licenses, identification numbers, approvals, registrations or other authorizations required or issued under any Environmental Law necessary for the
Company’s operations.

 
(d) The Company Group is not (i) conducting or actually responsible for (pursuant to any contractual obligation or requirement of any

Governmental Entity or Environmental Law) any remediation, reporting, investigation, monitoring or other action or (ii) actually responsible for any liability
or cost, in each case of (i) or (ii), relating to the presence or any Release or threatened Release of any Hazardous Materials on any Real Property or other
property (including of any soil, groundwater, surface water, sediment, building, or aboveground or subsurface structure, third-party property or formerly
owned, operated or leased property), including relating to any sampling, installation or operation of vapor intrusion systems or other remedial systems or the
imposition of institutional or engineering controls. The Company has not received notice of any allegations that it is responsible for (i) conducting (pursuant
to any contractual obligation or requirement of any Governmental Entity or Environmental Law) any remediation, reporting, investigation, monitoring or
other action or (ii) any liability or cost, in each case of (i) or (ii), relating to the presence or any Release or threatened Release of any Hazardous Materials on
any Real Property or other property (including of any soil, groundwater, surface water, sediment, building, or aboveground or subsurface structure, third-
party property or formerly owned, operated or leased property), including relating to any sampling, installation or operation of vapor intrusion systems or
other remedial systems or the imposition of institutional or engineering controls.
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(e) The Company Group is not subject to any liability for any actual exposure by any Person or damage to any property relating to the

Release of any Hazardous Materials and has not received notice of any allegations of liability for such exposure.
 
(f) The Company Group has not received, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company Group, has any Predecessor received, any notice,

demand, letter, claim or request for information indicating that the Company Group or any of its Predecessors may be in violation of or, directly or indirectly
subject to liability relating to any Environmental Law or the Release of any Hazardous Materials.

 
(g) The Company Group is not subject to any Order, asset retirement obligation, financial assurance requirement, or indemnity or other

agreement with any third party, relating to liability relating to any Environmental Law or the Release of any Hazardous Materials.
 
(h) There are no circumstances or conditions, including the presence of any aboveground or subsurface structures, involving or affecting

the Company Group or, after acquisition of the Real Property and assignment of leases of the Real Property, any Real Property that could reasonably be
expected to result in any claim, liability, investigation or cost of the Company Group relating to any Environmental Law, including any restriction on the
ownership, use or transfer of or otherwise relating to the Real Property.

 
(i) The Company Group has made available to Parent correct and complete copies of all Permits, reports, studies, assessments, audits,

records, sampling data, notices, correspondence, agreements and other information that it has in its care, custody or control relating both to (i) any
Environmental Law or Hazardous Materials and (ii) the Company Group, any Company Predecessor, or any properties currently or formerly owned or
operated by any of them.
 

4.31 Finders’ Fees. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.31, there is no investment banker, broker, finder or other intermediary which has been retained
by or is authorized to act on behalf of the Company Group or any of Affiliates who might be entitled to any fee or commission from the Company, Merger
Sub, Purchaser or any of their Affiliates upon consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
 

4.32 Powers of Attorney and Suretyships. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.32, no member of the Company Group has any general or special
powers of attorney outstanding (whether as grantor or grantee thereof) or any obligation or liability (whether actual, accrued, accruing, contingent, or
otherwise) as guarantor, surety, co-signer, endorser, co-maker, indemnitor or otherwise in respect of the obligation of any Person.
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4.33 Directors and Officers. Schedule 4.33 sets forth a true, correct and complete list of all directors and executive officers of each member of the

Company Group.
 

4.34 Anti-Corruption; Sanctions.
 
(a) The operations of each member of the Company Group are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with all applicable anti-

bribery, anti-corruption and anti-money laundering Laws, in all applicable jurisdictions (foreign or domestic), including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act of 1977, as amended, or any rules or regulations under any of the foregoing Laws, (collectively, the “Anti-Corruption Laws”). Neither the Company
Group nor any director or officer of the Company, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, any employee, agent or representative of the Company Group has,
directly or indirectly, violated any, or been subject to actual or, to the Knowledge of the Company, pending or threatened Actions, demand letters, settlements
or enforcement actions relating to any Anti-Corruption Law or any Law related to terrorism financing.

 
(b) Neither the Company Group nor any director or officer of the Company, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, any employee, agent or

representative of the Company Group has, directly or indirectly, given, made, offered or received or agreed to give, make, offer or receive any payment, gift,
contribution, commission, rebate, promotional allowance, expenditure or other economic advantage: (i) which would violate any applicable Anti-Corruption
Law; or (ii) to or for a Public Official with the intention of (A) unlawfully influencing any official act or decision of such Public Official; (B) inducing such
Public Official to do or omit to do any act in violation of their lawful duty; (C) securing any unlawful advantage; or (D) inducing such Public Official to
influence or affect any act or decision of any Governmental Entity or commercial enterprise owned or controlled by any Governmental Entity, in each case,
in order to assist the Company, or, to the Knowledge of the Company, any employee, agent or representative of the Company in obtaining or retaining
business for or with, or in directing business to, the Company or any other Person.

 
(c) Neither the Company Group nor any director or officer of the Company, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, any employee, agent or

representative of the Company, is a Person that is the subject of economic sanctions administered by OFAC (including the designation as a “Specially
Designated National or Blocked Person” thereunder), Her Majesty’s Treasury, the European Union, the Bureau of Industry Security of the U.S. Department
of Commerce, or any applicable sanctions measures under the U.S. International Emergency Economic Powers Act, the U.S. Trading with the Enemy Act,
the U.S. Iran Sanctions Act, the U.S. Comprehensive Iran Sanctions, Accountability and Divestment Act of 2010, the U.S. Iran Threat Reduction and Syria
Human Rights Act of 2012, the U.S. National Defense Authorization Act of 2012 or the U.S. National Defense Authorization Act of 2013, or any executive
order, directive or regulation pursuant to the authority of any of the foregoing, including the regulations of the U.S. Department of the Treasury set forth
under 31 CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter V, or any orders or licenses issued thereunder (collectively, “Sanctions”), nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, are any
of the foregoing designated as a Specially Designated National or Blocked Person by OFAC. At no time has the Company Group been in violation of
applicable Sanctions.

 
4.35 Insurance. All forms of insurance owned or held by and insuring the Company Group are set forth on Schedule 4.35, and such policies are in

full force and effect. All premiums with respect to such policies covering all periods up to and including the Closing Date have been paid, and no notice of
cancellation or termination has been received with respect to any such policy which was not replaced on substantially similar terms prior to the date of such
cancellation or termination. To the Company’s knowledge, there is no existing default or event which, with or without the passage of time or the giving of
notice or both, would constitute as noncompliance with any such policy or constitute a default under any such policy or entitle any insurer to terminate or
cancel any such policy. Such policies will not in any way be affected by or terminate or lapse by reason of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement
or the Additional Agreements. The insurance policies to which the Company Group is a party are sufficient for compliance with all requirements of all
Contracts to which the Company Group is a party or by which the Company Group is bound. In the three (3) years preceding the date of this Agreement, the
Company Group has not been refused any insurance with respect to its assets or operations or had its coverage limited by any insurance carrier to which it
has applied for any such insurance or with which it has carried insurance. The Company Group does not have any self-insurance arrangements.
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4.36 Related Party Transactions. Except as set forth in Schedule 4.36, as contemplated by this Agreement or as provided in the Financial Statements,

no Affiliate of the Company Group (a) is a party to any Contract, or has otherwise entered into any transaction, understanding or arrangement, with the
Company Group or (b) owns any property or right, tangible or intangible, which is used by the Company Group. None of the contracts listed in Schedule
4.36 was entered into on a basis other than on arm’s length.

 
4.37 Accredited Investors. To the Knowledge of the Company, each U.S. resident Company Securityholder is an “Accredited Investor”, as such term

is defined under Rule 501(a) adopted by the SEC under the Securities Act.
 

4.38 Projections. Schedule 4.38 sets forth the five-year projections of the Company Group for the fiscal years ending as of December 31, 2021,
2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 (the “Projections”). The Company believes that the Projections are reasonable and fairly present the financial forecast of the
Company Group as of the dates thereof and the business operation forecast of the Company Group for the periods reflected therein. The Projections delivered
to Purchaser were prepared in good faith using assumptions that the management of the Company Group believes to be reasonable and the Company is not
aware of the existence of any circumstances that could reasonable be likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on its financial conditions or Business. The
Company acknowledges that the Projections will be included in the Proxy Statement of Purchaser.
 

4.39 Full Disclosure. The Company is not aware of any facts pertaining to the Company Group or its Business which could have a Material Adverse
Effect and which have not been disclosed in this Agreement or the Financial Statements or otherwise disclosed to the Purchaser by the Company Group in
writing. No representation or warranty of the Company Group in this Agreement, nor any document, statement or certificate furnished or to be furnished by
the Company Group pursuant to this Agreement, or in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, contains or will contain any untrue
statement of a material fact, or omits or will omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein or therein not misleading.
 

4.40 PIPE Investments. The Company has made available and delivered to the Purchaser prior to the Execution Date and will make available and
deliver to Purchaser at all times thereafter, and prior to the Closing Date, true, correct and complete copies of all letters of indications of interest or letters of
intent signed by the PIPE Investors concerning their participation in the PIPE Investment representing an aggregate amount of at least $30,000,000 of
proposed investments in the PIPE Investment. Each letter of indication of interest or letter of intent shall (a) be in full force and effect without amendment or
modification; (b) to the knowledge of Company, be the validly executed statement of each PIPE Investor; and (c) have not been withdrawn, terminated or
rescinded in any respect.
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ARTICLE V

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
OF PURCHASER AND MERGER SUB

 
Except as disclosed in the (i) Purchaser SEC Documents filed with or furnished to the SEC prior to the date of this Agreement (other than any risk

factor disclosures or other similar cautionary or predictive statements therein), or (ii) the corresponding sections of the disclosure schedule delivered by the
Purchaser to the Company (the “Purchaser Disclosure Schedule”), Purchaser and Merger Sub (the “Purchaser Parties”) hereby represent and warrant to the
Company that each of the following representations and warranties are true, correct and complete as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date:
 

5.1 Corporate Existence and Power. Purchaser is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the
Delaware. Merger Sub is a company duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Delaware. Merger Sub does not hold and has not held
any material assets or incurred any material liabilities, and has not carried on any business activities other than in connection with the Merger.
 

5.2 Corporate Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by the Purchaser Parties of this Agreement and the Additional Agreements
and the consummation by the Purchaser Parties of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are within the corporate powers of the Purchaser Parties
and have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Purchaser Parties. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered
by the Purchaser Parties and it constitutes, and upon its execution and delivery, the Additional Agreements will constitute, a valid and legally binding
agreement of the Purchaser Parties, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or
other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity. This Agreement and the other Additional
Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder have been duly approved by the Purchaser, in its capacity as sole shareholder of Merger Sub. The
affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Purchaser Common Stock entitled to vote at the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting,
assuming a quorum is present, to approve the adoption of the Merger and this Agreement is the only vote of any of Purchaser’s capital stock necessary in
connection with the entry into this Agreement or any Additional Agreement by Purchaser and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby, including the Closing (the “Purchaser Stockholder Approval”).
 

5.3 Governmental Authorization. Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties set forth in Section 4.3, neither the execution,
delivery nor performance of this Agreement requires any consent, approval, license or other action by or in respect of, or registration, declaration or filing
with any Authority.
 

5.4 Non-Contravention. The execution, delivery and performance by the Purchaser Parties of this Agreement does not and will not (i) contravene or
conflict with the organizational or constitutive documents of the Purchaser Parties, or (ii) contravene or conflict with or constitute a violation of any
provision of any Law, judgment, injunction, order, writ, or decree binding upon the Purchaser Parties.
 

5.5 Finders’ Fees. Except for any liabilities for fees or commissions described on Schedule 4.31 (which are the responsibility of the Company) and
Schedule 5.5 (which is the responsibility of the Purchaser), there is no investment banker, broker, finder or other intermediary which has been retained by or
is authorized to act on behalf of the Purchaser Parties or their Affiliates who might be entitled to any fee or commission from the Company or any of its
Affiliates upon consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements.
 

5.6 Issuance of Shares. The Purchaser Merger Shares, when issued in accordance with this Agreement, will be duly authorized and validly issued,
and will be fully paid and nonassessable.
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5.7 Capitalization.

 
(a) The authorized capital stock of Purchaser consists of 300,000,000 shares of Purchaser Common Stock par value $0.00001 per share,

and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.00001 per share (“Purchaser Preferred Stock”) of which 7,187,500 shares of Purchaser Common
Stock (inclusive of Purchaser Common Stock included in any outstanding Purchaser Units), and no shares of Purchaser Preferred Stock are issued and
outstanding. In addition, (i) 8,137,500 Purchaser Warrants (inclusive of Purchaser Public Warrants included in any outstanding Purchaser Units and the
Purchaser Private Warrants and warrants issued to the Company’s underwriter in its IPO) and (ii) Purchaser Rights to acquire an aggregate of 575,000 shares
of Purchaser Common Stock are issued and outstanding. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.7 (a) of the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule and except for the PIPE
Investment (consisting of the shares of Purchaser Common Stock issuable as part of the PIPE Investment, the PIPE Investor Warrants, and shares underlying
the PIPE Investor Warrants), no other shares of capital stock or other voting securities of Purchaser are issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding. All
issued and outstanding shares of Purchaser Common Stock are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and not subject to or issued in
violation of any purchase option, right of first refusal, preemptive right, subscription right or any similar right under any provision of the Delaware General
Corporation Law, the Purchaser’s organizational documents or any contract to which Purchaser is a party or by which Purchaser is bound. Except as set forth
in the Purchaser’s organizational documents, there are no outstanding contractual obligations of Purchaser to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any
shares of Purchaser Common Stock or any capital equity of Purchaser. There are no outstanding contractual obligations of Purchaser to provide funds to, or
make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in, any other Person.

 
(b) The Merger Sub is authorized to issue 10,000 shares with $0.00001 par value (“Merger Sub Common Stock”) of which 1,000 shares of

Merger Sub Common Stock are issued and outstanding as of the date hereof. No other shares or other voting securities of Merger Sub are issued, reserved for
issuance or outstanding. All issued and outstanding shares of Merger Sub Common Stock are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable
and not subject to or issued in violation of any purchase option, right of first refusal, preemptive right, subscription right or any similar right under any
provision of Law of the State of Delaware, the Merger Sub’s organizational documents or any contract to which Merger Sub is a party or by which Merger
Sub is bound. Except as set forth in the Merger Sub’s organizational documents, there are no outstanding contractual obligations of Merger Sub to
repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of Merger Sub Common Stock or any capital equity of Merger Sub. There are no outstanding contractual
obligations of Merger Sub to provide funds to, or make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in, any other Person.

 
5.8 Information Supplied. None of the information supplied or to be supplied by the Purchaser expressly for inclusion or incorporation by reference

in the filings with the SEC and mailings to Purchaser’s stockholders with respect to the solicitation of proxies to approve the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement and the Additional Agreements, if applicable, including the SEC Statement or any Other Filings, or in any other Additional Purchaser SEC
Documents, will, at the date of filing and/ or mailing, at the time of the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting or at the Effective Time, as the case may be, contain
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in
light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading (subject to the qualifications and limitations set forth in the materials provided by
Purchaser or that is included in the Purchaser SEC Documents, the Additional Purchaser SEC Documents, the SEC Statement or any Other Filing).
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5.9 Trust Fund. As of the date of this Agreement, Purchaser has at least $57,500,000 in the trust fund established by Purchaser for the benefit of its

public stockholders (the “Trust Fund”) in a trust account maintained by Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company (the “Trustee”) at Morgan Stanley (the
“Trust Account”), and such monies are invested in “government securities” (as such term is defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended)
and held in trust by the Trustee pursuant to the Investment Management Trust Agreement, dated as of November 21, 2019, between Purchaser and the
Trustee (the “Trust Agreement”). The Trust Agreement is valid and in full force and effect and enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as may be
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of
equity, and has not been amended or modified. There are no separate agreements, side letters or other agreements or understandings (whether written or
unwritten, express or implied) that would cause the description of the Trust Agreement in the Purchaser SEC Documents to be inaccurate in any material
respect and/or that would entitle any Person (other than stockholders of Purchaser holding shares of Purchaser Common Stock sold in Purchaser’s IPO who
shall have elected to redeem their shares of Purchaser Common Stock pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation) to any portion of the proceeds in the Trust
Account. Prior to the Closing, none of the funds held in the Trust Account may be released except in accordance with the Trust Agreement and the
Purchaser’s organizational documents. Purchaser has performed all material obligations required to be performed by it to date under, and is not in material
default or delinquent in performance or any other respect (claimed or actual) in connection with, the Trust Agreement, and, to the knowledge of Purchaser, no
event has occurred which, with due notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute such a material default thereunder. There are no claims or proceedings
pending with respect to the Trust Account.
 

5.10 Listing. The Purchaser Units, Purchaser Common Stock, Rights and Purchaser Warrants are listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market, with trading
symbols of GRNVU, GRNV, GRNVR and GRNVW, respectively.
 

5.11 Board Approval. The Purchaser’s board of directors (including any required committee or subgroup of such board) has, as of the date of this
Agreement, unanimously (i) declared the advisability of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) determined that the transactions contemplated
hereby are in the best interests of the stockholders of Purchaser and (iii) determined that the transactions contemplated hereby constitutes a “Business
Combination” as such term is defined in Purchaser’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws.
 

5.12 Purchaser SEC Documents and Financial Statements. Purchaser has filed all forms, reports, schedules, statements and other documents,
including any exhibits thereto, required to be filed or furnished by Purchaser with the SEC since Purchaser’s formation under the Exchange Act or the
Securities Act, together with any amendments, restatements or supplements thereto, and will use commercially reasonable efforts to file all such forms,
reports, schedules, statements and other documents required to be filed subsequent to the date of this Agreement (the “Additional Purchaser SEC
Documents”). Purchaser has made available to the Company copies in the form filed with the SEC of all of the following, except to the extent available in
full without redaction on the SEC’s website through EDGAR for at least two (2) days prior to the date of this Agreement: (i) Purchaser’s Annual Reports on
Form 10-K for each fiscal year of Purchaser beginning with the first year Purchaser was required to file such a form, (ii) all proxy statements relating to
Purchaser’s meetings of stockholders (whether annual or special) held, and all information statements relating to stockholder consents, since the beginning of
the first fiscal year referred to in clause (i) above, (iii) its Form 8-Ks filed since the beginning of the first fiscal year referred to in clause (i) above, and (iv) all
other forms, reports, registration statements and other documents (other than preliminary materials if the corresponding definitive materials have been
provided to the Company pursuant to this Section 5.12) filed by Purchaser with the SEC since Purchaser’s formation (the forms, reports, registration
statements and other documents referred to in clauses (i), (ii), (iii), and (iv) above, whether or not available through EDGAR, are, collectively, the
(“Purchaser SEC Documents”). The Purchaser SEC Documents were, and the Additional Purchaser SEC Documents will be, prepared in all material respects
in accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as the case may be, and the rules and regulations
thereunder. The Purchaser SEC Documents did not, and the Additional Purchaser SEC Documents will not, at the time they were or are filed, as the case may
be, with the SEC (except to the extent that information contained in any Purchaser SEC Document or Additional Purchaser SEC Document has been or is
revised or superseded by a later filed Purchaser SEC Document or Additional Purchaser SEC Document, then on the date of such filing) contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that the foregoing does not apply to statements in or omissions in any
information supplied or to be supplied by the Company Group expressly for inclusion or incorporation by reference in any SEC Statement or Other Filing.
As used in this Section 5.12, the term “file” shall be broadly construed to include any manner in which a document or information is furnished, supplied or
otherwise made available to the SEC.
 

43 



 

 
5.13 Certain Business Practices. Neither the Purchaser, nor any director, officer or employee of the Purchaser (in their capacities as such) has (i)

used any funds for unlawful contributions, gifts, entertainment or other unlawful expenses relating to political activity, (ii) made any unlawful payment to
foreign or domestic government officials or employees, to foreign or domestic political parties or campaigns or violated any provision of the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act of 1977 or (iii) made any other unlawful payment. Neither the Purchaser, nor any director, officer or employee of the Purchaser (nor any Person
acting on behalf of any of the foregoing, but solely in his or her capacity as a director, officer or employee of the Purchaser) has, since the IPO, directly or
indirectly, given or agreed to give any gift or similar benefit in any material amount to any customer, supplier, governmental employee or other Person who is
or may be in a position to help or hinder the Purchaser or assist the Purchaser in connection with any actual or proposed transaction, which, if not given or
continued in the future, would reasonably be expected to adversely affect the business or prospects of the Purchaser and would reasonably be expected to
subject the Purchaser to suit or penalty in any private or governmental litigation or proceeding.
 

5.14 Anti-Money Laundering Laws. The operations of the Purchaser are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with the Money
Laundering Laws, and no Action involving the Purchaser with respect to the Money Laundering Laws is pending or, to the knowledge of the Purchaser,
threatened.
 

5.15 Affiliate Transactions. Except as described in the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule or the Purchaser SEC Documents, there are no transactions,
agreements, arrangements or understandings between any of Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any director, officer, employee,
stockholder, warrant holder or Affiliate of Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries.
 

5.16 Litigation. Except as may be set forth in the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule, there is no (i) Action pending, or, to the knowledge of Purchaser,
threatened against Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its or their assets or properties, or (ii) judgment, decree, injunction, rule or order of any
Authority outstanding against Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries or any of its or their assets or properties. Neither Purchaser nor any of its subsidiaries is
party to a settlement or similar agreement regarding any of the matters set forth in the preceding sentence that contains any ongoing obligations, restrictions
or liabilities (of any nature) that are material to Purchaser and its subsidiaries.
 

5.17 Expenses, Indebtedness and Other Liabilities. Except as set forth in the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule or the Purchaser SEC Documents,
Purchaser does not have any Indebtedness or other liabilities.
 

5.18 Tax Matters.
 

(a) (i) The Purchaser has duly and timely filed all material Tax Returns which are required to be filed by or with respect to it, and has paid
all Taxes which have become due; (ii) all such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete and accurate in all material respects; (iii) there is no Action
pending with respect to Taxes of the Purchaser; (iv) no statute of limitations in respect of the assessment or collection of any Taxes of the Purchaser for
which a Lien may be imposed on any of the Purchaser’s assets has been waived or extended, which waiver or extension is in effect; (v) the Purchaser has
complied in all respects with all applicable Laws relating to the reporting, payment, collection and withholding of Taxes and has duly and timely withheld or
collected, paid over to the applicable Taxing Authority and reported all Taxes (including income, social, security and other payroll Taxes) required to be
withheld or collected by the Purchaser; (vi) there is no Lien (other than Permitted Liens) for Taxes upon any of the assets of the Purchaser; (vii) there is no
outstanding request for a ruling from any Taxing Authority, request for a consent by a Taxing Authority for a change in a method of accounting, subpoena or
request for information by any Taxing Authority, or agreement with any Taxing Authority, with respect to the Purchaser; (viii) no claim has ever been made
by a Taxing Authority in a jurisdiction where the Purchaser has not paid any Tax or filed Tax Returns, asserting that the Purchaser is or may be subject to Tax
in such jurisdiction, the Purchaser is not nor has it ever been subject to Tax in any country other than the respective countries of incorporation or formation of
the Purchaser members by virtue of having a permanent establishment or other place of business in that country; (ix) there is no outstanding power of
attorney from the Purchaser authorizing anyone to act on behalf of the Purchaser in connection with any Tax, Tax Return or Action relating to any Tax or Tax
Return of the Purchaser; (x) the Purchaser is not, and has ever been, a party to any Tax sharing or Tax allocation Contract; (xi) the Purchaser is and has never
been included in any consolidated, combined or unitary Tax Return; (xii) to the knowledge of the Purchaser, no issue has been raised by a Taxing Authority
in any prior Action relating to the Purchaser with respect to any Tax for any period which, by application of the same or similar principles, could reasonably
be expected to result in a proposed Tax deficiency of the Purchaser for any other period; and (xiv) the Purchaser has not requested any extension of time
within which to file any Tax Return, which Tax Return has since not been filed.
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(b) The Purchaser will not be required to include any item of income or exclude any item of deduction for any taxable period ending after

the Closing Date as a result of the use of a method of accounting with respect to any transaction that occurred on or before the Closing Date.
 

(c) The unpaid Taxes of the Purchaser (i) did not, as of the most recent fiscal month end, exceed the reserve for Tax liability (rather than
any reserve for deferred Taxes established to reflect timing differences between book and Tax income) set forth on the Financial Statements and (ii) will not
exceed that reserve as adjusted for the passage of time through the Closing Date in accordance with the past custom and practice of the Purchaser in filing its
Tax Return.

 
(d) The Purchaser has been in compliance, in all material respects, with all applicable transfer pricing laws and legal requirements. The

prices for any property or services (or for the use of any property), including interest and other prices for financial services, provided by or to the Purchaser
are arm’s-length prices for purposes of the relevant transfer pricing laws.
 

(e) The Purchaser is not aware of any fact or circumstance that would reasonably be expected to prevent the Merger from qualifying as a
“reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.

 
(f) The Shareholders acknowledge that following the Closing, any FIRPTA Certificate or IRS Forms W-9 or applicable W-8 delivered to

Purchaser pursuant to Section 10.2(m) will be retained by Purchaser, and will be made available to the Taxing Authorities upon request.
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ARTICLE VI

COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES PENDING CLOSING
 

6.1 Conduct of Business. Each member of the Company Group and the Purchaser covenants and agrees that:
 

(a) from the date hereof through the Closing Date, each party shall conduct business only in the ordinary course, (including the payment of
accounts payable and the collection of accounts receivable), consistent with past practices, and shall not enter into any material transactions outside the
ordinary course of business without the prior written consent of the other party, and shall use its reasonable best efforts to preserve intact its business
relationships with employees, clients, suppliers and other third parties. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, from the date hereof until and
including the Closing Date, but except as is in connection with, or contemplated by the PIPE Investment, without the other party’s prior written consent
(which shall not be unreasonably withheld), neither party shall, and the Company shall cause each of its Subsidiaries not to:

 
(i) amend, modify or supplement its certificate of incorporation and bylaws or other organizational or governing documents;

 
(ii) amend, waive any provision of, terminate prior to its scheduled expiration date, or otherwise compromise in any way, any

material Contract or any other right or asset of the Company or Purchaser;
 

(iii) modify, amend or enter into any contract, agreement, lease, license or commitment, which (A) is with respect to Real
Property, (B) extends for a term of one year or more or (C) obligates the payment of more than $100,000 (individually or in the aggregate);

 
(iv) make any capital expenditures in excess of $100,000 individually or $200,000 in the aggregate);

 
(v) sell, lease, license or otherwise dispose of any of its respective assets or assets covered by any Contract except pursuant to

existing contracts or commitments disclosed herein;
 

(vi) [reserved];
 

(vii) except as consented to in writing by the Company or the Purchaser, as the case may be, pay, declare or promise to pay any
dividends or other distributions with respect to its capital stock or other equity securities, or pay, declare or promise to pay any other payments to any
stockholder or shareholder or other equityholder (other than payment of salary, benefits, leases, commissions and other regular, necessary or contractually
required similar payments in the ordinary course);

 
(viii) except as set forth on Schedule 6.1(a)(viii) or Schedule 4.11, or consented to in writing by the Company or the Purchaser as

the case may be, obtain or incur any loan or other Indebtedness, including drawings under the Company Group’s or the Purchaser’s existing lines of credit, or
repay or satisfy any Indebtedness other than repayment of Indebtedness in accordance with the terms thereof;
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(ix) except as consented to in writing by the Purchaser, suffer or incur any Lien, except for Permitted Liens, on the Company

Group’s assets;
 

(x) suffer any material damage, destruction or loss of property related to any of the Company Group’s or the Purchaser’s assets,
not covered by insurance;

 
(xi) delay, accelerate or cancel any receivables or Indebtedness owed to the Company Group or the Purchaser or write off or make

further reserves against the same;
 

(xii) except as set forth on Schedule 6.1(a)(xii) or Schedule 4.13 except as contemplated hereunder, merge or consolidate with or
acquire any other Person or be acquired by any other Person;

 
(xiii) permit any insurance policy protecting any of the Company Group’s or the Purchaser’s assets to lapse, unless simultaneously

with such lapse, a replacement policy underwritten by an insurance company of nationally recognized standing having comparable deductions and providing
coverage equal to or greater than the coverage under the lapsed policy for substantially similar premiums or less is in full force and effect;

 
(xiv) adopt any severance, retention or other employee plans, amend any of its employee plans or fail to continue to make timely

contributions thereto in accordance with the terms thereof;
 

(xv) institute, settle or agree to settle any litigation, action, proceeding or investigation before any court or governmental body in
each case in excess of $150,000 (exclusive of any amounts covered by insurance) or that imposes injunctive or other non-monetary relief on such party;

 
(xvi) make any change in its accounting principles or methods or write down the value of any Inventory or assets;

 
(xvii) change the place of business or jurisdiction of organization;

 
(xviii) other than (a) in connection with the exchange of Company Capital Stock into shares of common stock of the Purchaser to

effectuate the Merger, or (b) agreed upon in writing by Purchaser, issue, redeem or repurchase any Company Capital Stock or other securities, or issue any
securities exchangeable for or convertible into any shares of its capital stock or other securities or rights (other than as otherwise contemplated herein);

 
(xix) make or change any material Tax election or change any annual Tax accounting periods;

 
(xx) enter into any transaction with or distribute or advance any assets or property to any of its Affiliates other than the payment of

salary and benefits in the ordinary course; or
 

(xxi) agree to do any of the foregoing.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 6.1(a), and in particular, subparagraphs (viii) and (xviii), the Company shall be permitted (a) to incur
any loan or other Indebtedness or (b) to issue any shares of capital stock or other securities exchangeable for or convertible into any shares of capital stock of
the Company, provided that (i) the Company provides prior written notice of the terms and conditions of such financing to the Purchaser; and (ii) the
aggregate amount of all such financing transactions does not exceed $6,000,000. The Company shall not engage in the transactions found in either (a) or (b)
of this paragraph after it has raised and/or borrowed an aggregate of $6,000,000, until it has received the prior written consent of the Purchaser, which shall
not be unreasonably withheld.

 
(b) Neither any member of the Company Group nor the Purchaser shall knowingly and intentionally (i) take or agree to take any action that

might make any representation or warranty of such party inaccurate or misleading in any respect at, or as of any time prior to, the Closing Date or (ii) omit to
take, or agree to omit to take, any action necessary to prevent any such representation or warranty from being inaccurate or misleading in any respect at any
such time.
 

(c) From the date hereof through the Closing Date, the Company Group shall not, and shall use reasonable best efforts to cause each of
their respective officers, directors, Affiliates, managers, consultant, employees, representatives and agents not to, directly or indirectly, (i) encourage, solicit,
initiate, engage or participate in negotiations with any Person concerning any Alternative Transaction, (ii) take any other action intended or designed to
facilitate the efforts of any Person relating to a possible Alternative Transaction or (iii) approve, recommend or enter into any Alternative Transaction or any
Contract related to any Alternative Transaction. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Alternative Transaction” shall mean any of the following
transactions involving the Company Group (other than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement): (y) any merger, consolidation, share exchange,
business combination or other similar transaction, or (z) any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition of a material portion of the assets of such
Person (other than sales of inventory in the ordinary course of business) or any class or series of the capital stock or other equity interests of the Company
Group in a single transaction or series of transactions. In the event that there is an unsolicited proposal for, or an indication of a serious interest in entering
into, an Alternative Transaction, communicated in writing to the Company Group or any of its respective representatives or agents (each, an “Alternative
Proposal”), such party shall as promptly as practicable (and in any event within one (1) Business Day after receipt) advise the other parties to this Agreement
orally and in writing of any Alternative Proposal and the material terms and conditions of any such Alternative Proposal (including any changes thereto) and
the identity of the person making any such Alternative Proposal. The Company shall keep the other parties informed on a reasonably current basis of material
developments with respect to any such Alternative Proposal.
 

6.2 Access to Information. From the date hereof until and including the Closing Date, the Company, each member of the Company Group and the
Purchaser shall each, to the best of its ability, (a) continue to give the other party, its legal counsel and other representatives full access to the offices,
properties and, Books and Records, (b) furnish to the other party, its legal counsel and other representatives such information relating to the business of the
Company Group and the Purchaser as such Persons may request and (c) cause the employees, legal counsel, accountants and representatives to cooperate
with the other party in its investigation of the Business; provided that no investigation pursuant to this Section (or any investigation prior to the date hereof)
shall affect any representation or warranty given by the Company Group or the Purchaser and, provided further, that any investigation pursuant to this
Section shall be conducted in such manner as not to interfere unreasonably with the conduct of the Business of the Company and each member of the
Company Group. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, neither party shall be required to provide the access described above or
disclose any information if doing so is reasonably likely to (i) result in a waiver of attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine or similar privilege or (ii)
violate any contract to which it is a party or to which it is subject or applicable Law.
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6.3 Notices of Certain Events. Each of the Purchaser and the Company shall, and the Company shall cause each Subsidiary of the Company to,

promptly notify the other party of:
 

(a) any notice or other communication from any Person alleging or raising the possibility that the consent of such Person is or may be
required in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement might give rise to any
Action or other rights by or on behalf of such Person or result in the loss of any rights or privileges of the Company (or the Purchaser, post-Closing) to any
such Person or create any Lien on any Company Capital Stock or capital stock of the Purchaser or any of the Company Group’s or the Purchaser’s assets;
 

(b) any notice or other communication from any Authority in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the
Additional Agreements;

 
(c) any Actions commenced or threatened against, relating to or involving or otherwise affecting either party or any of their stockholders or

their equity, assets or business or that relate to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Additional Agreements;
 

(d) the occurrence of any fact or circumstance which constitutes or results, or would reasonably be expected to constitute or result in a
Material Adverse Change; and

 
(e) any inaccuracy of any representation or warranty of such party contained in this Agreement at any time during the term hereof, or any

failure of such party to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be complied with or satisfied by it hereunder, that would reasonably
be expected to cause any of the conditions set forth in Article X not to be satisfied.
 

6.4 Annual and Interim Financial Statements. In addition to the agreement of the Company Group to deliver audited financial statements for the two
(2) years ending December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2020 as set forth in Section 7.9, from the date hereof through the Closing Date, within forty-five (45)
calendar days following the end of each three-month quarterly period (excluding the fourth fiscal quarter), the Company shall deliver to Purchaser an
unaudited consolidated summary of the Company Group’s earnings and an unaudited consolidated balance sheet for the period from the Balance Sheet Date
through the end of such quarterly period and the applicable comparative period in the preceding fiscal year. The Company shall also promptly deliver to
Purchaser copies of any audited consolidated financial statements of the Company Group that the Company’s certified independent accountants may issue. In
addition, if the parties mutually agree that a proposed acquisition of any acquisition target company by the Company is a “significant acquisition” under SEC
Rule S-X or, if required by the SEC to be filed in the Proxy Statement (defined in Section 6.5 hereof) for the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting (as defined in
Section 6.5 hereof), then the Company shall provide, or cause to be provided, no later than April 15, 2021, any financial statements (audited or unaudited, as
the case may be) of any acquisition target company, including such target entities specified in Section 4.13 of the Helbiz Disclosure Schedule, in compliance
with the requirements of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) with respect to the last two fiscal years of such acquisition target
company (“Acquisition Target Company Audited Financials”).

 
6.5 SEC Filings.
 

(a) The Company acknowledges that:
 

(i) the Purchaser’s stockholders must approve the transactions contemplated by this Agreement prior to the transactions
contemplated hereby being consummated and that, in connection with such approval, the Purchaser must call a special meeting of its stockholders (the
“Purchaser Stockholder Meeting”) requiring Purchaser to prepare and file with the SEC a proxy statement and proxy card and such other information in
accordance with SEC rules and regulations, and amend such materials and information from time to time (collectively such information and materials being
referred to as the “Proxy Statement”);
 

(ii) the Purchaser will be required to file Quarterly and Annual reports that may be required to contain information about the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement; and
 

(iii) the Purchaser will be required to file Current Reports on Form 8-K to announce the transactions contemplated hereby and
other significant events that may occur in connection with such transactions.
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(b) Purchaser shall call and hold the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting as promptly as practicable after the date of this Agreement for the

purpose of seeking the Purchaser Stockholder Approval, and Purchaser shall use reasonable best efforts to hold the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting as soon as
practicable after the date of this Agreement and Purchaser shall consult in good faith with the Company with respect to the date on which such meeting is to
be held. Purchaser shall use reasonable best efforts to solicit from its stockholders proxies in favor of the approval and adoption of the Merger and this
Agreement and shall take all other action reasonably necessary or advisable to secure the Purchaser Stockholder Approval. The Company acknowledges that
a substantial portion of the Proxy Statement shall include disclosure regarding the Company Group and its management, operations and financial condition.
Accordingly, the Company agrees to as promptly as reasonably practical provide Purchaser with such information as shall be reasonably requested by
Purchaser or as required under SEC rules and regulation for inclusion in or attachment to the Proxy Statement, and that such information is and shall be
accurate in all material respects and complies or will comply as to form in all material respects with the requirements of the Exchange Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder. The Company understands that such information shall be included in the Proxy Statement and/or responses to comments
from the SEC or its staff in connection therewith and mailings. The Company shall make, and cause each Subsidiary to make, their managers, directors,
officers and employees available to Purchaser and its counsel in connection with the drafting of such filings and mailings and responding in a timely manner
to comments from the SEC.
 

6.6 Trust Account. The Purchaser covenants that it shall make appropriate arrangements to cause the funds in the Trust Account to be disbursed in
accordance with the Trust Agreement and for the payment of (i) all amounts payable to stockholders of Purchaser holding Purchaser Units or Purchaser
Common Stock who shall have validly redeemed their Purchaser Units or Purchaser Common Stock upon acceptance by the Purchaser of such Purchaser
Units or Purchaser Common Stock (the “Purchaser Redemption Amount”), (ii) the expenses to the third parties to which they are owed, and (iii) the
remaining monies in the Trust Account to Purchaser.
 

6.7 Obligations of Merger Sub. Purchaser shall take all action necessary to cause Merger Sub to perform its obligations under this Agreement and to
consummate the transactions contemplated under this Agreement, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement.
 

6.8 Purchaser’s Approval of Stock Based Plan. In connection with the filing of the Purchaser’s Proxy Statement, the Purchaser shall also solicit and
obtain from its stockholders’ approval of an employee stock-based incentive plan in form and substance acceptable to the Company and Purchaser (the
“Purchaser Equity Plan”), which plan shall, among other things, reserve an aggregate of not more than 12.5% of the shares of Purchaser’s Common Stock on
a fully-diluted basis immediately after the Closing.
 

6.9 Purchaser’s Obligation to Extend. In the event that the Company fails to deliver the 2019 Financial Statements or 2020 Financial Statements by
the deadline of March 15, 2021 in compliance with Section 7.9 below, the Purchaser shall take all necessary actions to extend the date by which the
Purchaser is required to complete a business combination from May 21, 2021 to such date that Parties reasonably determine for the purpose of allowing the
Parties to consummate the Merger, provided that the Company shall bear and pay all reasonable costs and expenses related to such extension.
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ARTICLE VII

COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS’ REPRESENTATIVE
 

The Company and Shareholders’ Representative covenant and agree that:
 

7.1 Reporting and Compliance with Laws. From the date hereof through the Closing Date, the Company shall on behalf of the Company Group duly
and timely file all Tax Returns required to be filed with the applicable Taxing Authorities, pay any and all Taxes required by any Taxing Authority and duly
observe and conform in all material respects, to all applicable Laws and Orders.
 

7.2 Commercially Reasonable Efforts to Obtain Consents. The Company shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain each Company
Consent set forth on Schedule 7.2 and Governmental Approval as promptly as practicable hereafter.
 

7.3 Termination of Existing Employment Agreements. Effective as of the Closing Date, the Company shall (i) cause the termination of all
employment agreements between any member of the Company Group and any employee, and (ii) enter into the Employment Agreement with each of the
individuals set forth in Schedule 7.3, in form and substance acceptable to Purchaser.
 

7.4 Lockup. Each Company Securityholder holding or beneficially owning 75,000 or more Company Shares (or other Company Securities
representing the right to acquire 75,000 or more Company Shares; but excluding PIPE Investors) (“Lockup Shareholders”) shall, and the Company shall
cause the Shareholders’ Representative to enter into the Lockup Agreement prior to the Closing. Mr. Salvatore Palella shall be the Shareholders’
Representative. The Shareholders’ Representative, for and on behalf of the Shareholders of the Company, hereby irrevocably agrees that following the
Closing of the Merger and (i) with respect to Salvatore Pallela until the first anniversary of the Closing of the Merger, and (ii) for all other Lockup
Shareholders, until the six-month anniversary of the Closing of the Merger (each as applicable, the “Lockup Period End Date”), none of Salvatore Palella or
the other Lockup Shareholders, as the case may be, shall, directly or indirectly:
 

(a) offer for sale, sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of (or enter into any transaction or device that is designed to, or could be expected to,
result in the disposition by any Person at any time in the future of), other than a transfer solely for estate planning purposes and provided any such transferee
agrees to the provisions herein, any shares of the Purchaser’s Common Stock, or any other securities of the Purchaser convertible into or exercisable or
exchangeable for any shares of such Purchaser Common Stock which are owned as of the Closing Date (collectively, the “Lockup Shares”);
 

(b) enter into any swap or other derivatives transaction that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic benefits or risks of
ownership of the Lockup Shares, whether any such transaction is to be settled by delivery of the Lockup Shares or other securities, in cash or otherwise;
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(c) make any demand for or exercise any right or cause to be filed a registration statement, including any amendments thereto, with respect

to the registration of any Lockup Shares or any other securities of the Purchaser; or
 

(d) [reserved].
 

7.5 Non-compete and Non-Solicitation Agreement. The Company shall cause Salvatore Palella to enter into a non-compete and non-solicitation
agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit E (or include within any employment agreement with such person) annexed hereto for a period of three (3)
years after the Closing in return for the consideration being delivered hereunder, and otherwise in form and substance acceptable to Purchaser. Further, the
Company shall cause each of the other persons whose names appear on Schedule 7.5 hereto to enter into a non-compete and non-solicitation agreement
substantially in the form of Exhibit E (or include within any employment agreement with such persons) annexed hereto for a period of three (3) years after
the Closing in return for the consideration being delivered hereunder, and otherwise in form and substance acceptable to Purchaser; except that such
agreement with Giulio Profumo shall be for a period of twenty-four (24) months
 

7.6 Waiver of Claim against Trust Account. Reference is made to the final Prospectus dated as of November 18, 2019 (“IPO Prospectus”) of the
Purchaser as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission following completion of its IPO. Each of the Company, Company Subsidiary, Company
Principal Shareholders and Shareholder Representative on behalf of itself and the Company Securityholders represents and warrants that it has read the IPO
Prospectus and understands that Purchaser has established the Trust Account containing the proceeds of the IPO and the overallotment shares acquired by
Purchaser’s underwriters and from certain private placements occurring simultaneously with the IPO (including interest accrued from time to time thereon)
for the benefit of Purchaser’s public stockholders (including overallotment shares acquired by Purchaser’s underwriters) (the “Public Stockholders”). The
Company, each member of the Company Group and Shareholders’ Representative on behalf of each Company Securityholder agree that none of them has
any right, title, interest or claim of any kind (“Claim”) in or to any monies in the Trust Account established by the Continental Stock Transfer and Trust
Company to hold funds from the IPO of the Purchaser as described in the IPO Prospectus. Each of the Company, each member of the Company Group, the
Company Principal Shareholders, and Shareholders’ Representative on behalf of all Company Securityholders hereby waives any Claim it may have at any
time as a result of or arising out of any negotiation, contract or agreement with the Purchaser and shall not seek recourse against the Trust Account for any
reason whatsoever. Each of the Company, Company Subsidiary, Company Principal Shareholders and Shareholder Representative on behalf of itself and the
Company Securityholders hereby irrevocably waives any and all claims that any such person or any of its affiliates may have against the Trust Account now
or in the future as a result of, or arising out of, any negotiations, contracts or agreements with Purchaser or its representatives and will not seek recourse
against the Trust Account (including any Public Stockholder distributions) for any reason whatsoever (including for an alleged breach of this Agreement or
any other agreement with Purchaser or its Affiliates). The Company, each Company Subsidiary, the Company Principal Shareholders and Shareholder
Representative on behalf of itself and the Company Securityholders each agree and acknowledges that such irrevocable waiver contained in this Section 7.6
is material to this Agreement and specifically relied upon by Purchaser and its Affiliates to induce Purchaser to enter in this Agreement, and each of the
Company, each Company Subsidiary, the Company Principal Shareholders and Shareholder Representative on behalf of itself and the Company
Securityholders further intends and understands such waiver to be valid, binding and enforceable against such persons and each of their respective Affiliates
under applicable Law. This Section 7.6 shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason.
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7.7 No Trading. Each of the Company and Shareholders’ Representative acknowledges and agrees that it is aware, and that its Affiliates are aware

(and each of their respective representatives is aware or, upon receipt of any material nonpublic information of the Purchaser, will be advised) of the
restrictions imposed by U.S. federal securities laws and the rules and regulations of the SEC and Nasdaq promulgated thereunder or otherwise (the “Federal
Securities Laws”) and other applicable foreign and domestic Laws on a Person possessing material nonpublic information about a publicly traded company.
Each of the Company and Shareholders’ Representative hereby agrees that, while it is in possession of such material nonpublic information of the Purchaser,
it shall not purchase or sell any securities of the Purchaser in violation of such Laws, communicate such information to any third party without the consent of
the Purchaser, take any other action with respect to the Purchaser in violation of such Laws, or cause or encourage any third party to do any of the foregoing.
 

7.8 [Reserved.]
 

7.9 Financial Statements. Prior to the Purchaser’s filing of any preliminary Proxy Statement with the SEC, the Company shall provide to the
Purchaser correct and complete copies of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company Group for each of the fiscal year ended December 31,
2019 (the “2019 Financial Statements”) and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 (the “2020 Financial Statements”). The 2019 Financial Statements and
2020 Financial Statements shall consist of (i) the audited consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2020, (ii) the audited
consolidated income statements for the twelve (12) month periods ended on December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2020, (iii) the audited consolidated cash
flow statements for the twelve (12) month periods ended on December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2020, (iv) the audited consolidated stockholders’ equity
statements, and (v) all notes to such financial statements as required in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Such 2019 Financial Statements and 2020 Financial
Statements shall be materially true, complete and correct, and fairly present, in conformity with U.S. GAAP applied on a consistent basis, the financial
position of the Company Group as of the dates thereof and the results of operations of the Company Group for the periods reflected therein and for both
periods shall include the report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm, which firm shall be registered and in good-standing with the U.S. Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board. The Company shall deliver the 2019 Financial Statements and the 2020 Financial Statements to the Purchaser no
later than March 15, 2021. In addition, if the parties mutually agree that a proposed acquisition of any acquisition target company by the Company is a
“significant acquisition” under SEC Rule S-X or, if required by the SEC to be filed in the Proxy Statement (defined in Section 6.5 hereof) for the Purchaser
Stockholder Meeting (as defined in Section 6.5 hereof), then the Company shall provide, or cause to be provided, no later than April 15, 2021, any financial
statements (audited or unaudited, as the case may be) of any acquisition target company, including such target entities specified in Section 4.13 of the Helbiz
Disclosure Schedule, in compliance with the requirements of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) with respect to the last two fiscal
years of such acquisition target company (“Acquisition Target Company Audited Financials”).
 

7.10 Accredited Investor Questionnaires. Prior to the Closing, the Company shall provide to the Purchaser questionnaires, in a form acceptable to
Purchaser, completed and executed by each Company Securityholder, pursuant to which each such Company Securityholder certifies, to Purchaser’s
reasonable satisfaction, that such Company Securityholder is an Accredited Investor.
 

7.11 Composition of Board Committees. The Company Group shall, or shall cause each of the persons who it appoints to serve on the Board of
Directors of Purchaser upon the Closing, to agree that the composition of the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee of the Purchaser shall include
at least one independent director who is appointed to the Board of Directors by Purchaser prior to the Effective Time.
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ARTICLE VIII

COVENANTS OF ALL PARTIES HERETO
 

The Parties hereto covenant and agree that:
 
8.1 Commercially Reasonable Efforts; Further Assurances.

 
(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each party (other than the Shareholders’ Representative) shall use its

commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary or desirable under applicable
Laws, or as reasonably requested by the other parties, to consummate and implement expeditiously each of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
including using reasonable best efforts to (i) obtain all necessary actions, nonactions, waivers, consents, approvals and other authorizations from all
applicable Authorities prior to the Effective Time, and (ii) avoid an Action or proceeding by any Authority, and (iii) execute and deliver any additional
instruments necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The parties hereto (other than the Shareholders’ Representative) shall
execute and deliver such other documents, certificates, agreements and other writings and take such other actions as may be necessary or desirable in order to
consummate or implement expeditiously each of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
 

(b) Without limiting the generality of Section 8.1(a), each party hereto (other than the Shareholders’ Representative) agrees to, and shall
cause its respective Affiliates to, make as promptly as practicable any filings or notifications required to be made by it under any other applicable antitrust,
competition, or trade regulation Law and to supply as promptly as practicable to the appropriate Authority any additional information and documentary
material that may be requested by such Authority pursuant to the applicable antitrust, competition, or trade regulation Law.
 

(c) Subject to applicable Law, each of the Company and Purchaser agrees to (i) cooperate and consult with the other regarding obtaining
and making all notifications and filings with Authorities, (ii) furnish to the other such information and assistance as the other may reasonably request in
connection with its preparation of any notifications or filings, (iii) keep the other apprised of the status of matters relating to the completion of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including promptly furnishing the other with copies of notices or other communications received by such party
from, or given by such party to, any third party or any Authority with respect to such transactions, (iv) permit the other party to review and incorporate the
other party’s reasonable comments in any communication to be given by it to any Authority with respect to any filings required to be made with, or action or
nonactions, waivers, expirations or terminations of waiting periods, clearances, consents or orders required to be obtained from, such Authority in connection
with execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (v) to the extent reasonably
practicable, consult with the other in advance of and not participate in any meeting or discussion relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
either in person or by telephone, with any Authority in connection with the proposed transactions unless it gives the other party the opportunity to attend and
observe; provided, however, in each of clauses (iii) and (iv) above, that materials may be redacted (A) to remove references concerning the valuation of such
party and its Affiliates, (B) as necessary to comply with contractual arrangements or applicable Laws, and (C) as necessary to address reasonable attorney-
client or other privilege or confidentiality concerns.
 

8.2 Compliance with SPAC Agreements. The Company and Purchaser shall comply with each of the following agreements (“SPAC Agreements”)
(i) Investment Management Trust Agreement, dated November 18, 2019, by and between the Purchaser and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company;
(ii) the Rights Agreement as of November 18, 2019 between Purchaser and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company; and (iii) the Warrant Agreement is
made as of November 18, 2019 between Purchaser and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company.
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8.3 Cooperation with Purchaser to Prepare and File Proxy Statement.

 
(a) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, it is understood and agreed that as soon as reasonably practicable, after

receiving all necessary information relating to the Company Group members from the Company for inclusion in the Proxy Statement, the Purchaser shall
prepare and file with the SEC the Proxy Statement, or such other form, statement, or report as may be required under the United States federal securities laws
(such Proxy Statement, or such other report or form, whether in preliminary or definitive form, and any amendments or supplements thereto, the “Proxy
Statement”) for the purpose of seeking the Purchaser Stockholder Approval. Each party shall use its reasonable best efforts to prepare the Proxy Statement
(including any and all financial statements and financial information) and thereafter resolve all SEC comments on the Proxy Statement as promptly as
practicable after such filing, and Purchaser and the Company shall take all action reasonably required (other than qualifying to do business in any jurisdiction
in which it is not now so qualified, or filing a general consent to service of process) to be taken under any applicable state securities Laws in connection with
the issuance of Purchaser Merger Shares pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Each of Purchaser and the Company members shall furnish all information
as may be reasonably requested by the other parties in connection with any such action and the preparation, filing and distribution of the Proxy Statement and
any Other Filing. As promptly as practicable after all SEC comments on the Proxy Statement shall have been resolved, Purchaser shall use its reasonable best
efforts to cause the Proxy Statement to be mailed to its stockholders as of the record date for the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting.
 

(b) The Company shall, and the Company shall cause each member of the Company Group and each Person whom intends to serve as a
director of the Purchaser or member of executive management of Purchaser following Closing to provide Purchaser with all reasonable information
concerning the business of the Company Group and the management, operations and financial condition of the Company Group as is required by the SEC for
inclusion in the Proxy Statements (“Company Information”), including, all financial statements required by relevant securities laws and regulations (the
“Required Company Financial Statements”), which shall be prepared under such accounting principles and for such periods as required by the forms, rules
and regulations of the SEC or as requested by the SEC in connection with its review of the Proxy Statement or any Other Filing. Subject to the Company’s
review and approval of any Proxy Statement including Company Information and the consent of the Company’s auditor to the inclusion of the Required
Company Financial Statements in any Proxy Statement (in each case, such approval or consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), the
Company acknowledges and agrees that Company Information (including the Company Group Financial Statements), or summaries thereof or extracts
therefrom, may be included in the Proxy Statement and any other filings required under the Exchange Act, Securities Act or any other United States federal,
foreign or blue sky laws (“Other Filings”). In connection therewith, each of Purchaser and the Company shall instruct their respective employees, counsel,
financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives to reasonably cooperate with the other parties and their respective employees, counsel,
financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives as relevant if required to achieve the foregoing. No filing of, or amendment or supplement to,
the Proxy Statement or any Other Filing will be made (in each case including documents incorporated by reference therein) by either Purchaser or the
Company without providing the other with a reasonable opportunity to review and comment thereon. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Company
nor the Purchaser will file any Proxy Statement or Other Filings without the other party’s approval (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed). Purchaser and the Company will advise the other parties hereto promptly after it receives any oral or written request by the SEC for
amendment of the Proxy Statement or Other Filings, as applicable, or comments thereon and responses thereto or requests by the SEC for additional
information and each party will promptly provide the other with copies of any written communication between it or any of its representatives, on the one
hand, and the SEC, any state securities commission or their respective staffs, on the other hand, with respect to the Proxy Statement or the Merger. Purchaser
and the Company shall use their respective reasonable best efforts, after consultation with each other, to resolve all such requests or comments with respect to
the Proxy Statement or Other Filings as promptly as reasonably practicable after receipt thereof. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each of
Purchaser and the Company shall cooperate with each other in the preparation of each of Proxy Statement and Other Filing and each of Purchaser and the
Company shall furnish the other with all information concerning it and its Affiliates as the requesting party (after consulting with counsel) may deem
reasonably necessary or advisable in connection with the preparation of the Proxy Statement or Other Filings, as applicable. Purchaser and the Company
shall notify each other promptly of the time when the Proxy Statement shall be declared definitive, of the issuance of any stop order or suspension of the
qualification of the Purchaser Common Stock issuable in connection with the Merger for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or of the receipt of any
comments from the SEC or the staff of the SEC and of any request by the SEC or the staff of the SEC for amendments or supplements to the Proxy
Statement, Other Filings or for additional information.
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(c) The Company and each member of the Company Group covenants that as of the date of the filing of any Proxy Statement with the SEC

or Other Filing, none of the Company Information, Company Group Financial Statements or other financial information supplied by the Company in
connection with the Proxy Statement or Other Filing shall contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
 

(d) If at any time prior to the Effective Time any information relating to Purchaser or the Company or any of their respective Affiliates,
directors, officers or stockholders, should be discovered by Purchaser or the Company which should be set forth in an amendment or supplement to either the
Proxy Statement or Other Filings, so that any such document would not include any misstatement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact
necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, the party that discovers such information
shall promptly notify the other parties hereto and an appropriate amendment or supplement describing such information shall be promptly filed with the SEC
and, to the extent required by Law, disseminated to Purchaser’s stockholders.
 

8.4 Confidentiality. Except as necessary to complete the Proxy Statement or any other Proxy Statements or Other Filings, the Company, on the one
hand, and Purchaser and Merger Sub, on the other hand, shall hold and shall cause their respective representatives to hold in strict confidence, unless
compelled to disclose by judicial or administrative process or by other requirements of Law, all documents and information concerning the other party
furnished to it by such other party or its representatives in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (except to the extent that such
information can be shown to have been (a) previously known by the party to which it was furnished, (b) in the public domain through no fault of such party
or (c) later lawfully acquired from other sources, which source is not the agent of the other party, by the party to which it was furnished), and each party shall
not release or disclose such information to any other person, except its representatives in connection with this Agreement. In the event that any party believes
that it is required to disclose any such confidential information pursuant to applicable Laws, to the extent legally permissible, such party shall give timely
written notice to the other party so that such party may have an opportunity to obtain a protective order or other appropriate relief. Each party shall be
deemed to have satisfied its obligations to hold confidential information concerning or supplied by the other party if it exercises the same care as it takes to
preserve confidentiality for its own similar information. The parties acknowledge that some previously confidential information will be required to be
disclosed in the Proxy Statement and any other SEC Statements and Other Filings. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, following the
Closing, the Shareholders’ Representative shall be permitted to disclose information as required by Law or to employees, advisors, agents or consultants of
the Shareholders’ Representative and to the Company Securityholders, in each case who have a need to know such information, provided that such persons
are subject to confidentiality obligations with respect thereto.
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8.5 Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnification and Liability Insurance.

 
(a) All rights to indemnification for acts or omissions occurring through the Closing Date now existing in favor of the current directors and

officers of the Company and the Purchaser as provided in their respective organizational documents or in any indemnification agreements shall survive the
applicable Merger and shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with their terms.
 

(b) Prior to the Closing Date, the Company and Purchaser shall purchase and fully pay the premium for a directors and officers tail liability
insurance policy, with respect to claims arising from facts and events that occurred prior to the Closing Date.
 

(c) The provisions of this Section 8.5 are intended to be for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each Person who will have been a
director or officer of the Company or the Purchaser for all periods ending on or before the Closing Date and may not be changed with respect to any officer
or director without his or her written consent.

 
(d) Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall obtain and fully pay the premium for a seven (7) year prepaid “tail” policy for the

extension of the directors’ and officers’ liability coverage of the Purchaser’s and the Company’s existing directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policies,
for claims reporting or discovery period of seven years from and after the Effective Time, on terms and conditions providing coverage retentions, limits and
other material terms substantially equivalent to the current policies of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the Purchaser and the
Company with respect to matters arising on or before the Effective Time, covering without limitation the transactions contemplated hereby. After the
Effective Time, Company shall cause such “tail” policy to be maintained in full force and effect, for its full term, and shall honor all of its obligations
thereunder, and no party shall have any other obligation to purchase or pay for any insurance hereunder. The Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of the
Surviving Corporation shall at all times provide that the surviving corporation shall indemnify the directors and officers of the Company and the Purchaser to
the maximum extent provided by law.

  
(e) If the Company or Purchaser or any of their respective legal successors or permitted assigns (i) shall consolidate with or merge into any

other Person and shall not be the continuing or surviving Person of such consolidation or merger or (ii) shall transfer all or substantially all of its properties
and assets to any Person, then, and in each such case, proper provisions shall be made so that the legal successors and permitted assigns of Company or
Purchaser shall assume all of the obligations set forth in this Section 8.5. The provisions of this Section 8.5 are intended to be for the benefit of, and from and
after the Closing shall be enforceable by, each Person who is an intended third-party beneficiary of this Section 8.5. The rights of such Persons under
this Section 8.5 shall be in addition to any rights such Persons may have under the organizational documents of the Company or Purchaser, as case may be, or
under any applicable Contracts or Laws and nothing in this Agreement is intended to, shall be construed or shall release or impair any rights to directors’ and
officers’ insurance claims under any policy that is or has been in existence with respect to the Purchaser or Company for any of their respective directors,
officers or other employees (it being understood and agreed that the indemnification provided for in this Section 8.5 is not prior to or in substitution of any
such claims under such policies).
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8.6 Execution of Employment Agreements with Senior Management. Prior to the filing of any Proxy Statement by the Purchaser, the Company will

identify members of the senior management team and will execute an offer letter or other employment related agreement with each such senior management
member as set forth on Schedule 8.6, in such form and terms as agreed upon by the Company, such persons and Purchaser.
 

8.7 Repayment of Purchaser Indebtedness and other Liabilities. Except as agreed upon by Purchaser in writing, prior to or concurrent with the
Closing, and subject to the adjustment in the number of Purchaser Merger Shares provided in Section 3.1(a), Purchaser shall repay and extinguish all
expenses, Indebtedness and other liabilities without any further Liability to the Company or Purchaser, and shall deliver, at least five (5) Business Days prior
to the Closing Date, executed waivers, payoff letters or final invoices, as applicable, from each vendor, lender, creditor, noteholder or other counterparty to
which such expenses, Indebtedness or other liabilities.
 

8.8 Certain Tax Matters. Purchaser and the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Merger to qualify as a “reorganization” within
the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. Neither Purchaser nor the Company shall take any action, or fail to take any action, that could reasonably be
expected to cause the Merger to fail to qualify as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. Purchaser and the Company intend to
report and, except to the extent otherwise required by a change in Law, shall report, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Merger as a “reorganization”
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, unless otherwise required by applicable Law.
 

8.9 Purchaser Equity Incentive Plan. Prior to the Closing, the Board of Directors of Purchaser shall approve and Purchaser’s stockholders shall
approve as part of the Purchaser’s Proxy Statement the Purchaser Equity Incentive Plan in form and substance acceptable to the Company and which would
include (a) a reserve for a number of shares available for issuance under the Purchaser Equity Incentive Plan equal to no more than 12.5% of the total number
of shares of Purchaser Common Stock on a fully-diluted basis anticipated to be issued and outstanding following the Closing Date; and (b) such other terms
are customary for a company whose securities are traded on the Nasdaq Stock Market and (c) otherwise in form and substance acceptable to the Company
and the Purchaser. On or prior to the Closing Date, the Purchaser shall be permitted to issue pursuant to the Purchaser Equity Incentive Plan 30,000 shares of
Purchaser Common Stock to Lee Stern in consideration for his services on the Board of Directors of the Purchaser, in addition to any other compensation to
which he may be entitled as a member of the Board of Directors from and after the Effective Time.
 

8.10 Retention of Proxy Solicitation Agent. The Parties shall use their reasonable efforts to retain a proxy solicitation agent mutually acceptable to
the Parties, within ten (10) Business Days of execution of this Agreement to assist the Parties with preparing the Proxy Statement and soliciting Purchaser’s
stockholders to obtain the affirmative vote of the Purchaser’s stockholders in favor of the Merger, and such other matters as may be determined by the
Parties.
 

8.11 Post-Closing Covenant Regarding Release of Shares from Lock-Up Agreements. The Company and the Shareholder Representative on behalf
of the Company Securityholders each covenant and agree that they shall not request that, and shall not allow the Board of Directors’ representatives serving
on the Board of Directors of Purchaser, any Purchaser Merger Shares be released from any lockup prior to expiration of the Lockup Up Period End Date.
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8.12 PIPE Investment. Prior to the Closing, and assuming that no termination of this Agreement has occurred in accordance with its terms, the

Company shall use its best efforts to cooperate in connection with the arrangement and closing of the PIPE Investment as may be requested by Purchaser,
including by (i) participating in a reasonable number of meetings, presentations, due diligence sessions, drafting sessions and sessions with investors at
mutually agreeable times and locations and upon reasonable advance notice; (ii) reasonably assisting with the preparation of customary materials for actual
and potential participants in the PIPE Investment, offering documents, private placement memoranda, prospectuses and similar documents required in
connection with the PIPE Investment (which shall not include pro forma financial information); (iii) providing financial statements and such other financial
information regarding the Company, that is readily available or within its possession and as is reasonably requested in connection with the PIPE Investment;
(iv) taking or appointing a representative of the Company to take all corporate actions, subject to the occurrence of the Closing, reasonably requested by the
Purchaser to permit the consummation of the PIPE Investment and the issuance of the securities in PIPE Investment immediately following the Closing; (v)
assisting Purchaser to satisfy the conditions set forth in any document executed in connection with the PIPE Investment; and (vi) otherwise using its best
efforts to cooperate with Purchaser in its efforts to consummate the PIPE Investment.
 

8.13 Subscription Agreements. No later than March 1, 2021, the Company shall cause the PIPE Investors to execute and deliver to the Purchaser
binding and enforceable Subscription Agreements on terms acceptable to Purchaser evidencing each such PIPE Investor’s participation in the PIPE
Investment, such that at least $30,000,000 of investment capital is committed to the PIPE Investment. Each Subscription Agreement (i) shall be in full force
and effect and not be withdrawn or terminated, or otherwise amended or modified, in any respect; (ii) shall be a legal, valid and binding obligation of each
PIPE Investor, and none of the execution, delivery or performance of obligations under such Subscription Agreement by each PIPE Investor, shall violate any
Laws; and (iii) shall contain all of the conditions precedent (other than the conditions contained in the other agreements related to the transactions
contemplated herein) to the obligations of the PIPE Investors to contribute to Purchaser the applicable portion of the PIPE Investment amount set forth in the
Subscription Agreements on the terms therein. The Company shall use its best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and do, or cause to be done, all
things reasonably necessary, proper or advisable to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Subscription Agreements on the terms and conditions
described therein, including assisting the Purchaser in maintaining in effect the Subscription Agreements and using its best efforts to (a) satisfy in all material
respects on a timely basis all conditions and covenants applicable to it or the Purchaser in the Subscription Agreements and otherwise comply with its
obligations thereunder; (b) in the event that all conditions in the Subscription Agreements (other than conditions that Purchaser or any of its Affiliates control
the satisfaction of and other than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing) have been satisfied, assisting the Purchaser in
consummating the transactions contemplated by the Subscription Agreements at or prior to Closing; (c) assisting the Purchaser in enforcing its rights under
the Subscription Agreements in the event that all conditions in the Subscription Agreements (other than conditions that Purchaser or any of its Affiliates
control the satisfaction of and other than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing) have been satisfied, to cause the applicable
PIPE Investors to contribute the applicable portion of the PIPE Investment set forth in the Subscription Agreements at or prior to the Closing; and (d) using
its best efforts to ensure that the requisite amount of funds are committed under the Subscription Agreements for the PIPE Investment.
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ARTICLE IX

CONDITIONS TO CLOSING
 

9.1 Condition to the Obligations of the Parties. The obligations of all of the parties to consummate the Closing are subject to the satisfaction, or the
waiver at the discretion of both Purchaser and Company, of all of the following further conditions:
 

(a) No provisions of any applicable Law, and no Order shall restrain or prohibit, or impose any condition on, the Closing;
 

(b) The Merger shall have been completed and the Certificate of Merger evidencing the merger of Merger Sub with and into the Company
shall have been received from the Delaware Secretary of State;
 

(c) The required stock exchange and regulatory review (including SEC and Nasdaq) has been completed, and all governmental approvals
required for the Merger shall have been obtained and the Purchaser’s Units, Purchaser’s Common Stock (including the Purchaser Merger Shares) and
Purchaser’s Warrants shall continue to be listed for trading on Nasdaq;
 

(d) There shall not be any Action brought, commenced or threatened by any governmental Authority or other Person to enjoin, challenge,
interfere with or otherwise restrict the consummation of the Closing;
 

(e) Each of the Purchaser Stockholder Approval for (i) the Merger and (ii) the adoption of the Purchaser Equity Plan, with a reserve of up
to twelve point five (12.5%) percent of the Purchaser’s issued and outstanding common stock, on a fully-diluted basis, immediately after the Closing, shall
have been obtained;
 

(f) Prior to or at the Closing, before consummation of the PIPE Investment after distribution of the Trust Account pursuant to Section 6.6,
deducting all amounts to be paid pursuant to the Purchaser Share Redemption, Purchaser shall have unrestricted cash on hand equal to or in excess of
$15,000,000 before payment or deduction of any costs and expenses incurred with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
 

(g) Each of the directors and officers of Purchaser, other than Jonathan Intrater shall provide their resignations as officers and directors of
Purchaser, effective at Closing, and the proposed new directors of the Purchaser shall have been appointed.
 

9.2 Conditions to Obligations of Purchaser and Merger Sub. The obligation of Purchaser and Merger Sub to consummate the Closing is subject to
the satisfaction, or the waiver at Purchaser’s sole and absolute discretion, of all the following further conditions:
 

(a) The Company shall have duly performed in all material respects all of its obligations hereunder required to be performed by it at or
prior to the Closing Date.
 

(b) All of the representations and warranties of the Company Group contained in this Agreement and in any certificate delivered by the
Company pursuant hereto, disregarding all qualifications and exceptions contained therein relating to materiality or Material Adverse Effect, shall: (i) be true
and correct at and as of the date of this Agreement, or, (ii) if otherwise specified, when made or when deemed to have been made, and (iii) be true and correct
as of the Closing Date, except in the case of (i), (ii) and (iii) for any inaccuracies in such representations and warranties which would not in the aggregate
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and further, for the purpose of determining the truth, accuracy and completeness of the
representations and warranties of the Company Group as of both the date of this Agreement and the Closing Date, the terms Financial Statements, Balance
Sheet, and Balance Sheet Date, as each are defined in Section 4.11(a), shall be amended to include the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company Group for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 and each fiscal year in the two-year period ending on such date, and the audited consolidated
balance sheet of the Company Group as of such date
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(c) There shall have been no continuing event, change or occurrence which individually or together with any other event, change or

occurrence, would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect upon the Company Group.
 

(d) [Reserved]
 

(e) Purchaser shall have received a certificate signed by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company to the
effect set forth in clauses (a) through (d) of this Section 9.2 (the “Company Certificate”).
 

(f) Purchaser shall have received the Financial Statements and the Projections.
 

(g) Purchaser shall have received (i) a copy of the Charter Documents of the Company certified as of a recent date by the Secretary of State
or similar official of its jurisdictions of organization, (ii) copies of resolutions duly adopted by the board of directors of the Company and by vote or consent
of the Shareholders authorizing this Agreement, the Additional Agreements and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, (iii) a certificate of the
Secretary of the Company certifying as to signatures of the officer(s) executing this Agreement and any certificate or document to be delivered pursuant
hereto, together with evidence of the incumbency of such Secretary, and (iv) a good standing certificate for each of the Company and its Subsidiaries
certified as of a date no later than thirty (30) days prior to the Closing Date from the proper Governmental Authority of the jurisdiction of organization of
each of the Company and its Subsidiaries.
 

(h) Each of the Registration Rights Agreement, Lock-up Agreement, Non-Compete Agreements, and Escrow Agreement shall have been
duly executed and delivered by each party thereto other than Purchaser.
 

(i) The Company shall have delivered to the Purchaser executed (i) payoff letters for all Indebtedness, expenses and other liabilities of the
Company and each of its Subsidiaries that remain unpaid as of immediately prior to the Closing and (ii) any required consents to the transactions
contemplated hereunder under any Material Contracts, Leases or Permits.
 

(j) The Company shall have entered into the Employment Agreement with each of individuals set forth on Schedule 8.6.
 

(k) Each of the Persons set forth in Schedule 9.2(k) shall have entered into a non-competition and non-solicitation agreement for a period of
three (3) years after the Closing in return for the consideration being delivered hereunder.
 

(l) The Purchaser shall have received all certificates, if certificated (or lost stock affidavits) representing Company Securities held by
Company Securityholders.
 

(m) The Purchaser shall have received an opinion of counsel to the Company Group with respect to the matters describe on Exhibit F
annexed hereto.
 

(n) The Purchaser shall receive written evidence of the termination of the existing employment, severance, or similar compensation
agreements between the Company Group and the individuals referenced on Schedule 4.24.
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(o) The composition of the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Purchaser after the Closing shall

include at least one independent director designated by the Purchaser (prior to the Effective Time).
 

(p) The PIPE Investment shall be consummated pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of the applicable Subscription Agreements.
 

(q) The Company shall have available capital in an amount sufficient for the purposes of paying Company Indebtedness and to provide for
sufficient working capital based upon the pro forma financial statements to be filed with the Proxy Statement.
 

(r) The Purchaser shall receive any and all FIRPTA certifications from the Company Securityholders as may be necessary or required under
Law.
 

(s) The Purchaser shall receive from the Company written evidence of: (i) release of any and all Liens with respect to any shares of capital
stock of the Company and each member of the Company Group; (ii) conversion of all outstanding shares of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock and
Series B Preferred Stock and Company Notes; (iii) all of the outstanding options, warrants and all other securities of the Company that are convertible into or
which may be exercised or exchange for capital stock of the Company shall have been converted, exercised or exchanged for capital stock of the Company or
cancelled prior to the completion of the Merger; (iv) the termination of all stockholder agreements, voting agreements, rights of first refusal, put or similar
rights, pledge agreements, operating agreements, rights to acquire capital stock of the Company, and similar contracts or agreements between any
stockholders of the Company or any pre-closing member or stockholder of any Subsidiary; (v) termination of any broker’s or finders’ fees agreements
binding upon the Company or any member of the Company Group; (vi) termination of any and all agreements related to profit sharing with respect to any
member of the Company Group; and (vii) the termination of the additional agreements specified on Schedule 9.2(s)(vii).
 

(t) [Reserved]
 

(u) The Purchaser shall have received completed and executed Accredited Investor Questionnaires, as contemplated in Section 7.10, of all
the Company Securityholders in a form reasonably satisfactory to Purchaser.

 
(v) (i) The Company shall have delivered to Purchaser fully-executed copies of all material software or intellectual property license

agreements, pursuant to which the Company Group has been granted licenses to use industry-standard software necessary for the commercialization and
operation of its Business in the U.S. market.
 

(ii) The Company shall have delivered to Purchaser fully-executed copies of Confidential Information and Invention Assignment
Agreements, in a form reasonably acceptable to Purchaser, for each employee of the Company Group as of the Closing Date.

 
(iii) The Company shall have delivered to Purchaser evidence, in a form reasonably acceptable to Purchaser, that the Company Group

(a) has filed U.S. federal trademark applications for all trademarks in use by Company Group for the operation of its Business and (b) has title or registration
to all domain name registrations (if any) that are used (or held for use) by or for the Company Group or that relate to the Business.
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(iv) The Company shall have delivered to Purchaser, in a form reasonably acceptable to Purchaser, the results of a “patent freedom to

operate” analysis evaluating the risks of infringement of third-party Intellectual Property Rights by the Company and its planned product offerings as of the
Execution Date.

 
(v) The Company shall have delivered to Purchaser evidence in a form reasonably acceptable to Purchaser that: (A) (1) all Patents

exclusively licensed to the Company were, as of the earlier of (x) the date of first use or practice by the Company of any such Patents; and (y) the effective
date of any such license agreement, solely and exclusively owned by the licensor of such Patent rights and (2) no other Person owns or is licensed or
authorized to use any of such licensed Patents in the field of vehicle design, vehicle manufacturing, vehicle marketing, vehicle sales, vehicle offers for sale,
vehicle importation, vehicle distribution, or vehicle commercialization in the United States of America (including all territories and possessions); and (B) (1)
the Intellectual Property Rights exclusively licensed to the Company includes all Intellectual Property Rights that such licensor owns or has rights under (in
the United States of America) as of the earlier of (x) the date of first use or practice by the Company of any such Intellectual Property Rights; and (y) the
effective date of such license agreement and used (or held for use) in or related to electric urban utility or commercial vehicles (collectively, “Licensed
Products”) or the design, manufacture, development, marketing, sale, offering for sell, or commercialization thereof and (2) no other Person owns or is
licensed or is authorized to use any of such licensed Intellectual Property Rights in connection with the Licensed Products in the United States of America.
 

9.3 Conditions to Obligations of the Company. The obligations of the Company to consummate the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, or the
waiver at the Company’s discretion, of all of the following further conditions:
 

(a) (i) The Purchaser and Merger Sub shall each have performed in all material respects all of its obligations hereunder required to be
performed by it at or prior to the Closing Date, (ii) the representations and warranties of Purchaser and Merger Sub contained in this Agreement, and in any
certificate or other writing delivered by the Purchaser pursuant hereto, disregarding all qualifications and expectations contained therein relating to
materiality shall be true and correct in all respects at and as of the Closing Date, as if made at and as of such date, except for any inaccuracies in such
representations and warranties which would not in the aggregate reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Purchaser or on
Purchaser’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Additional Agreements, and (iii) the Company shall have
received a certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Purchaser to the foregoing effect.
 

(b) Purchaser shall have executed and delivered to the Company a copy of each Additional Agreement to which it is a party.
 
9.4 Frustration of Conditions. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, no Party may rely on the failure of any condition set forth

in this Article IX to be satisfied if such failure was caused by the failure of such Party or any of its Affiliates to comply with or perform any of its covenants
or obligations set forth in this Agreement.
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ARTICLE X

INDEMNIFICATION
 

10.1 Indemnification of Purchaser. From and after the Closing, the Escrow Participant hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser
against and in respect of any actual and direct out-of-pocket loss, cost, payment, demand, penalty, forfeiture, expense, liability, judgment, deficiency or
damage (including actual costs of investigation and attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses) (all of the foregoing collectively, “Losses”) incurred or
sustained by Purchaser as a result of: (a) any breach or inaccuracy of any of the representations, warranties set forth in Article IV (as modified by the
Company’s Disclosure Schedules) or in the Company Certificate, in each case as of the Closing Date, and (b) any breach or nonfulfillment of any covenants
of the Company contained in this Agreement to be performed prior to the Closing Date; provided, however, any breach related to Section 4.38 (Projections)
shall be limited to a claim based upon fraud, an untrue statement of material information, or omission of material information or the lack of good faith in the
preparation of such Projections; and (c) any Losses resulting from the matters described on Schedule 10.1(c). Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to
the contrary, the maximum liability of the Escrow Participant under this Agreement, including this Article X, or otherwise in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement shall in no event exceed an amount equal to: (i) the Escrow Share Value, multiplied by (ii) the Escrow Shares (the
“Indemnifiable Loss Limit”). Further, the Purchaser shall not be entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Section 10.1 unless and until the aggregate
amount of Losses to Purchaser equals at least $200,000 (the “Basket”), at which time, subject to the Indemnifiable Loss Limit, the Purchaser shall be entitled
to indemnification for any Losses above the Basket per Loss. Except for Losses resulting from the matters described on Schedule 10.1(c), the Escrow
Participant shall have no liability or obligation to indemnify any Purchaser or any other Indemnified Party under this Agreement with respect to the breach or
inaccuracy of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement based on any matter, fact or circumstance known to Purchaser or any of its representatives
or disclosed in the information set out in any Schedule to this Agreement. For Losses resulting from the matters described on Schedule 10.1(c), the Escrow
Participant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser against, from and in respect of any and all such Losses, whether or not a breach of a
representation, warranty, covenant or agreement in this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements to which it is a party.
 

10.2 Procedure. The following shall apply with respect to all claims by the Purchaser (an “Indemnified Party”) for indemnification pursuant to this
Article X:
 

(a) An Indemnified Party shall give the Shareholders’ Representative prompt notice (an “Indemnification Notice”) of any third-party action
with respect to which such Indemnified Party seeks indemnification pursuant to Section 10.1 or 10.2 (a “Third-Party Claim”), which shall describe in
reasonable detail the Loss that has been or may be suffered by the Indemnified Party. The failure to give the Indemnification Notice shall not impair any of
the rights or benefits of such Indemnified Party under Sections 10.1 or 10.2, except to the extent such failure prejudices the ability of the Escrow Participant
(any of such parties, “Indemnifying Parties”) to defend such claim or increases the amount of such liability.
 

(b) In the case of any Third-Party Claims as to which indemnification is sought by any Indemnified Party, such Indemnified Party shall be
entitled, at the sole expense and liability of the Escrow Participant, to exercise full control of the defense, compromise or settlement of any Third-Party Claim
unless the Shareholders’ Representative, within a reasonable time after the giving of an Indemnification Notice by the Indemnified Party (but in any event
within twenty (20) Business Days thereafter), shall notify such Indemnified Party in writing of the intention of the Shareholders’ Representative to assume
the defense thereof.
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(c) If the Indemnifying Parties assume the defense of any such Third-Party Claim pursuant to Section 10.3(b), then the Indemnified Party

shall cooperate with the Indemnifying Parties in any manner reasonably requested in connection with the defense, and the Indemnified Party shall have the
right to be kept fully informed by the Indemnifying Parties and their legal counsel with respect to the status of any legal proceedings, to the extent not
inconsistent with the preservation of attorney-client or work product privilege. If the Indemnifying Parties so assume the defense of any such Third-Party
Claim the Indemnified Party shall have the right to employ one separate counsel and to participate in (but not control) the defense, compromise, or settlement
thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel employed by the Indemnified Party shall be at the expense of such Indemnified Party unless (i) the
Indemnifying Parties have agreed to pay such fees and expenses, or (ii) the named parties to any such Third-Party Claim (including any impleaded parties)
include an Indemnified Party and an Indemnifying Party and such Indemnified Party shall have been advised in writing by its counsel that there is a conflict
of interest between such Indemnified Party and the Indemnifying Parties in the conduct of the defense thereof, and in any such case the reasonable
documented out-of-pocket fees and expenses of one separate counsel of the Indemnified Party shall be borne by the Indemnifying Parties subject to the
limitations set forth in this Article X.
 

(d) If the Indemnifying Parties elect to assume the defense of any Third-Party Claim pursuant to Section 10.3(b), the Indemnified Party
shall not pay, or permit to be paid, any part of any claim or demand arising from such asserted liability unless the Indemnifying Parties withdraw from the
defense of such Third-Party Claim, or unless a judgment is entered against the Indemnified Party for such liability by an Authority of competent jurisdiction.
If the Indemnifying Parties do not elect to defend, or if, after commencing or undertaking any such defense, the Indemnifying Parties withdraw such defense,
the Indemnified Party shall have the right to undertake the defense or settlement thereof, at the Indemnifying Parties’ expense subject to the limitations set
forth in this Article X. In the event the Indemnified Party retains control of the Third-Party Claim, the Indemnified Party will not settle the subject claim
without the prior written consent of the Indemnifying Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
 

(e) If the Indemnified Party undertakes the defense of any such Third-Party Claim pursuant to Section 10.1 or 10.2 and proposes to settle
the same prior to a final judgment thereon or to forgo appeal with respect thereto, then the Indemnified Party shall give the Indemnifying Parties prompt
written notice thereof and the Indemnifying Parties shall have the right to participate in the settlement, assume or reassume the defense thereof or prosecute
such appeal, in each case at the Indemnifying Parties’ expense. The Indemnifying Parties shall not, without the prior written consent of such Indemnified
Party settle or compromise or consent to entry of any judgment with respect to any such Third-Party Claim (i) in which any relief other than the payment of
money damages is or may be sought against such Indemnified Party, (ii) in which such Third-Party Claim could be reasonably expected to impose or create a
monetary liability on the part of the Indemnified Party (such as an increase in the Indemnified Party’s income Tax) other than the monetary claim of the third
party in such Third-Party Claim being paid pursuant to such settlement or judgment, or (iii) which does not include as an unconditional term thereof the
giving by the claimant, person conducting such investigation or initiating such hearing, plaintiff or petitioner to such Indemnified Party of a release from all
liability with respect to such Third-Party Claim and all other actions (known or unknown) arising or which might arise out of the same facts.
 

(f) Following the Closing, the disinterested members of the board of directors of the Purchaser shall have the authority to institute and
prosecute any claims for indemnification hereunder in good faith on behalf of the Purchaser to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

 
10.3 Escrow of Escrow Shares by Escrow Participant. The Company hereby authorizes the Purchaser to deliver the Indemnification Escrow Shares

into escrow (the “Escrow Fund”) pursuant to the Indemnification Escrow Agreement. For purposes of this Article X, the Indemnification Escrow Shares are
valued at $10.00 per share (the “Escrow Share Value”).
 

(a) Indemnification Escrow Shares; Payment of Dividends; Voting. Any dividends, interest payments, or other distributions of any kind
made in respect of the Escrow Shares will be delivered promptly to the Escrow Agent to be held in escrow (the “Escrow Income”). The Escrow Participant
shall be entitled to vote such Escrow Participant’s Indemnification Escrow Shares on any matters to come before the shareholders of the Purchaser. It is
intended that for U.S. federal income tax purposes that while the Indemnification Escrow Shares are held by the Escrow Agent, the Escrow Participant shall
be treated as the owner of the Indemnification Escrow Shares, and to the extent required by Applicable Law, the Escrow Agent shall report in a manner
consistent with such treatment.
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(b) Distribution of Escrow Shares. At the times provided for in Section 10.3(d), the Indemnification Escrow Shares shall be distributed to

the Escrow Participant. The Purchaser will take such action as may be necessary to cause such certificates to be issued in the names of the appropriate
persons. Certificates representing Indemnification Escrow Shares so issued that are subject to resale restrictions under applicable securities laws will bear a
legend to that effect. No fractional shares shall be released and delivered from the Escrow Fund and all fractional shares shall be rounded to the nearest whole
share.
 

(c) Assignability. Other than for estate planning purposes, no Indemnification Escrow Shares or any beneficial interest therein may be
pledged, sold, assigned or transferred, including by operation of law, by the Escrow Participant or be taken or reached by any legal or equitable process in
satisfaction of any debt or other liability of the Escrow Participant, prior to the delivery to such Escrow Participant of the Escrow Fund by the Escrow Agent
as provided herein.
 

(d) Release from Escrow Fund. As soon as practicable, but in no event later than five (5) Business Days, following expiration of the
Survival Period (the “Release Date”), the Indemnification Escrow Shares will be released from escrow to the Escrow Participant less the number of
Indemnification Escrow Shares (at an assumed value equal to the Escrow Share Value per Indemnification Escrow Share) reasonably necessary to serve as
security for Losses set forth in any Indemnification Notice delivered by the Purchaser prior to the expiration of the Survival Period that remain pending and
unresolved. Prior to the Release Date, the Shareholders’ Representative and the Purchaser shall jointly issue to the Escrow Agent a certificate executed by
each of them instructing the Escrow Agent to release such number of Indemnification Escrow Shares determined in accordance with this Section 10.3(d).
Promptly, but in no event later than five (5) Business Days, following the resolution in accordance with the provisions of this Article X of any claim(s) for
indemnification that remain unresolved as of the Release Date the Shareholders’ Representative and the Purchaser shall jointly issue to the Escrow Agent a
certificate executed by each of them instructing the Escrow Agent to release to the Escrow Participant the number of Indemnification Escrow Shares retained
in escrow following the resolution of such claim(s) and not released to Purchaser.
 

10.4 Payment of Indemnification. In the event that Purchaser is entitled to any indemnification for any Losses pursuant to this Agreement or
otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the Purchaser’s sole and exclusive remedy for such Losses shall be the
recovery of a number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock from the Indemnification Escrow Shares having a value equal to the Losses that have been
finally determined to be owing to the Purchaser in accordance with this Article X (at an assumed value equal to the Escrow Share Value per Indemnification
Escrow Share), in each case, subject to the limitations set forth in this Article X. Any payments to Purchaser from the Indemnification Escrow Shares will be
treated as a reduction in the number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock issued to the Escrow Participant for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
 

10.5 Insurance. In calculating amounts of Losses payable to an Indemnified Party hereunder, the amount of any indemnified Losses shall be
determined net of amounts actually recovered under any insurance policy or other third-party reimbursement actually received.
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10.6 Survival of Indemnification Rights. The representations and warranties of the Company shall survive until 12 months (the “Survival Period”)

following the Closing. In the event that any outstanding claims have arisen during such 12-month period which would be eligible for indemnification under
this Article 10, the Escrow Participant shall leave in Escrow that number of Escrow Shares (calculated as of the closing per share market price of the shares
of Purchaser Common Stock on the last trading day of such 12-month period) for an additional 12 months to settle any such outstanding claims. Upon the
expiration of such additional 12-month period any remaining Escrow Shares shall be released and delivered to the Company Securityholder who agreed
hereunder to escrow such Escrow Shares. The covenants of the Company contained in this Agreement to be performed prior to Closing shall expire and be of
no further force or effect as of the Closing, provided, that claims for breach or nonfulfillment thereof shall survive until the expiration of the Survival Period.
The indemnification to which any Indemnified Party is entitled from the Indemnifying Parties pursuant to Section 10.1 for Losses shall be effective so long
as it is asserted prior to the expiration of the Survival Period; provided, that in the event that any Indemnification Notice shall have been given in accordance
with the provisions of this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Survival Period and such claim has not been finally resolved by the expiration of the
Survival Period, the representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or obligations that are the subject of such Indemnifications Notice shall survive solely
for purposes of resolving such claim until such matters are finally resolved. The parties acknowledge that the time periods set forth in this Section 10.6 for
the assertion of claims under this Agreement are the result of arms’-length negotiation among the parties and that they intend for the time periods to be
enforced as agreed by the parties without regard to the applicable statute of limitations with respect to such matters and that the 20 year statute of limitations
contemplated by Title 10 of Section 8106(c) of the Delaware Code shall not apply to this Agreement.
 

10.7 Sole and Exclusive Remedy. The remedies provided in this Article X and the rights to enforce the Additional Agreements in accordance with
their terms shall be deemed the sole and exclusive remedies of the Indemnified Parties, from and after the Closing Date, with respect to any and all claims
arising out of or related to this Agreement or in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, except nothing in this Agreement (i) will limit the
parties’ rights to seek injunctive relief or other equitable remedies, (ii) would prevent Purchaser or the Company from bringing an action for fraud (with
scienter) against the Person who committed such Fraud (with scienter) or (iv) limit the right of any Person to pursue remedies under any Additional
Agreement against the parties thereto
 

ARTICLE XI
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

 
11.1 Arbitration.

 
(a) The parties shall promptly submit any dispute, claim, or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement (including with respect

to the meaning, effect, validity, termination, interpretation, performance, or enforcement of this Agreement) or any alleged breach thereof (including any
action in tort, contract, equity, or otherwise), to binding arbitration before one arbitrator (the “Arbitrator”). Binding arbitration shall be the sole means of
resolving any dispute, claim, or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement (including with respect to the meaning, effect, validity, termination,
interpretation, performance or enforcement of this Agreement) or any alleged breach thereof (including any claim in tort, contract, equity, or otherwise).
 

(b) If the parties cannot agree upon the Arbitrator, the Arbitrator shall be selected by the New York, New York chapter head of the
American Arbitration Association upon the written request of any Party. The Arbitrator shall be selected within 45 days of the written request of any party.
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(c) Except with respect to matters set forth in Article II that relate to the effectuation of the Merger, which are exclusively governed by the

Law of the State of Delaware, the laws of the State of New York shall apply to any arbitration hereunder. In any arbitration hereunder, this Agreement shall
be governed by the laws of the State of New York applicable to a contract negotiated, signed, and wholly to be performed in the State of New York, which
laws the Arbitrator shall apply in rendering his decision. The Arbitrator shall issue a written decision, setting forth findings of fact and conclusions of law,
within 90 days after he shall have been selected. The Arbitrator shall have no authority to award punitive or other exemplary damages.
 

(d) The arbitration shall be held in New York, New York in accordance with and under the then-current provisions of the rules of the
American Arbitration Association, except as otherwise provided herein. Each of the Company, the Purchaser and the Shareholders’ Representative hereby
consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of the State and County of New York, New York.
 

(e) On application to the Arbitrator, any party shall have rights to discovery to the same extent as would be provided under the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure, and the Federal Rules of Evidence shall apply to any arbitration under this Agreement; provided, however, that the Arbitrator shall
limit any discovery or evidence such that his decision shall be rendered within the period referred to in Section 11.1(c).
 

(f) The Arbitrator may, at his discretion and at the expense of the party who will bear the cost of the arbitration, employ experts to assist
him in his determinations.

 
(g) The costs of the arbitration proceeding and any proceeding in court to confirm any arbitration award or to obtain relief as provided in

Section 11.1(h), as applicable (including actual attorneys’ fees and costs), shall be borne by the unsuccessful party (if the Shareholders’ Representative, then
solely on behalf of the Company Securityholders) and shall be awarded as part of the Arbitrator’s decision, unless the Arbitrator shall otherwise allocate such
costs in such decision. The determination of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties and not subject to appeal.
 

(h) Any judgment upon any award rendered by the Arbitrator may be entered in and enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction. The
parties expressly consent to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts (Federal and State) in Delaware, to enforce any award of the Arbitrator or to render
any provisional, temporary, or injunctive relief in connection with or in aid of the Arbitration. The parties expressly consent to the personal and subject
matter jurisdiction of the Arbitrator to arbitrate any and all matters to be submitted to arbitration hereunder. None of the parties hereto shall challenge any
arbitration hereunder on the grounds that any party necessary to such arbitration (including the parties hereto) shall have been absent from such arbitration for
any reason, including that such party shall have been the subject of any bankruptcy, reorganization, or insolvency proceeding.
 

(i) The parties (in the case of the Shareholders’ Representative, solely on behalf of the Company Securityholders) shall indemnify the
Arbitrator and any experts employed by the Arbitrator and hold them harmless from and against any claim or demand arising out of any arbitration under this
Agreement or any agreement contemplated hereby, unless resulting from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the person indemnified.
 

(j) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the parties agree that irreparable damage would occur if any of the provisions of this
Agreement were not performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled
to seek an injunction or injunctions, specific performance and other equitable relief to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the
terms and provisions of this Agreement. The parties expressly consent to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts (Federal and State) in Delaware to
render such relief and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions of this Agreement.
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11.2 Waiver of Jury Trial; Exemplary Damages.
 

(a) THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT
EACH SUCH PARTY MAY HAVE TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, IN ANY COURT IN WHICH AN ACTION
MAY BE COMMENCED, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT. NO PARTY SHALL BE AWARDED PUNITIVE OR
OTHER EXEMPLARY DAMAGES RESPECTING ANY DISPUTE ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

 
(b) Each of the parties to this Agreement acknowledge that each has been represented in connection with the signing of this waiver by

independent legal counsel selected by the respective party and that such party has discussed the legal consequences and import of this waiver with legal
counsel. Each of the parties to this Agreement further acknowledge that each has read and understands the meaning of this waiver and grants this waiver
knowingly, voluntarily, without duress and only after consideration of the consequences of this waiver with legal counsel.

 
ARTICLE XII

TERMINATION
 

12.1 Termination Without Default. In the event an Authority shall have issued an Order, having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining or
otherwise prohibiting the Merger, which Order is final and non-appealable, Purchaser or the Company shall have the right, at its sole option, to terminate this
Agreement without liability to the other party.
 

12.2 Termination Upon Default.
 

(a) The Purchaser may terminate this Agreement by giving notice to the Company on or prior to the Closing Date, without prejudice to any
rights or obligations Purchaser may have, if: (i) the Company shall have breached any representation, warranty, agreement or covenant contained herein to be
performed on or prior to the Closing Date, which has rendered the satisfaction of any of the conditions set forth in Section 9.2 impossible; and (ii) such
breach shall not be cured by thirty (30) days following receipt by the Company of a written notice from Purchaser describing in reasonable detail the nature
of such breach.
 

(b) The Company may terminate this Agreement by giving notice to Purchaser, on or prior to the Closing Date, without prejudice to any
rights or obligations the Company may have, if: (i) Purchaser shall have breached any representation, warranty, agreement or covenant contained herein to be
performed on or prior to the Closing Date, which has rendered the satisfaction of any of the conditions set forth in Section 9.3 impossible; and (ii) such
breach shall not be cured by thirty (30) days following receipt by Purchaser of a written notice from the Company describing in reasonable detail the nature
of such breach.
 

12.3 Termination by the Purchaser. This Agreement may be terminated by the Purchaser prior to the Closing as follow:
 

(a) by written notice by Purchaser to the Company, if (i) there shall have been a Material Adverse Effect on the Company Group following
the date of this Agreement which is uncured and continuing or (ii) the Company Group amends, changes or modifies or seeks to amend, change or modify
the Company Group Disclosure Schedules, Financial Statements or Projections delivered to the Purchaser pursuant to Article Four which amendment,
change or modification will constitute a Material Adverse Change; or
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(b) by written notice by the Purchaser to the Company, if the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting is held (including any adjournment or

postponement thereof) and has concluded, the Purchaser’s stockholders have duly voted, and the required Purchaser Stockholder Approval required for the
Merger was not obtained.
 

12.4 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Article XII, this Agreement shall become void and of no effect without
liability of any party (or any shareholder, director, officer, employee, Affiliate, agent, consultant or representative of such party) to the other party hereto;
provided that, if such termination shall result from the willful breach by a party of its covenants and agreements hereunder or fraud, such party shall be fully
liable for any and all liabilities and damages incurred or suffered by the other party as a result of such failure. The provisions of Section 8.11, 9.4, Article X,
Article XI, Article XII and Article XIII shall survive any termination hereof pursuant to this Article XII.
 

12.5 Break-Up Fee.
 

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions above, other than with respect to the failure of: (1) the SEC to provide to the Purchaser its notice of no
further comments to the Proxy Statement, or (2) the Purchaser to take the actions to comply with the obligations as set forth in Section 6.9 above, in the event
that (i) the Closing does not take place by May 21, 2021 or a later date as extended by the Purchaser under Section 6.9 above, due to any material delay
(including the failure of the Company to deliver the 2019 Financial Statements and/or 2020 Financial Statements and/or Acquisition Target Company
Audited Financials pursuant to Section 7.9 hereof) (provided such delay does not cause the Purchaser to liquidate under the SPAC Agreements) caused by or
any reason directly attributable to the Company, any member of the Company Group or Shareholders’ Representative, or (ii) there is a valid and effective
termination of this Agreement by the Purchaser pursuant to Sections 12.2(a) or Section 12.3(a), then the Company shall pay to the Purchaser a break-up fee
in cash equal to Fifteen Million U.S. Dollars ($15,000,000) ( the “Break-Up Fee”). The Break-Up Fee shall be paid by wire transfer of immediately available
funds to an account designated in writing by the Purchaser within five (5) Business Days after the Purchaser delivers to the Company written notice of such
termination in accordance with this Agreement.
 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that, with respect to any
termination of this Agreement in circumstances where a Break- Up Fee is payable under this Section 12.5, the payment of such Break-Up Fee shall, in light
of the difficulty of accurately determining actual damages, constitute liquidated damages with respect to any claim for damages or any other claim which the
Purchaser or its Affiliates would otherwise be entitled to assert against the Company, Shareholders’ Representative or their Affiliates or any of their
respective assets, or against any of their respective directors, officers, employees or shareholders with respect to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and shall constitute the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Purchaser or its Affiliates, provided, that the foregoing shall not limit
(A) the Company, Shareholders’ Representative or their Affiliates from Liability for any fraud claim relating to events occurring prior to termination of this
Agreement or (B) the rights of the Purchaser to seek specific performance or other injunctive relief in lieu of terminating this Agreement.
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ARTICLE XIII

MISCELLANEOUS
 

13.1 Notices. Any notice hereunder shall be sent in writing, addressed as specified below, and shall be deemed given: (a) if by hand or recognized
courier service, by 4:00 PM on a business day, addressee’s day and time, on the date of delivery, and otherwise on the first business day after such delivery;
(b) if by fax, on the date that transmission is confirmed electronically, if by 4:00 PM on a business day, addressee’s day and time, and otherwise on the first
business day after the date of such confirmation; (c) if email, on the date of transmission; or (d) five days after mailing by certified or registered mail, return
receipt requested. Notices shall be addressed to the respective parties as follows (excluding telephone numbers, which are for convenience only), or to such
other address as a party shall specify to the others in accordance with these notice provisions:
 
if to the Company (or, following the Closing, the Surviving Company):
 

Helbiz, Inc.
32 Old Slip, 32nd Floor
New York, NY 10005
Attn.: Salvatore Palella, Chief Executive Officer
e-mail: ceo@helbiz.com
 

with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):
 

Ortoli Rosenstadt, LLP
366 Madison Avenue, 3rd Floor
New York, NY 10017
Attn.: William S. Rosenstadt, Esq.
e-mail: wsr@orllp.legal
 

if to the Shareholders’ Representative, or to the Company Securityholders after Closing, to:
 

Helbiz, Inc.
32 Old Slip, 32nd Floor
New York, NY 10005
Attn.: Salvatore Palella, Chief Executive Officer
e-mail: ceo@helbiz.com

 
if to the Purchaser or Merger Sub:
 

GreenVision Acquisition Corp.
One Penn Plaza, 36th Floor
New York, NY 10019
Attn: David Fu, Chief Executive Officer
e-rnail: david.fu@glo.com.cn

 
with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):
 

Becker & Poliakoff LLP
45 Broadway, 17th Floor
New York, NY 10006
Attention: Chengying Xiu, Esq.
e-mail: Jxiu@beckerlawyers.com
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13.2 Amendments; No Waivers; Remedies.

 
(a) This Agreement cannot be amended, except by a writing signed by each party, and cannot be terminated orally or by course of conduct.

No provision hereof can be waived, except by a writing signed by the party against whom such waiver is to be enforced, and any such waiver shall apply
only in the particular instance in which such waiver shall have been given.
 

(b) Neither any failure or delay in exercising any right or remedy hereunder or in requiring satisfaction of any condition herein nor any
course of dealing shall constitute a waiver of or prevent any party from enforcing any right or remedy or from requiring satisfaction of any condition. No
notice to or demand on a party waives or otherwise affects any obligation of that party or impairs any right of the party giving such notice or making such
demand, including any right to take any action without notice or demand not otherwise required by this Agreement. No exercise of any right or remedy with
respect to a breach of this Agreement shall preclude exercise of any other right or remedy, as appropriate to make the aggrieved party whole with respect to
such breach, or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy with respect to any other breach.
 

(c) Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, no statement herein of any right or remedy shall impair any other right or remedy stated
herein or that otherwise may be available.

 
(d) Notwithstanding anything else contained herein, neither shall any party seek, nor shall any party be liable for, punitive or exemplary

damages, under any tort, contract, equity, or other legal theory, with respect to any breach (or alleged breach) of this Agreement or any provision hereof or
any matter otherwise relating hereto or arising in connection herewith.
 

13.3 Arm’s-length Bargaining; No Presumption Against Drafter. This Agreement has been negotiated at arm’s-length by parties of equal bargaining
strength, each represented by counsel or having had but declined the opportunity to be represented by counsel and having participated in the drafting of this
Agreement. This Agreement creates no fiduciary or other special relationship between the parties, and no such relationship otherwise exists. No presumption
in favor of or against any party in the construction or interpretation of this Agreement or any provision hereof shall be made based upon which Person might
have drafted this Agreement or such provision.
 

13.4 Publicity. Except as required by law or applicable stock exchange rules and except with respect to the Additional Purchaser SEC Documents,
the parties agree that neither they nor their agents shall issue any press release or make any other public disclosure concerning the transactions contemplated
hereunder without the prior approval of the other party hereto. If a party is required to make such a disclosure as required by law or applicable stock
exchange rules, the party making such determination will, if practicable in the circumstances, use reasonable commercial efforts to allow the other party
reasonable time to comment on such disclosure in advance of its issuance. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, following the Closing
Date and the public announcement of the Merger, the Shareholders’ Representative shall be permitted to include in its marketing materials that it has been
engaged to serve as the Shareholders’ Representative in connection with the Merger as long as such materials do not disclose any of the other terms of the
Merger or the other transactions contemplated herein.
 

13.5 Expenses. Amounts previously incurred by the Purchaser for lien searches including for UCC, litigation, judgments and taxes shall be paid or
reimbursed by the Company. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all other costs and expenses, including, without limitation, fees and
disbursements of counsel, accountants and other advisors, incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement
shall be paid by the Party incurring such costs and expenses, whether or not the Closing has taken place.
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13.6 No Assignment or Delegation. No party may assign any right or delegate any obligation hereunder, including by merger, consolidation,

operation of law, or otherwise, without the written consent of the other party. Any purported assignment or delegation without such consent shall be void, in
addition to constituting a material breach of this Agreement.
 

13.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of New York, without giving
effect to the conflict of laws principles thereof, except that matters referred to in Article II that relate to the effectuation of the Merger are exclusively
governed by the Laws of the State of Delaware.
 

13.8 Counterparts; Digital Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but all of which
shall constitute one agreement. This Agreement shall become effective upon delivery to each party of an executed counterpart or the earlier delivery to each
party of original, photocopied, or electronically transmitted signature pages that together (but need not individually) bear the signatures of all other parties.
 

13.9 Entire Agreement. This Agreement together with the Additional Agreements, sets forth the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and thereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings and agreements related thereto (whether written or oral), all
of which are merged herein. No provision of this Agreement or any Additional Agreement may be explained or qualified by any agreement, negotiations,
understanding, discussion, conduct or course of conduct or by any trade usage. Except as otherwise expressly stated herein or any Additional Agreement,
there is no condition precedent to the effectiveness of any provision hereof or thereof.
 

13.10 Severability. A determination by a court or other legal authority that any provision that is not of the essence of this Agreement is legally
invalid shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof. The parties shall cooperate in good faith to substitute (or cause such court
or other legal authority to substitute) for any provision so held to be invalid a valid provision, as alike in substance to such invalid provision as is lawful.
 

13.11. Construction of Certain Terms and References; Captions. In this Agreement:
 

(a) References to particular sections and subsections, schedules, and exhibits not otherwise specified are cross- references to sections and
subsections, schedules, and exhibits of this Agreement.
 

(b) The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” and words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular
provision of this Agreement, and, unless the context requires otherwise, “party” means a party signatory hereto.

 
(c) Any use of the singular or plural, or the masculine, feminine, or neuter gender, includes the others, unless the context otherwise

requires; “including” means “including without limitation;” “or” means “and/or;” “any” means “any one, more than one, or all;” and, unless otherwise
specified, any financial or accounting term has the meaning of the term under United States generally accepted accounting principles as consistently applied
heretofore by the Company.

 
(d) Unless otherwise specified, any reference to any agreement (including this Agreement), instrument, or other document includes all

schedules, exhibits, or other attachments referred to therein, and any reference to a statute or other law includes any rule, regulation, ordinance, or the like
promulgated thereunder, in each case, as amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time. Any reference to a numbered schedule
means the same-numbered section of the Disclosure Schedule. Any reference in a schedule contained in the Disclosure Schedules delivered by a party
hereunder shall be deemed to be an exception to (or, as applicable, a disclosure for purposes of) the applicable representations and warranties (or applicable
covenants) that are contained in the section or subsection of this Agreement that corresponds to such schedule and any other representations and warranties of
such party that are contained in this Agreement to which the relevance of such item thereto is reasonably apparent on its face. The mere inclusion of an item
in a schedule as an exception to (or, as applicable, a disclosure for purposes of) a representation or warranty shall not be deemed an admission that such item
represents a material exception or material fact, event or circumstance or that such item would have a Material Adverse Effect or establish any standard of
materiality to define further the meaning of such terms for purposes of this Agreement.
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(e) If any action is required to be taken or notice is required to be given within a specified number of days following a specific date or

event, the day of such date or event is not counted in determining the last day for such action or notice. If any action is required to be taken or notice is
required to be given on or before a particular day which is not a Business Day, such action or notice shall be considered timely if it is taken or given on or
before the next Business Day.

 
(f) Captions are not a part of this Agreement, but are included for convenience, only.

 
(g) For the avoidance of any doubt, all references in this Agreement to “the Knowledge” or “the knowledge” or “best knowledge of the

Company” or similar terms or phrases shall be deemed to include the actual knowledge of Salvatore Palella, Giulio Profumo, or any other individual
currently serving as an executive officer of the Company, after reasonable inquiry.
 

13.12 Further Assurances. Each party shall execute and deliver such documents and take such action, as may reasonably be considered within the
scope of such party’s obligations hereunder, necessary to effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
 

13.13 Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided in Article X and Section 13.15 and Section 13.16, neither this Agreement nor any provision
hereof confers any benefit or right upon or may be enforced by any Person not a signatory hereto.
 

13.14 Waiver. Reference is made to the final prospectus of the Purchaser, dated November 18, 2019 (the “Prospectus”). The Company has read the
Prospectus and understands that the Purchaser has established the Trust Account for the benefit of the public shareholders of the Purchaser and the
underwriters of the IPO pursuant to the Trust Agreement and that, except for a portion of the interest earned on the amounts held in the Trust Account, the
Purchaser may disburse monies from the Trust Account only for the purposes set forth in the Trust Agreement. For and in consideration of the Purchaser
agreeing to enter into this Agreement, each of the Company and the Shareholders’ Representative, for itself and on behalf of the Shareholders of the
Company, hereby agrees that it does not have any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies in the Trust Account and hereby agrees that it
shall not seek recourse against the Trust Account for any claim it may have in the future as a result of, or arising out of, any negotiations, contracts or
agreements with the Purchaser. This Section 13.14 shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason.
 

13.15 Shareholders’ Representative.
 

(a) By virtue of the adoption of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, the approval of the principal terms of the Merger,
and the consummation of the Merger or participating in the Merger and receiving the benefits thereof, including the right to receive the consideration payable
in connection with the Merger, each Company Securityholder shall be deemed to have appointed the designation of, and hereby designates, Salvatore Palella
as the Shareholders’ Representative for all purposes in connection with the negotiation and execution of this Agreement, the Additional Agreements and the
agreements ancillary hereto, including, but not limited to, (i) to give and receive notices and communications to Purchaser for any purpose under this
Agreement and the Additional Agreements, (ii) to agree to, negotiate, enter into settlements and compromises of and demand arbitration and comply with
orders of courts and awards of arbitrators with respect to any indemnification claims (including Third-Party Claims) under Section 10.1 or, following the
Closing, other disputes arising under or related to this Agreement, (iii) to enter into and deliver the Escrow Agreement on behalf of each of the Company
Securityholders, (iv) to authorize or object to delivery to Purchaser of the Escrow Fund, or any portion thereof, in satisfaction of indemnification claims by
the Purchaser in accordance with the provisions of the Escrow Agreement, (v) to act on behalf of Company Securityholders in accordance with the provisions
of the Agreement, the securities described herein and any other document or instrument executed in connection with the Agreement and the Merger and (vi)
to take all actions necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the Shareholders’ Representative for the accomplishment of the foregoing.
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(b) The Shareholders’ Representative may resign at any time. Such agency may be changed by the Company Securityholders from time to

time upon no less than twenty (20) days prior written notice to the Purchaser, provided, however, that the Shareholders’ Representative may not be removed
unless holders of a majority of the shares of Company Capital Stock (on an as converted to Company Shares) outstanding immediately prior to the Effective
Time agree to such removal. Any vacancy in the position of Shareholders’ Representative may be filled by approval of the holders of a majority of the shares
of Company Capital Stock (on an as converted to Company Shares) outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time. No bond shall be required of the
Shareholders’ Representative.
 

(c) The Shareholders’ Representative will incur no liability of any kind with respect to any action or omission by the Shareholders’
Representative in connection with the Shareholders’ Representative’s services pursuant to this Agreement and any agreements ancillary hereto, except in the
event of liability directly resulting from the Shareholders’ Representative’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Shareholders’ Representative shall
not be liable for any action or omission pursuant to the advice of counsel. The Company Securityholders will indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
Shareholders’ Representative from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, claims, penalties, fines, forfeitures, actions, fees, costs and expenses
(including the fees and expenses of counsel and experts and their staffs and all expense of document location, duplication and shipment) (collectively,
“Representative Losses”) arising out of or in connection with the Shareholders’ Representative’s execution and performance of this Agreement and any
agreements ancillary hereto, in each case as such Representative Loss is suffered or incurred; provided, that Representative Losses shall not include costs
(other than third party expenses) incurred by the Shareholders’ Representative in the ordinary course of business of the Shareholders’ Representative under
the engagement letter entered into by the Shareholders’ Representative, the Company, and certain of the Company Securityholders; provided, further, that in
the event that any such Representative Loss is finally adjudicated to have been directly caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the
Shareholders’ Representative, the Shareholders’ Representative will reimburse the Company Securityholders the amount of such indemnified Representative
Loss to the extent attributable to such gross negligence or willful misconduct. If not paid directly to the Shareholders’ Representative by the Company
Securityholders, any such Representative Losses may be recovered by the Shareholders’ Representative from (x) the funds in the Expense Fund, and (y) the
amounts in the Escrow Fund at such time as remaining amounts would otherwise be distributable to the Company Securityholders; provided, that while this
section allows the Shareholders’ Representative to be paid from the aforementioned sources of funds, this does not relieve the Company Securityholders
from their obligation to promptly pay such Representative Losses as they are suffered or incurred, nor does it prevent the Shareholders’ Representative from
seeking any remedies available to it at law or otherwise. In no event will the Shareholders’ Representative be required to advance its own funds on behalf of
the Company Securityholders or otherwise. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any restrictions or limitations on liability or
indemnification obligations of, or provisions limiting the recourse against non-parties otherwise applicable to, the Company Securityholders set forth
elsewhere in this Agreement are not intended to be applicable to the indemnities provided to the Shareholders’ Representative under this section. The
foregoing indemnities will survive the Closing, the resignation or removal of the Shareholders’ Representative or the termination of this Agreement.
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13.16 Non-Recourse. This Agreement may be enforced only against, and any dispute, claim or controversy based upon, arising out of or related to

this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby may be brought only against, the entities that are expressly named as parties hereto and then only
with respect to the specific obligations set forth in this Agreement with respect to such party. No past, present or future director, officer, employee,
incorporator, member, partner, shareholder, sponsor, agent, attorney, advisor, lender or representative or Affiliate of any named party to this Agreement
(which Persons are intended third party beneficiaries of this Section 13.16) shall have any liability (whether in contract or tort, at law or in equity or
otherwise, or based upon any theory that seeks to impose liability of an entity party against its owners or Affiliates) for any one or more of the
representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or other obligations or liabilities of such named party or for any dispute, claim or controversy based on,
arising out of, or related to this Agreement, any Additional Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, provided, that this Section 13.16 shall not
apply to Section 13.15, which shall be enforceable by the Shareholders’ Representative in its entirety against the Company Securityholders.
 

13.17 [Reserved]
 

13.18 Time. Time is of the essence in each and every provision of this Agreement.
 

13.19 Specific Performance. Each Party acknowledges that the rights of each Party to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby are unique,
recognizes and affirms that in the event of a breach of this Agreement by any Party, money damages may be inadequate and the non-breaching Party may
have not adequate remedy at law, and agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not
performed by an applicable Party in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached. Accordingly, each Party shall be entitled to seek an
injunction or restraining order to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to seek to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the
requirement to post any bond or other security or to prove that money damages would be inadequate, this being in addition to any other right or remedy to
which such Party may be entitled under this Agreement, at law or in equity.
 

[signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the day and year first above written.
 

 Purchaser:
   
 GREENVISION ACQUISITION CORP.
  
 By: /s/ Zhigeng (David) Fu
 Name: Zhigeng (David) Fu
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
 
 Merger Sub:
   
 GREENVISION MERGER SUB INC.
  
 By: /s/ Zhigeng (David) Fu
 Name: Zhigeng (David) Fu
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
 
Company: HELBIZ, INC.  
    
 By: /s/ Salvatore Palella  
 Name: Salvatore Palella  
 Title: Chief Executive Officer  
 
Shareholders’ Representative:  
    
 By: /s/ Salvatore Palella  
 Name: Salvatore Palella  
 

[Signature Page to Merger Agreement]
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EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

 
 
EXHIBIT A FORM OF REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT
 
EXHIBIT B FORM OF INDEMNIFICATION ESCROW AGREEMENT
 
EXHIBIT C FORM OF LOCK-UP AGREEMENT
 
EXHIBIT D FORM OF NON-COMPETE AND NON-SOLICITATION AGREEMENT
 
EXHIBIT E FORM OF OPINION OF COMPANY COUNSEL
 
SCHEDULES
 
DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES OF HELBIZ, INC.
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Exhibit 99.1
 

GreenVision Acquisition Corp.
Announces Merger Agreement With Helbiz, Inc. to Become the First Micro-Mobility Company Listed on NASDAQ

 
The business combination will further expand Helbiz’s micro-mobility footprint across North America and Europe

 
● Public listing milestone expected to broaden Helbiz’s market leadership and build on continued innovation with more than 2.5M users in Helbiz’s

micro-mobility network;
 
● The transaction valued the combined company at an estimated equity value of approximately $408 million, assuming no redemptions from the trust

account and the proposed PIPE described below;
 
● Approximately $80 million in net proceeds will advance Helbiz’s micro-mobility and advertising businesses assuming no redemptions from the trust

account;
 
● Transaction includes the proposed $30 million PIPE anchored by institutional investors;
 
● The surviving company will be Helbiz, Inc. and will be listed on the Nasdaq under the proposed new ticker symbol HLBZ;
 
● Helbiz Founder and CEO, Salvatore Palella, and the existing Helbiz leadership team to lead combined company.
 
NEW YORK--(BUSINESS WIRE)—February 8, 2021— GreenVision Acquisition Corp. (“GreenVision”) (Nasdaq: GRNV), a special purpose acquisition
company (“SPAC”), announced today that it has entered into a definitive agreement for a business combination with Helbiz, Inc. (“Helbiz”), a technology
company that offers micro-mobility solutions for the world’s busiest cities.
 
The transaction will introduce Helbiz as a Nasdaq-listed public company. Upon closing of the transaction, which is expected to occur in the second quarter of
2021, it is expected that the combined company will retain the corporate name Helbiz and will be listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the proposed
new ticker symbol, “HLBZ.” The transaction reflects an estimated equity value for the combined company of approximately $408 million. The combined
company will continue to operate under the current Helbiz management team, led by Chief Executive Officer, Salvatore Palella.
 
David Fu, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of GreenVision, stated, “The micro-mobility industry is accelerating, and the total addressable market for
North America and Europe is estimated to grow to $300 - $450 billion by 2030 according to McKinsey & Company's "Micromobility’s 15,000-mile
checkup" Report. As one of the leaders in the space, Helbiz has distinguished itself as the only company to offer e-scooters, e-bicycles and e-mopeds all on
one user-friendly platform and is well positioned to provide a seamless last-mile solution as the expected transition to micro-mobility accelerates. Helbiz has
a proven and capital-light business model that combines hardware, software and services with extensive customer relationships. As such, we believe Helbiz
will continue to grow its market position as the industry evolves. GreenVision and our investors are excited to partner with the talented Helbiz team to
advance their vision.”
 

 



 

 
Salvatore Palella, Founder and Chief Executive Officer of Helbiz, commented, “We are excited about this transaction, which will enable us to advance the
development of our micro-mobility platform to further strengthen our market leadership globally. We believe that the access to capital from this transaction
will allow us to turn the page to the next chapter in our company’s journey, which will push technological boundaries and explore services for the future of
transportation. Through this transaction, we’re committed to fulfilling our vision in revolutionizing transport by using micro-mobility to become a seamless
last mile solution.”
 
Investment Highlights
 
● Helbiz offers the most diverse fleet of vehicles to meet different needs. It is one of the only companies in the micro-mobility space that offers e-

scooters, e-bicycles and e-mopeds all on one convenient user-friendly platform. Helbiz is committed to being 100% carbon neutral.
 
● The company is well-positioned for growth and has the ability to scale to a broad customer base across multiple markets.
 
● It has a proven, scalable business model that delivers consistent and recurring revenue.
 
● Its proprietary technology enables precise and accurate geofencing, while its connected ecosystem of hardware and software, developed completely

in-house, creates transparency and seamless scalability.
 
● Strong executive management team with operational and technical expertise and track record of success.
 
Transaction Overview
 
Upon the closing of the proposed transaction, assuming no redemptions by GreenVision stockholders and completion of the PIPE, Helbiz will have
approximately $80 million in cash, resulting in an estimated equity value of approximately $408 million. Cash proceeds raised in the transaction will be used
to fund operations, support growth, repay debt and for general corporate purposes. The proceeds will be funded through a combination of GreenVision’s
approximately $57.5 million cash in trust account (assuming no redemptions) and the proposed $30 million PIPE. Existing Helbiz shareholders will be
rolling 100% of their equity into the combined company.
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Upon the closing of the proposed transaction, it is expected that the combined company will retain the corporate name Helbiz and will be listed on the
Nasdaq Capital Market under the proposed new ticker symbol, “HLBZ.”
 
The boards of directors of both Helbiz and GreenVision have unanimously approved the proposed transaction, which is expected to be completed in the
second quarter of 2021. Additional information about the business combination will be provided in a Current Report on Form 8-K that will contain an
investor presentation to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and available at www.sec.gov.
 
Advisors
 
Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. is serving as financial advisor to Helbiz. I-Bankers Securities, Inc. is serving as financial advisor, and Colliers Securities
LLC is serving as capital markets advisor to GreenVision.
 
Becker & Poliakoff, LLP served as legal counsel to GreenVision. Helbiz was assisted by Ortoli Rosenstadt LLP for the legal aspects in the USA.
 
Conference Call and Webcast Information
 
Investors may listen to a pre-recorded call discussing the proposed business combination later today at 9:00 am EST. The call may be accessed by dialing 1-
833-693-0551 for domestic callers or 1-661-407-1590 for international callers and enter the conference ID number 6760879. To access the webcast, please
visit the Investor Info section of Helbiz’s website at https://helbiz.com/. A replay of the call will be accessible at the webcast link.
 
About GreenVision Acquisition Corp.
 
GreenVision Acquisition Corp. is a newly organized special purpose acquisition company formed under the laws of the State of Delaware for the purpose of
effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses.
 
About Helbiz
 
Helbiz is a technology company that offers micro-mobility solutions for the world’s busiest cities. With more than 200 employees around the world, the
company is the market leader in Italy and throughout Europe and is continuing to expand and hire local personnel to run its operations around the world.
Launched in 2015 and headquartered in New York City, the company operates e-scooters, e-bicycles and e-mopeds in over 20 cities around the world
including Washington D.C., Alexandria, Arlington, Atlanta, Miami, Richmond, Milan and Rome.
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Forward-Looking Statements
 
Certain statements made in this press release are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “estimate”,
“plan”, “outlook”, and “project” and other similar expressions that predict or indicate future events or trends or that are not statements of historical matters.
These forward-looking statements reflect the current analysis of existing information and are subject to various risks and uncertainties. As a result, caution
must be exercised in relying on forward-looking statements. Due to known and unknown risks, actual results may differ materially from the Company’s or
GreenVision’s expectations or projections. The following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in these
forward-looking statements: (i) the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstances that could give rise to the termination of the Merger Agreement;
(ii) the ability of the Company to meet Nasdaq listing standards following the transaction and in connection with the consummation thereof; (iii) the inability
to complete the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement due to the failure to obtain approval of the stockholders of the Company or the
stockholders of GreenVision or other reasons; (iv) the failure to meet the minimum cash requirements of the Merger Agreement due to GreenVision
stockholder redemptions and the failure to obtain replacement financing; (v) the failure to meet projected development and production targets; (vi) costs
related to the proposed transaction; (vii) changes in applicable laws or regulations; (viii) the ability of the combined company to meet its financial and
strategic goals, due to, among other things, competition, the ability of the combined company to pursue a growth strategy and manage growth profitability;
(ix) the possibility that the combined company may be adversely affected by other economic, business, and/or competitive factors; (x) the effect of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the Company and GreenVision and their ability to consummate the transaction; and (xi) other risks and uncertainties described
herein, as well as those risks and uncertainties discussed from time to time in other reports and other public filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) by the Company. Additional information concerning these and other factors that may impact the Company’s expectations and
projections can be found in GreenVision’s periodic filings with the SEC, including its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2019. GreenVision's SEC filings are available publicly on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. Any forward-looking statement made by us in this press release
is based only on information currently available to GreenVision and Helbiz and speaks only as of the date on which it is made. GreenVision and Helbiz
undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time, whether as a result of
new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by law.
 
Additional Information about the Transaction and Where to Find It
 
In connection with the proposed business combination, GreenVision will file a proxy statement with the SEC. Additionally, GreenVision will file other
relevant materials with the SEC in connection with the business combination. Copies may be obtained free of charge at the SEC’s web site at www.sec.gov.
Security holders of GreenVision are urged to read the proxy statement/prospectus and the other relevant materials when they become available before making
any voting decision with respect to the proposed business combination because they will contain important information about the business combination and
the parties to the business combination. The information contained on, or that may be accessed through, the websites referenced in this press release is not
incorporated by reference into, and is not a part of, this press release. GreenVision’s stockholders may also obtain a copy of the preliminary or definitive
proxy statement, once available as well as other documents filed with the SEC by GreenVision, without charge, at the SEC’s website located at www.sec.gov
or by directing a request to: GreenVision Acquisition Corp., One Penn Plaza, 36th Floor, New York, New York 10019.
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Participants in Solicitation
 
GreenVision and its directors and officers may be deemed participants in the solicitation of proxies of GreenVision’s shareholders in connection with the
proposed business combination. Helbiz and its officers and directors may also be deemed participants in such solicitation. Security holders may obtain more
detailed information regarding the names, affiliations and interests of certain of GreenVision’s executive officers and directors in the solicitation by reading
GreenVision’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, and the proxy statement/prospectus and other relevant materials
filed with the SEC in connection with the business combination when they become available. Information concerning the interests of GreenVision’s
participants in the solicitation, which may, in some cases, be different than those of their stockholders generally, will be set forth in the proxy
statement/prospectus relating to the business combination when it becomes available.
 
Non-Solicitation
 
This press release does not constitute a solicitation of a proxy, consent or authorization with respect to any securities or in respect of the proposed transaction.
This press release also does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities, nor will there be any sale of securities in any
states or jurisdictions in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such
jurisdiction. No offering of securities will be made except by means of a prospectus meeting the requirements of Section 10 of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or an exemption therefrom.
 
For more information, visit www.helbiz.com/investors.
 
The information contained on, or that may be accessed through, the website referenced above is not incorporated by reference into, and is not a part of, this
press release.
 
For investor and media inquiries, please contact:
 
In the United States:
 
The Blueshirt Group
Gary Dvorchak, CFA
Phone: (323) 240-5796
Email: gary@blueshirtgroup.com
 
Agent of Change
Marcy Simon
Phone: (917) 833-3392
Email: marcy@agentofchange.com
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Exhibit 99.2
 

A single platform for driving forward shared mobility worldwide Proposed merger with GreenVision Acquisition Corp. (Nasdaq: GRNV) February 2021

 



 

Disc l aimer Additional Information and Where to Find It GreenVision Acquisition Corp . (“GRNV”) intends to file with the U . S . Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) a preliminary proxy statement in connection with the proposed business combination (the “Merger”) and will mail a definitive proxy statement and other relevant documents to its stockholders . GRNV’s stockholders and other interested persons are advised to read, when available, the preliminary proxy statement, and amendments thereto, and the definitive proxy statement in connection with GRNV’s solicitation of proxies for its stockholders’ meeting to be held to approve the Merger because the proxy statement will contain important information about GRNV, Helbiz, Inc . (“Helbiz”) and the Merger . The definitive proxy statement will be mailed to stockholders of GRNV as of a record date to be established for voting on the Merger . Stockholders will also be able to obtain copies of the proxy statement, without charge, once available, at the SEC’s website at www . sec . gov or by writing to GreenVision Acquisition Corp . , One Penn Plaza, New York, NY 10019 , Attn : David Fu, Chief Executive Officer . Participants in the Solicitation GRNV, Helbiz and certain of their respective directors and officers may be deemed participants in the solicitation of proxies of GRNV’s stockholders with respect to the approval of the Merger . GRNV and Helbiz urge investors, stockholders and other interested persons to read, when available, the preliminary proxy statement and amendments thereto and the definitive proxy statement and documents incorporated by reference therein, as well as other documents filed with the SEC in connection with the Merger, as these materials will contain important information about Helbiz, GRNV and the Merger . Information regarding GRNV’s directors and officers and a description of their interests in GRNV is contained in GRNV’s annual report on Form 10 - K for the fiscal year ended December 31 , 2019 . Additional information regarding the participants in the proxy
solicitation, including Helbiz’s directors and officers, and a description of their direct and indirect interests, by security holdings or otherwise, will be included in the definitive proxy statement for the Merger when available . Each of these documents is, or will be, available at the SEC’s website . Non - GAAP financial measures This presentation includes certain financial measures not presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), including, but not limited to EBITDA and other metrics derived therefrom . These non - GAAP financial measures are not measures of financial performance in accordance with GAAP and may exclude items that are significant in understanding and assessing the GRNV’s or Helbiz’s financial results . Therefore, these measures should not be considered in isolation or as an alternative to net income, cash flows from operations or other measures of profitability, liquidity or performance under GAAP . In addition, historical financial measures included in this presentation have not been audited and are subject to review and adjustment accordingly . You should be aware that GRNV’s and Helbiz’s presentation of these measures may not be comparable to similarly - titled measures used by other companies . The Company's management believes that these non - GAAP, unaudited measures of financial results provides useful information to management and investors regarding certain financial and business trends relating to the Company's financial condition and results of operations and you should not rely on any single financial measure to evaluate the Company's business . These non - GAAP financial measures are not calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”) and should not be considered as alternatives to GAAP . These non - GAAP financial measures are included herein because GreenVision and Helbiz believe that the use of these non - GAAP financial measures provides an additional tool for investors to use in evaluating ongoing operating results and

trends . Other companies may calculate their non - GAAP financial measures differently, and therefore Helbiz's non - GAAP financial measures may not be directly comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies . Additionally, to the extent that forward - looking non - GAAP financial measures are provided, they are presented on a non - GAAP basis without reconciliations of such forward - looking non - GAAP financial measures due to the inherent difficulty in forecasting and quantifying certain amounts that are necessary for such reconciliation . No Offer or Solicitation This presentation is not a proxy statement or solicitation of a proxy, consent, or authorization with respect to any securities or in respect of the Transactions and shall neither constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities, nor shall there be any sale of securities in any jurisdiction in which the offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to the registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction . Forward Looking Statements This presentation contains “forward - looking statements” within the meaning of the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 . Forward - looking statements may be identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “believe”, “could”, “continue”, “expect”, “estimate”, “may”, “plan”, “outlook”, “future” and “project” and other similar expressions that predict or indicate future events or trends or that are not statements of historical matters . These statements, which involve risks and uncertainties, relate to analyses and other information that are based on forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable and may also relate to GRNV’s and Helbiz’s future prospects, developments and business strategies . In particular, such forward - looking statements include statements concerning the timing of the Merger, the business plans, objectives, expectations and intentions of GRNV once the Merger and the other transactions contemplated thereby (the
“Transactions”) and change of name are complete (“New Helbiz”), and Helbiz’s estimated and future results of operations, business strategies, competitive position, industry environment and potential growth opportunities . These statements are based on GRNV’s or Helbiz’s management’s current expectations and beliefs, as well as a number of assumptions concerning future events . Such forward - looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other important factors, many of which are outside GRNV’s or Helbiz’s control, that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results discussed in the forward - looking statements . These risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other important factors include, but are not limited to : ( 1 ) the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstances that could give rise to the termination of the Merger Agreement ; ( 2 ) the inability to complete the Transactions due to the failure to obtain approval of the stockholders of GRNV or Helbiz or other conditions to closing in the Merger Agreement ; ( 3 ) the ability of New Helbiz to meet Nasdaq’s listing standards (or the standards of any other securities exchange on which securities of the public entity are listed) following the Merger ; ( 4 ) the inability to complete the private placement of common stock of GRNV to certain institutional accredited investors ; ( 5 ) the risk that the announcement and consummation of the Transactions disrupts Helbiz’s current plans and operations ; ( 6 ) the ability to recognize the anticipated benefits of the Transactions, which may be affected by, among other things, competition, the ability of New Helbiz to grow and manage growth profitably, maintain relationships with customers, business partners, suppliers and agents and retain its management and key employees ; ( 7 ) costs related to the Transactions ; ( 8 ) changes in applicable laws or regulations and delays in obtaining, adverse conditions contained in, or the inability to obtain necessary regulatory approvals required to complete the Transactions ; ( 9 )
the possibility that Helbiz and New Helbiz may be adversely affected by other economic, business, regulatory and/or competitive factors ; ( 10 ) the impact of COVID - 19 on Helbiz’s and New Helbiz’s business and/or the ability of the parties to complete the Transactions ; ( 11 ) the outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against GRNV, Helbiz, New Helbiz or any of their respective directors or officers, following the announcement of the Transactions ; and ( 12 ) the failure to realize anticipated pro forma results and underlying assumptions, including with respect to estimated stockholder redemptions and purchase price and other adjustments . Additional factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in forward - looking statements can be found in GRNV’s most recent annual report on Form 10 - K, subsequently filed quarterly reports on Form 10 - Q and current reports on Form 8 - K, which are available, free of charge, at the SEC’s website at www . sec . gov, and will also be provided in the proxy statement when available . New risks and uncertainties arise from time to time, and it is impossible for us to predict these events or how they may affect us . You are cautioned not to place undue reliance upon any forward - looking statements, which speak only as of the date made, and GRNV and Helbiz undertake no obligation to update or revise the forward - looking statements, whether as a result of new information, changes in expectations, future events or otherwise . This presentation is not intended to be all - inclusive or to contain all the information that a person may desire in considering an investment in GRNV and is not intended to form the basis of an investment decision in GRNV . All subsequent written and oral forward - looking statements concerning GRNV and Helbiz, the Transactions or other matters and attributable to GRNV and Helbiz or any person acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements above . Industry and Market Data In this Investor Presentation,
Helbiz relies on and refers to information and statistics in the sectors in which it intends to compete. Helbiz obtained this information and statistics from third - party sources believed to be reliable, including reports by market research firms. Helbiz has supplemented this information where necessary with its own internal estimates, taking into account publicly available information about other industry participants and its management’s best view as to information that is not publicly available. Neither Helbiz nor GreenVision has independently verified the accuracy or completeness of any such third - party information. Use of Projections. This presentation contains financial forecasts. Neither GreenVision’s nor Helbiz’s auditors have audited, reviewed, compiled or performed any procedures with respect to the projections for the purpose of their inclusion in this presentation, and accordingly, neither of them expressed an opinion or provided any other form of assurance with respect thereto for the purpose of this presentation. These projections are for illustrative purposes only and should not be relied upon as being necessarily indicative of future results. In this presentation, certain of the above - mentioned projected information has been provided for purposes of providing comparisons with historical data. The assumptions and estimates underlying the prospective financial information are inherently uncertain and are subject to a wide variety of significant business, economic and competitive risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in the prospective financial information. Projections are inherently uncertain due to a number of factors outside of GreenVision’s or Helbiz’s control. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the prospective results are indicative of future performance of GreenVision, Helbiz or the combined company after the business combination or that actual results will not differ materially from those presented in the prospective financial information. Inclusion of the prospective financial information in this

presentation should not be regarded as a representation by any person that the results contained in the prospective financial information will be achieved. 2

 



 

Key Business Lines Company Overview Mobility Last - mile solutions range from e - scooters and e - bikers to e - mopeds Revenue > $ 4 M 2 29 Licenses 96% Mobility Advertising 2 0 20 4% Advertising Integrated omni - channel advertisement offerings on Helbiz app 7 4 % 2025E 10% 16% Revenue Mobility Advertising New Verticals $ 449M 279 Licenses 3 2 . 5 M Users 1 17 Licenses 12 Licenses Notes: 1 Across our platforms as of Jan - 21. 2 Based on unaudited financials of the company

 



 

4 Pricin g Avg. trip distance Gen der A g e E - Scooter $ 1 unlock + $ 0.30/min 1.9 km Male 80% Female 20% age 18 - 34 E - Bike $ 1 unlock + $ 0.30/min 3.9 km Male 40% Female 60% age 25 - 40 E - Moped $ 0 . 2 6/min 8 km Male 60% Female 40% age 25 - 55 $ 29.99/mo A ride for every preference Demographic & pricing for every vehicle type

 



 

Mobility on - demand $ 1 to Unlock + $ 0.30/min* $ 29.99/month Scan | Unlock | Ride ∞ Pay - As - You - Go All - You - Can - Ride Card & Cash Pay with Card & Top - up cash in +50,000 locations * Avg. price across markets

 



 

6 An actual journey right from within our connected ecosystem - Helbiz provides an easy, inexpensive and eco - friendly transportation option. - With a proprietary ecosystem of vehicles to be integrated with public transportation, Helbiz prioritizes intermodal access. - Riders can reserve vehicles in advance, and there will always be a vehicle ready when they arrive at the station. A Multi - Modal Journey 7 : 20 AM 7 : 26 AM 7 : 33 AM 8 : 30 AM 8 : 32 AM 8 : 42 AM Turin Milan

 



 

Market Penetration 7 #1 2 6 % 6 0 % 65% Operator, Market Leader & of all people between 18 & 49 of ALL 2020 Italian Tender offer success rate in first mover in Italy in Key Markets (IT) have our city tenders offered, the United States app installed we won

 



 

Key Investment Highlights 8 Why the future belongs to Helbiz An Established Market Leader - A well - known brand with deep market penetration A New Regulatory Landscape - Benefitting Helbiz, an experienced and reputable operator with a strong pipeline of licenses Multiple Revenue Streams - Less dependent on rental income A Proven Business Model - Compelling unit economics and clear path to profitability in 2021 Market Leading Technology - Our proprietary technology platform An Innovative Multimodal Platform - Broadened reach, value proposition and city integration In - house Operations - A higher level of control over service quality and offerings Multiple catalysts ahead - New licenses expected to be signed in 2021 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Attractive valuation - Proforma 1.9x 2022 EV/revenue, 7.1 x 2022 EV/EBITDA 10 Transaction includes anticipated $ 30 million PIPE - Anchored by institutional investors and Helbiz shareholders rolling 100% of their e 9

 



 

Select Team members Visionary Management Team Salvatore Palella Giulio Profumo Jonathan Hannestad Nemanja Stancic Stefano Ciravegna Lorenzo Speranza Max Pike Phil Cardenas Founder & CEO Chief Financial Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Technology Officer Chief Strategy Officer Chief Accounting Officer Head of Growth Head of Trust & Safety Serial entrepreneur with Former investment banker at Led creation of the Helbiz Accredited CTO with Former investment banker Former Executive auditor at Former Strategy & Planning Former Head of Global Trust Investment and startup Rothschild and Citigroup with ecosystem from its inception. extensive portfolio including and PE manager Goldman Ernst & Young at Uber, and head of and Safety at both AirBnB experience proven investment and startup experience Previously founded various software startups. former 3x MVP at Microsoft Sachs and AIG Global Investments Operations at Skip and Uber Past Companies include: 9

 



 

Helbiz works with a wide range of partners to maximize exposure and user offerings Brands partner with Helbiz Points of Sale Fashion & Entertainment Banking & Finance Transportation Universities + 15 more Payment Providers Sus t ainabi lity 10

 



 

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 11 Powered by 100% renewable energy in partnership with Ene l 1 Completely recycled. Down to the last screw Fully CO 2 Neutral by 2022 Social Equity. Enabling people to move around Notes: 1 Enel Green Power's energy generation mix includes all the main renewable resources: wind, solar, hydroelectric and geothermal. Production is 100% sustainable.

 



 

Mic r o Mobility is the Future 12

 



 

13 Young people are driving less, car ownership on the decline Car Ownership is Declining 7 9 . 6 % 65.4% 62% 31.1% 2 6 % 82% 9 1 . 8 % 8 0 . 4 % 46 . 2 % 1 9 8 3 2 008 2 0 17 18 Year Old 16 Year Old 20 - 24 Year Old Percentage of U.S. licensed drivers in different age groups (in percent) 1 Notes: 1 Green Car Congress - Choosing not to drive: A transient or a permanent phenomenon ?

 



 

Micro - mobility Opportunity 25% 20 % 15 % 10% 5% Over 500Billion annual passenger trips in the US and EU are under 5 miles 1 % of single trips 30 % <1 5 9 13 17 21 Trip Distance 25 29 $ 1 .8 $ 3 . 7 P r ice / mile $ 1 1 . 0 $ 9 .2 $ 7 . 3 $ 5 . 5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Mil e s Micromobility Personal Car Yellow Cab Ride Hail From 1 to 5 miles MicroMobility offers the greatest savings 2 14 The majority of passenger trips are under 5 miles; on these short trips micro - mobility is cheaper, faster, and more sustainable than rideshare Notes: 1 US Department of Transportation: 2017 National Household Travel Survey (2018) 2 Barclays - Equity Research - Micromobility Report (20 March 2019)

 



 

Cumulative Rides 1 0 , 00 0 , 00 0 , 000 1 , 00 0 , 00 0 , 000 10 0 , 00 0 , 000 1 0 , 00 0 , 000 1 , 00 0 , 000 10 0 , 000 1 0 , 000 1 , 000 100 10 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 Years After Launch Cannibalization of transportation modes by micro - mobility trips, 2030, by % 1 Private car 30% Other car - based mobility 10% Public Transport 35% Walking / Biking 25% Total 100% Micro - mobility Adoption VS Ridesharing 2 15 Increased Micro - mobility Adoption Estimates peg micro - mobility penetration at 8 - 10% of the >500B short trips , resulting in adoption accelerating faster than rideshare 2 Barclays - Equity Research - Micromobility Report (20 March 2019) Notes: 1 McKinsey - Micromobility: Industry progress, and a closer look at the case of Munich (2019)

 



 

Favorable Industry Outlook Micro - mobility in USA & Europe is expected to be a $ 300 - $ 450 Billion Notes: 1 McKinsey & Company - Micromobility's 15,000 - mile checkup (2019) 300 $ Billion 150 $ Billion M a r k e t b y 2 0 3 0 1 16

 



 

Strategy & E x ec u tion To win 17

 



 

Securing Licenses Helbiz Expertise External Advisory + • Internal knowledge generated by previous experiences & proven track record over several years • Local consultants familiar with • local authorities Expert knowledge and contacts Win Operating Licenses Visible Revenue Track Record 18 • Winning licenses gives us an • ever - improving track record Easier to win further permits • Assured revenue • Limited Competition • Predicted future cash flows • The right to be the only, or one of few, operators in a given city Formula for regulatory s u ccess - We have developed significant knowledge internally and worked with external advisors, navigating the regulatory environment. - We engage with regulators and local authorities far more proactively.

 



 

Securing Licenses Washington D.C. Accountability 20 23 27 18 Equipment Design 4 4 4 4 Safety 27 35 43 32 Innovation 1 11 13 2 Equity Plan 15 27 13 18 Labor 6 18 13 10 Sustainability 4 4 6 2 Data 13 15 17 16 Total 90 137 136 102 Atlanta Operations Plan 47 51 49 40 Communication 20 22 22 14 Fleet Design 15 13 15 13 Equity Plan 12 12 12 12 Innovation 18 15 6 12 Total Score 112 113 104 91 We are experts on permits. In a market that is highly regulated we have regulatory superiority. 19 o f 6 0 alia n I t 0 2 0 2 L L A % y ci t Ci t 2 9 o n w se s lice n y tenders offered, we won Highest Score & License in Atlanta Highest Score & License in Washington D.C.

 



 

Market leading position in Italy The Italian market leader offering the #1 platform & Customer Experience with the most licenses App Store Ranking A (Travel Category) 1 pp Store Rating Funding 2 Licenses (IT) #1 4.92 31M 17 #4 4.92 935M 5 #7 4.87 623M 4 #11 4.39 72M 7 #37 4.89 388M 2 With a lean structure Helbiz has built an efficient well - run operation that has not only cemented itself as the leading platform, with the #1 customer experience but furthermore Helbiz has been able to secure the majority of all licenses offered so far in Italy. 20 Notes: 1. As of October 2020 2. Funding source: Crunchbase

 



 

Market Focus 21 A dedicated focus on the more Profitable Markets. Less competition. More loyalty. Deeper penetration. Tier 1 Cities Tier 2 Cities Population +750k 250 - 750k Competitors per city +5 Operators 1 - 2 Operators Cost to cover $$$$$ $$$ Regulations Strict & Expensive Easy to work with & Co l l abor ati v e $ /Vehicle/Month $ 100 - 500 $ 400

 



 

- Robust & reliable in - house driver network - Flexible and scaleable infrastructure - A hyper local approach, on a global scale - Licenses & profitability depends on operational efficiency - All tools used in our operation are built from scratch to work seamlessly together with our core engine & algorithms - AI powered with a human touch 22 Operations Ope r ationa l l y Superior

 



 

+ Software Focused Operations Operational Superiority A hyper local approach, on a global scale Hire, learn from and partner with local companies. Serve each city with best - in - class service quality. In - house drivers, guaranteed service Use in - house teams for on - ground operations to ensure service level and accountability. Operational Efficiency Revenue Per Vehicle Theft & Vandalism Inc r eased R e d u c e d Fleet Management Optimized = Core Platform Engine Our proprietary dispatch engine manages our global fleet, priorities and routes tasks to each driver in real - time Our Utilization and prediction engine helps predict and maximize vehicle utilization across cities and platforms. Dispatch & Driver App A suite of operational tools from drivers app, warehouse and inventory management to our analytics, prediction algorithms and dispatch engine Innovative tech driven platform 100% Proprietary Technology, developed in - house 23

 



 

Innovative solutions to key concerns make us the preferred Shared Mobility Partner Integrated parking systems in our operating model Artificial In t e l l igenc e Parking Verification AI Powered Parking Verifications Analyzes a user's Parking Photo in real time to ensure compliance with local regulations. 24 Smart Parking Spots (Patent Pending) - This proprietary technology ensures a vehicle is parked within a marked area. - Users are guided to the nearest parking spots. - Cities can access a live view and set limits of vehicles per spot.

 



 

Outsourced Hardware Strong Relationships with R&D and Manufacturing Partners Enable Steady Supply & Operational Efficiency

 



 

Customer Acquisition Strategy 26 Our strategically placed vehicles act as mobile billboards attracting and converting users while they are in the field & ready to consume our product 70% Organic 20% Partnerships 10% Direct Advertisement < $ 1 Combined Customer Acquisition Cost

 



 

Looking F o r w a r d 27

 



 

Leverage our customer touch points to cross sell additional higher margin products/ services Leverage our low CAC, growth, penetration and user base to launch new products expanding into a hyper - vertical platform focused on covering the entire customer journey around a singular vertical - with new services such as: Public Transit Integration & Ticketing HelbizKitchen Food Delivery Native Wallet & Payment System (fintech license in progress in Europe) Micro - mobility A d v e r t is e m e n t Payments & Food Our Vision 28

 



 

Customer Journey C L T V Upsell & Convert Food, Transit & Payments After gaining attention and retention use our platform and incentives to push other products for an integrated daily experience + $ 360/user 1 C L T V + $ 1,250/user 2 Retain Keep them riding Boost rides through subscriptions & Incentives to maximize retention, screen time and advertisement potential C A C < $ 1 Onboard MicroMobility Rapidly onboard and grow user base through fast consumed and low CAC MicroMobility 29 Notes: 1 Internal Calculation 2 Is Revolut the Wework of fintech ? - Hernaes (21 October 2019)

 



 

Our 6 Growth Strategies Grow our Rider base Expand MultiModal Of f erings Expand into New Markets Grow Advertisement Opportunities 4 Launch new products for hyper vertical penetration 5 3 2 1 Grow Synergy between 30 Pl at f orms 6 Micro - Mobilty Growth Opportunities

 



 

A d v e r tising Parking Hub Displays A network of charging parking hubs with smart connected LED displays with the ability to play video ads. In - App Advertising Full screen unlock advertising, branded map pins and ads triggered as users pass near specific locations. Vehicle Branding Large partnerships to co - brand vehicles in specific cities or countries Advertisement helps to enhance margins , leveraging existing assets 31

 



 

Incremental Revenue Streams - Advertising Unlike other ad platforms, Helbiz interacts directly with consumers and their environment while they are on - the - go We know where users live, work, and how they move around their cities, and can geo - target all users with advertisement when they unlock, ride or pass in near vicinity of specific spots or stores. Physical Station A d s Location T rigge r ed Ads Un lock 32 A d s

 



 

Our F i nanc i als 33

 



 

Indicati v e Transaction Overview Key Metrics: • Expected pro forma enterprise value of $ 320.5 million at closing • Implied pro forma enterprise value of 1.9x 2022E revenue and 7.1x 2022E ebitda • Profitability expected in 2021 Sources Sou r ces $ M GV trust Helbiz PIPE Financing Total Sources 5 7 . 5 300 30 38 7 . 5 Pro - Forma Enterprise Value In millions except share price Shares Outstanding 40.8 Share Price $ 10.00 Equity Value $ 408 (+) debt 7.5 ( - ) cash $ 80 Enterprise Value $ 320.5 Uses U s e s $ M Equity Issued to Helbiz Estimated Transaction Fees Remaining Cash Total Uses 3 00 7.5 80 38 7 . 5 34 Pro - Forma Ownership at Closing PIPE 7 . 4 % Helbiz 7 3 . 6 % GV public shares + rights 1 9 . 0 % Notes: Included $ 30 Million PIPE. Assumes no redemptions from GreenVision existing public shareholders. Excludes the impact of GreenVision 5.75 m warrants with a strike price of $ 11.50 and outstanding compensatory equity awards

 



 

Attractive Valuation 35 ( $ Mill. ) Summary of Approach • Applies a range of 1.8x – 7.1x multiples to Helbiz 2025E Revenue to arrive at an Implied Future Enterprise Value. That Future Enterprise Value is discounted 5 years back to today to arrive at an Implied Current Enterprise Value. • The applied range of multiples is centered around the median of Helbiz peer group (3.6x) with sensitivity built on both the high and low ends. • Revenue multiple is the appropriate valuation approach based on how industry is valued and based on available data. $ 3,196 $ 1,284 ≈ 50% Discount ≈ 80% Discount $ 3 2 4 $ 8 0 7 $ 321 Implied EV Based on Comparable Companies Current Trading Values Transaction Value 1.8x – 7.1x 2025E Revenue Implied Future Enterprise Value Discount Rate: 20% 1.8x – 7.1x 2025E Revenue Implied Discounted Enterprise Value .7x 2025E Revenue Post Money Enterprise Value

 



 

Comparable Company Benchmarking 1 0 . 7x 3 . 1 x 4. 5 x 1 3 . 7x 1 8 . 2 x 16.8x 5 . 7x 3 . 0 x 4 . 1 x 1 . 9 x 1 3 . 4 x 3 . 7x 5 . 2 x 22 . 5 x 6. 9 x 4 . 1 x 5 . 4 x 4 . 0 x 2 0 2 1 2 0 22 A d v e r t i s i n g Ride Sharing Delivery 36 Helbiz pro forma valuation at a substantial discount to its public peers Note: revenue multiples as of January 14th 2021.

 



 

37 Sources: Crunchhbase, Pitchbook, Techcrunch, Reuters, Dealroom, The verge . Note: 1. Funding round done at the height of the COVID - 19 pandemic for liquidity purposes. HQ Total Funding Latest Funding Lead Investors Licenses Countries Vehicle Type Hel b i z $ 3 1 M $ 6M 29 3 Link Voi Tier Lime C i tySc oo t Bird Dott Wi nd $ 79M $ 388M $ 38 1 M $ 935M $ 96M $ 623M $ 57M $ 72M $ 60M $ 160M $ 250M $ 170M 1 $ 26M $ 75M $ 34M $ 50M 12 50 80 86 4 82 15 22 3 11 10 29 3 14 5 10 Precedent Transaction A nalysis Helbiz has proven capital efficiency

 



 

Operating Metrics Projections 38 Licenses 2 0 2 1 E 2 0 22 E 2 0 2 3 E 2 0 2 4 E 2 0 2 5 E 146 111 78 45 12 80 63 47 31 15 53 48 43 38 33 I t a l y U S A Other 1 V ehic l es 2 0 2 1 E 2 0 22 E 2 0 2 3 E 2 0 2 4 E 2 0 2 5 E 17,663 16,075 14,563 5,838 32 , 55 0 2,600 9,950 9,950 8,200 8,200 8,200 68,250 60,000 55,450 34,300 21,750 Sc o o t e r Bi k e Mo ped Rides 2 0 2 1 E 2 0 22 E 2 0 2 3 E 2 0 2 4 E 2 0 2 5 E Sc o o t e r Bi k e Mo ped 4 8 , 338 7 8 ,213 86,025 95 , 8 6 3 2 3 M 35 M 56M 62M 69M 60 112 2 1 4 2 4 9 279 CAGR: 46.8% CAGR: 31.0% CAGR: 31.0% 2021 - 25E 2021 - 25E 2021 - 25E Note: 1 Other countries including Spain, France, Greece, UK, Serbia, Canada 16M 25M 40 M 43M 49M 6M 7M 7M 6M 6M 10M 12M 13M 4M 2M

 



 

Financial Projections 39 Revenue 2 2 0 2 1 E 2 0 22 E 2 0 2 3 E 2 0 2 4 E 2 0 2 5 E Mobility A d s New Verticals 1 $ 8 0 M $ 1 65M $ 290 M $ 3 7 6M $ 44 9M Gross Profit 2 0 2 1 E 2 0 22 E 2 0 2 3 E 2 0 2 4 E 2 0 2 5 E $ 2 6 4 M $ 1 4 3 M $ 75M $ 3 4 M Gross Profit 42% 4 6 % 49% 55% $ 2 0 6M 59% Profit Margin EBITDA 3 2 0 2 1 E 2 0 22 E 2 0 2 3 E 2 0 2 4 E 2 0 2 5 E $ 1 9 0 M $ 9 5M $ 4 5M $ 1 3 M EBIT D A EBITDA Margin 16% 27% 33% 42% 39% $ 1 4 5M Rapid growth at scale and improving profitability CAGR: 53.9% CAGR: 67.5% CAGR: 95.0% 2021 - 25E 2021 - 25E 2021 - 25E $ 333M $ 282M $ 228M $ 126M $ 64M $ 69M $ 53M $ 30M $ 18M $ 47M $ 40M $ 32M $ 20M Note: 1 B2B & Insurance 2 These projections assume an anticipated resolution to the COVID - 19 situation and the resulting economic benefits. 3 Non - GAAP numbers.

 



 

Revenue bridge from FY2020 to FY2021E 40 Of the $ 80M in revenue FY2021E, $ 44M are generate from existing licenses and $ 25M from new licenses Total vehicles F Y 2 0 2 0 Vehicles deployed in existing cities Vehicles deployed in new cities Total vehicles F Y 2 0 2 1 Italy 5,750 13,300 5,450 1 8 , 750 USA 2,450 6,700 2,500 9 , 2 00 Ot her 4,600 4,600 T o t a l 8 , 2 00 2 0 , 000 12 , 55 0 32 , 55 0 FY2020 2 Revenue from existing licenses Revenue from new licenses Ads & New Verticals F Y 2 0 2 1 80M 4M 16M 7M 5M 18M 8M 26M It a l y U S A Other 1 T o t a l Vehicle Rollout Revenues Note: 1 Spain & Greece 2 Based on unaudited financials of the company

 



 

Financial Summary 2 0 2 1 E 2 0 22E 2 0 23E 2 0 2 4E 2 0 25E Vehicles 32 , 550 4 8 , 33 8 7 8 ,213 8 6 , 0 25 95 ,8 63 Revenue $ 8 0M $ 165M $ 290M $ 3 7 6M $ 449M % Growth 105% 76% 29% 20% Gross Profit $ 34M $ 75M $ 143M $ 2 06M $ 264M % Margin 42% 4 6 % 49% 55% 59% EBITDA 1 $ 13M $ 45M $ 9 5M $ 145M $ 190M % Margin 16% 27% 33% 39% 42% Growth Capex $ 18M $ 17M $ 36M $ 35M $ 46M % Revenue 2 3 % 10% 12% 9% 10% 41 in million $ Note: 1 Non - GAAP numbers.

 



 

Launch Playbook Real Case Study based on Tier 2 city Pescara, Italy (Population: 375,000) In thousands $ 42 W - 4 $ 2 W - 3 13 4 1 0 2 72 43 11 0 0 $ 128 $ 105 $ 84 $ 61 $ 39 $ 5 $ 2 W - 2 W - 1 Week 0 (launch) Week 1 Week 2 Week 3 Week 4 $ 21 $ 228 $ 166 $ 109 $ 62 $ 21 0 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 Re v e nu e COGS 1 T r i p s 4 weeks to launch Clear path to profitability Operating Profit Margin - 86% 2% 23% 37% 44% Inf r astructu r e Recruiting Warm Up Sa f ety Launch Scale 1 COGS not including depreciation

 



 

$ 201,563 - 22% - 1 4 % - 26% — 2% - 4% - 5 % - 5 % - 2 % Operational unit economics breakdown 43 Key stats per vehicle Days of rental in a month # mechanics 2 Note: % of COGS $ 30,511 - 20% - 7% - 20% - 7% - 7% - 25% - 8% Key stats per vehicle D a y s o f r e n t a l i n a mon t h 25 # mechanics 1 — 2% — 2% - 4% 100% Break - even analysis with 250 vehicles Contribution margin analysis 25 Rides per day 2 rides with 750 vehicles Rides per day 2.5 rides Avg ride length 4.8 min Avg ride length 11 min Unlock price $ 1.00 Unlock price $ 1.00 Price per minute $ 0.30 Price per minute $ 0 . 30 Daily Revenue per scooter $ 4.88 Daily Revenue per scooter $ 1 0 . 75 Monthly revenue per scooter $ 122.05 Monthly revenue per scooter $ 26 8 . 75 # Vans 2 # Vans 4 # drivers 3 — 2% - 19% # drivers 6 $ 115,225

 



 

Case St u dies 44

 



 

Washington D.C. , USA Seamlessly connecting suburbs with the Capital - Awarded a permit to operate a fleet of 1,500 e - bikes - Continues to serve the local community during the COVID - 19 pandemic - Operates in neighboring cities of Alexandria and Arlington, Virginia 3,700 2x Vehicles permitted Larger permitted fleet than competitors 1 0/8 1 0/29 11/ 1 9 12 /1 0 12 / 3 1 1/2 1 2 / 1 1 3 / 4 3 / 25 4 / 1 5 5/6 T rips U s e r s 45 Growth first 8 months 544 , 9 53 29 0 , 522

 



 

Seamlessly transitioning cash payments to a digital world Bridging high - tech solutions and traditional behavior - Partners with EPAY, a Euronet Group Company, to gain access to >50,000 physical points of sale for existing services of the Helbiz Ecosystem (Helbiz Mobility, Helbiz Kitchen, Helbiz Insurance and Helbiz Transit) - Creates a diversified network of affiliated points of sale to maximize coverage and reach: (Market - leading supermarket chains, Network of local Bars, Bookstore chains, Local direct affiliates and distributors) - 2021 Key Objective: To expand our affiliated point of sale network to >100,000 in Italy and leverage the same partners to the U.S. for global coverage and uniform sale strategy. +5 0 , 00 0 Cash Top - up Locations 86% 27% Of All Italian transactions are Of Italians have a paid with physical currency Credit Card 46 Notes: 1 Corriere della Sera - Italia peggio di Burundi ed Azerbaijan per l'uso delle carte (2020)

 



 

Find us on the News As Europe slowly unlocks, e - scooter startups, like Helbiz, are wooing with offers To boost its initiative, Helbiz has partnered with the Italian government’s COVID - 19 Task Force. Find more on helbiz.com/newsroom Helbiz Launches E - Scooters in Washington, DC Helbiz, a global leader in micro - mobility, has launched a fleet of innovative new e - scooters on the streets of Washington, DC. 47

 



 

Key Investment Highlights 48 Why the future belongs to Helbiz An Established Market Leader - A well - known brand with deep market penetration A New Regulatory Landscape - Benefitting Helbiz, an experienced and reputable operator with a strong pipeline of licenses Multiple Revenue Streams - Less dependent on rental income A Proven Business Model - Compelling unit economics and clear path to profitability in 2021 Market Leading Technology - Our proprietary technology platform An Innovative Multimodal Platform - Broadened reach, value proposition and city integration In - house Operations - A higher level of control over service quality and offerings Multiple catalysts ahead - New licenses expected to be signed in 2021 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Attractive valuation - Proforma 1.9x 2022 EV/revenue, 7.1 x 2022 EV/EBITDA 10 Transaction includes $ 30 million PIPE - Anchored by institutional investors and Helbiz shareholders rolling 100% of their equity 9
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Helbiz Merger with GreenVision Acquisition Corp.
Investor Conference Call Prepared Remarks

February 9, 2021 - 9AM
 
Operator
 
Hello everyone, and welcome to this conference call to discuss the just-announced merger of GreenVision Acquisition Corp. and Helbiz Inc.
 
Hosting today’s call are Salvatore Palella, Founder and Chief Executive Officer of Helbiz Inc.; Giulio Profumo, Chief Financial Officer of Helbiz; and David
Fu, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of GreenVision Acquisition Corp.
 
I would like to first remind everyone that this call may contain forward-looking statements including, but not limited to, Helbiz and GreenVision’s
expectations or predictions of financial and business performance and conditions, competitive and industry outlook and the timing and completion of the
transaction. Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, and they are not guarantees of performance. I
encourage you to read the press release issued today, the accompanying presentation and GreenVision’s filings with the SEC for a discussion of the risks that
can affect the business combination, Helbiz’s business, and the business of the combined company after completion of the proposed business combination.
 
GreenVision and Helbiz are under no obligation and expressly disclaim any obligation to update, alter or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.
 
I will now turn the call over to David Fu. Please go ahead.
 
David Fu– Chairman and CEO of GreenVision Acquisition Corp.
 
Good morning everyone, and thank you for joining us today.
 
First, on behalf of GreenVision, we are really excited about the coming merger to partner with the Helbiz team to realize this important milestone.
GreenVision is a SPAC listed on the Nasdaq. Helbiz provides easy, inexpensive and eco-friendly transportation solutions for urban areas in the U.S. and
Europe.
 
Over the past four years, Helbiz has established itself as a leader in the micro-mobility market and we recognize the important role that Helbiz plays as
micro-mobility adoption accelerates around the world. Equally important, we fully support the business model and strategy of Helbiz to expand its footprint
across the U.S. and Europe. Helbiz also has a talented and proven management team with a strong track record of success.
 
Helbiz is one of the only companies to offer e-scooters, e-bicycles and e-mopeds on one convenient user-friendly platform. Furthermore, Helbiz has a proven
capital-light business model that combines hardware, software and services with extensive customer relationships, achieving compelling unit economics
which is poised to lead to increased customer adoption.
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These are the drivers for our decision to choose Helbiz as our merger partner after a thorough search. For public investors, we believe this is a fantastic
opportunity to invest in a key sector of the massive urban mobility opportunity. This business combination with GreenVision and the substantial capital the
transaction provides can firmly position Helbiz for its next phase of growth.
 
We have $57.5 million in our trust account and intend to raise an additional $30 million through a PIPE. Upon closing, the combined company will have
approximately $80 million of net cash, assuming no redemptions by GreenVision public stockholders. Based on these assumptions, we are targeting an
approximate $408 million post-merger equity value.
 
I will now turn the call over to Salvatore Palella, the founder and CEO of Helbiz. Salvatore will take us through the history of Helbiz, its status today and its
positioning to lead the micro-mobility industry.
 
Salvatore Palella – Founder and CEO of Helbiz Inc.
 
Thank you, David. Before I begin, I want to thank everyone for joining the call today. This has been a remarkable journey and we appreciate the help and
support we have received along the way. We are confident that the Nasdaq listing will provide us with greater visibility within the investment community
globally.
 
Before I talk about the company, let me introduce myself. My career has been centered on entrepreneurial pursuits, with a focus on early markets in
technology. In 2015, at the age of 28, I founded Helbiz. Since you are probably wondering, the name is a shortened version of our original mission, to “Help
Business”.
 
For those of you who are new to the story, let me tell you a little bit more about Helbiz. Everything we do is focused on our mission to solve first- and last-
mile transportation issues in cities around the world. We do this through a single platform designed to drive forward shared mobility worldwide.
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Let me highlight a few defining elements of our business and market opportunity.
 
The total addressable market for micro-mobility is large and growing. According to a McKinsey & Company report, the market opportunity in North
America and Europe combined is estimated at $300 billion to $450 billion by 2030.
 
With a market opportunity of that size, we believe we are in the early stage of our journey. Micro-mobility is not a fad and is not limited to any geography.
Around the world, people are re-assessing how they make short journeys in congested cities, looking for options to be more convenient, environmentally
friendly, and less expensive.
 
As we consolidate our leadership in Italy, our sights are set globally as we now offer e-scooters, e-bicycles and e-mopeds in over 20 cities around the world.
For example, we entered the Washington D.C. metro area in 2020, bringing e-bikes to the District and e-scooters to Arlington and Alexandria. In addition, we
recently deployed scooters in Miami and e-bikes in Atlanta and launched operations in Richmond, Virginia and other cities this year. Looking ahead, we
intend to expand our presence in secondary markets with less competition, enabling us to build deep customer relationships, benefit from lower operation
costs and optimize profits.
 
Second, we have a proven track record of success in securing operating licenses and permits. This competency is critical because micro-mobility is
transforming from an unregulated market to a highly regulated industry. Many cities are capping the number of vehicles and operators within their
jurisdiction. Our competency is clear. As of January 2021, we had secured a total of 29 licenses.
 
The licensing process has become more complex and each city has its own unique characteristics, requiring tailored solutions for each location. Our success
is due to our development of local relationships and the retention of experienced regulatory professionals. Our team has done a remarkable job of navigating
these complex regulatory environments by working closely with city officials to ensure that we provide safe and reliable service.
 
A third key driver of growth for Helbiz is our tech-driven software-focused platform that positions us to scale our operations and product solutions. Our
robust and scalable platform is built on proprietary technology developed by our in-house R&D team. Our engineering team is committed to improving the
platform by developing new products and expanding the functionality of the existing products. Importantly, we are focused on launching new product
solutions across new verticals beyond micro-mobility, thus expanding opportunities to address customers’ needs. We look forward to leveraging our existing
customer base to cross-sell higher-margin products and services. We believe this will result in deeper engagement and create a significant value proposition
for our customers.
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To conclude, I am excited about the transaction and the opportunity to further develop our micro-mobility platform and strengthen our market leadership. We
have built a strong foundation with customers, who are increasingly adopting our fleet, and we expect to win new licenses around the world as our business
continues to expand.
 
Let me now turn the call over to Giulio Profumo, Chief Financial Officer of Helbiz, to walk you through our growth plan.
 
Giulio Profumo, CFO of Helbiz
 
Thank you, Salvatore, and good morning, everyone.
 
Turning to the projections, over the next five years, we are planning to invest in both organic growth and through partnerships in selected cities across the
U.S. and Europe. We will do this by leveraging our existing infrastructure, technology, and customer base. While micro-mobility accounts for most of our
revenue, we expect advertising and other adjacent markets or verticals to contribute meaningfully in the next several years. By 2025, we expect to achieve
approximately $450 million of total revenue and $190 million in EBITDA. Our business model is ideal to support this growth trajectory, given our
compelling unit economics.
 
The proposed transaction values the pro-forma combined company at a $320.5 million enterprise value, which implies 1.9 times 2022 projected revenue and
7.1 times 2022 projected EBITDA.
 
The company expects to be profitable by the end of 2021. I encourage you to review page 43 of our presentation to gain an understanding of our unit
economics.
 
I will now turn the call back to Salvatore for some closing thoughts.
 
Salvatore Palella – Founder and CEO of Helbiz
 
We are excited as we turn the page to the next chapter in our company’s journey by becoming the first publicly listed micro-mobility company on Nasdaq.
We intend to push technological boundaries and explore services beyond micro-mobility as our ecosystem further develops.
 
We look forward to working with you in the near future.
 
Operator
 
If you have any questions, please contact Helbiz investor relations contact, Gary Dvorchak at gary@blueshirtgroup.com.
 
This concludes today’s call. Thank you for your participation, you may disconnect your lines at this time.
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